
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              June 9, 2020 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

June 9, 2020 - 8:30 AM 

  
 

 1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Join meeting via Zoom here) 
  

 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – Title: County 
Administrative Officer. 

  
 

  3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Regarding employee 
organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo 
County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers 
Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Leslie Chapman, 
Deputy Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health 
and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff 
Thomson. 

  
 

 
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom has issued 

Executive Orders that temporarily suspend certain requirements of the Brown Act. Please be advised that the Board 
of Supervisors Chambers are closed to the public, and the Board will be conducting its meetings exclusively online. 
Board Members and Staff will participate via Zoom videoconference from individual, separate locations. The 
videoconference is accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. Individuals will be asked to provide their 
name and an email address in order to access the videoconference. Anyone who does not want to provide their email 
address may use the following generic, non-functioning address to gain access: donotreply@inyocounty.us.  
 
Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the 
meeting, or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing, or by utilizing the “hand-waving” feature when 
appropriate in the Zoom meeting (the Board Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Written public comment, 
limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. Your 
emailed comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments will be made a part of the record. Please make 
sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:donotreply@inyocounty.us
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              June 9, 2020 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW. 
  

 

  6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

  7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes) 
  

 

  8. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE 
  

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator) 
  

 

 9. County Administrator - Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 between County 
of Inyo and Elizabeth Corpora for the Provision of Professional Services as a Public 
Defender , extending the end date to June 30, 2022 and increasing the contract 
amount by $227,000, pending the Board's adoption of future budgets, and authorize 
the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 10. County Administrator - Request Board approve Amendment No. 9 to the contract 
between Gregory L. James, Water/Environmental Attorney Regarding Natural 
Resources, and the County of Inyo by extending the term of the contract to July 1, 
2013 through June 30, 2021, contingent upon the Board's adoption of the Fiscal 
Year 2020-2021 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 11. County Administrator - Recycling & Waste Management - Request Board 
approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Bishop Waste of Bishop, CA, 
for the processing of recyclables collected at the Bishop-Sunland Landfill in an 
amount not to exceed $31,296 for the period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 12. County Administrator - Recycling & Waste Management - Request Board 
authorize a purchase order in an amount not to exceed $13,906.00, payable to Aztec 
Containers of Vista, CA for a used refurbished storage container to be used as a 
gatehouse at the Independence Landfill. 

  
 

 13. County Counsel - Request Board approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign 
the Amended and Restated Great Basin Air Pollution Control District Unification 
Agreement. 

  
 

 14. County Counsel - Request Board approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign 
the proposed Agreement Regarding Legal Services to be Provided by the Inyo 
County Counsel's Office to the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments Joint Powers 
Authority (ESCOG). 

  
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              June 9, 2020 

 15. Public Works - Request Board approve Resolution No. 2020-26 titled, "A Resolution 
of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California Authorizing the 
Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Bishop Library Exterior Coating Removal 
Project," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
 

 16. Planning Department - Request the Board approve the contract between the 
County of Inyo and the Inyo Local Agency Formation Commission to provide staff 
services in the amount not to exceed $14,464.80 for the period of July 1, 2020 
through June 30, 2021, contingent upon the Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 
2020-2021 Budget; authorize the Chairperson to sign; and, direct the Planning 
Department and County Counsel to provide services as outlined in the contract. 

  
 

 17. Public Works - Road Dept. - Request Board: A) declare Interstate Sales of Auburn, 
CA the successful bidder for 30,000 pounds of reflective glass beads (Type II) per 
Bid No. RD2020-04; and B) authorize the purchase of 30,000 pounds of reflective 
glass beads from Interstate Sales of Auburn, CA in an amount not to exceed 
$13,260.25. 

  
 

 18. Public Works - Request Board approve Amendment No. 3 to the agreement 
between the County of Inyo and TEAM Engineering Inc. of Bishop, CA, increasing 
the contract to an amount not to exceed $82,000 and extending the term end date 
from June 30, 2020 to February 28, 2021, contingent upon the Board's adoption of 
the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget; and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent 
upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

 

 19. Health & Human Services - EMCC - Request Board: A) approve a proclamation 
titled, "Proclamation of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, Honoring Carl 
Dennett as the Inyo County 2020 EMS Provider of the Year;" and B) present the 
proclamation to Carl Dennett. 

  
 

 20. Board of Supervisors - Request Board: A) approve a proclamation recognizing the 
many years of selfless service to the communities of Southeast Inyo County by Carl 
and Suzi Dennett; and B) present the proclamation to the Dennetts. 

  
 

 21. Health & Human Services - ESAAA - Request Board: 
A) approve the 2020-2024 Area Plan for Services for Planning and Services Area 16 
(Inyo and Mono Counties);  
B) set the minimum percentages for the subcategory of Supportive Services as 
recommended by the Advisory Council (50% for access, 10% for legal services, and 
5% for in-home services); and 
C) authorize the Chairperson to sign the required Transmittal Letter. 

  
 

 22. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meetings of May 19, 2020, May 26, 2020 and June 2, 2020. 

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  23. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              June 9, 2020 

CORRESPONDENCE - ACTION  
  

 

  24. Northern Inyo Healthcare District - Pursuant to Resolution 20-03, adopted by the 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors on May 20, 2020, request Board 
consolidate the Healthcare District Election of Directors with the Statewide General 
Election to be held on November 3, 2020. 

  
 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  

 

 



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:  Denelle Carrington 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Contract Amendment for Public Defender Contract 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 between County of Inyo and Elizabeth Corpora for the Provision of 
Professional Services as a Public Defender , extending the end date to June 30, 2022 and increasing the 
contract amount by $227,000, pending the Board's adoption of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign, contingent upon all signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County is required to provide Public Defender services for the indigent, and currently does so through 
independent contracts with qualified attorneys. If the County fails to provide adequate Public Defender services, 
or conflicts exist between the County's Contract Pubic Defenders, the Court may appoint other attorneys ("Non-
Contract" or "Out-of-Contract" Public Defenders) to provide indigent legal services. Attorneys appointed by the 
Court as Out-of-Contract Public Defenders are entitled to charge the County at a rate set without input or control 
by the County. 

On June 16, 2015 your Board too action to approve the original contract with Elizabeth Corpora, to insure the 
provision of adequate Public Defender services, and to minimize potential conflicts (and provide coverage when 
conflicts exist). On June 27, 2017 your Board approved Amendment #1 with Elizabeth Corpora extending the 
date of her contract to June 30, 2020 and increase her contract amount to cover that extension. The amendment 
being presented to you today will continue those efforts and will continue to provide the Public Defender services 
that the County is required to provide.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to deny the approval of the amendment to extend the contract with this Public 
Defender, however, this is not advised as this amendment will satisfy the County's obligation to provide indigent 
services in an efficient and cost-effective manner.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
Funding for this amendment will be budgeted in the Public Defender Budget #022600 in Professional Services 
(5265) in future County Budgets, contingent upon your Boards approval.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Corpora Original Contract
2. Corpora Amendment 1
3. Corpora Amendment 2
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 5/19/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/20/2020
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/28/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/28/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/28/2020
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 6/3/2020



In the Rooms of the Board of Supewisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisor of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 16'h day of J(INE,2015an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Defender/
Corpora Contract

Moved by Supervisor Tillemans and seconded by Supervisor Puccito approve the Agreement
between the County of lnyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney at Law, a Professional
Corporation, for the provision of professional services as a Public Defender (dependency
cases, delinquency cases, child support cases, patient rights advocate cases, mental health
and conservatorship cases) for the period of July 1,2015 through June 30, 2017 in an amount
not to exceed $227,000, contingent upon the Board's adoption of future budgets; and
authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this Idh

oryoy_fafle _2015

KEVIN D, CARUNCHIO
Clerk of the Board of Supemisors

-.;,*,

Purchasing
Personnel
Audftor_
cAo x
Ather

2015

Routing

OATE:

By:
Patricia



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
X Consent I Departmental ECorrespondence Action

E Scheculed Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDANUMBER

3?
E PuUtic Hearing

E lnformational

FROM: County Administrator

FORTHE BOARD MEETING OF: fune 16,2015

SUBfECT: Approval of Agreement for Public Defender Services

DEPARTM ENTAL RECOMMEN DATION :
Recommend Board approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney at LaW a
Professional Corporatior! for the Provision of Professional Services As a Public Defender [Dependency Cases,
Delinquency Cases, Child Support Cases, Patients Rights Advocate Cases, Mental Health and Conservatorship Cases]
for the period of fuly L, 2015 through fune 30, 2A77 , in an amount not to exceed $227 ,OOO pending appropriate
signatures and adoption offuture County Budgets, and authorize the Chair to sign.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

The County is required to provide Public Defender services for the indigen! and currently does so through
independent contracts with qualified attorneys. If the County fails to provide adequate Public Defender Services,
or conflicts exist between the County's Contract Public Defenders, the Court may appoint other attorneys (,,Non-
Contract" or "Out'of-Contract" Public Defenders) to provide indigent legal services. Attorneys appointed by the
Court as Out-of-Contract Public Defenders are entitled to charge the County at a rate set without input or control
bythe County.

The County's current contract with attorney Elizabeth Corpora for the provision of public defender services for the
Welfare and Institutions, Family Support and fuvenile Court public defender services will be expiring fune 30,
2A75.

To ensure the provision of adequate Public Defender services, and in an effort to minimize potential conflicts (and
provide coverage when conflicts exist), the Coun!y's Public Defender contracts are generaly structured to divide
Public Defender services between the juvenile and the adult courts, and each Publicbefender is assigned primary
and secondary responsibilities; usually with priorities for conflict coverage assigned within each iesponsibility
area. In this manner, the County is able to ensure reasonable coverage for iegal rCpresentation that the County is
required to provide before the various courts for qualified indigent persons. Working with County Counsel, ihis
public defender contract and associated scope of work for the agreement presented for your Board,s
consideration today has been revised to provide greater accountability in the proviJion ofindigent iegal services,
including providing the County a means of possibly recouping public defender iosts.

ALTERNATIVES:
Your Board could choose not to approve the contract with Elizabeth Corpor4 however, this is not advised - the
contract is fair and willsatisfy the County's obligation to provide indigent legal services more efficiently and cost-
effectively than paying for out-of-contract legal services.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT :
County Counsel



Agenda Request
Page 2

FINANCING:
Funding for this contract exists in the Fiscal Year 20L5-20L6 Preliminary Budge! and in the outlying years the
contract is contingent on approval offuture County Budgets,

DE PARTM ENT H EAD SIG N ATII RE :
(Not to be signed
(Ihe Original plus

until all approvals are
20 copies of this document

AA -.t/ - 2?4 -

COUNTY COUNSEL:

ooltr lt1 Dat"_-|--

IATEDREEMENTSAG ANDCONTRACTS ANDORDINANCES CLOSED sEssroN REAND ITEMS be(Must
andnvlewed oounselbvapproved suDmissionto to boardplor alark,J

J{,;n
AUDITORYCONTROLLER:

epp*ft%-Dab&y't/Jaf
ITEMS (Musf be and apprcved by the auditor-controllar pior to

submrisslon to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: the director

ut' 6-

PERSONNEL AND REI3TED TTEMS (Mu3i-5e reviewed and approved by of personnel services prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

r\l)l'ltO\ \l.S



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INVO
AND ELIZABETH. CORPORA. A,TTORIIEY AT LAW. A PR9FESSIONAL CORqORATION

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") requires professionalservices
for the purpose of providing legal representation before the various courts, for certain qualified indigent
persons who fall within any of the following classifications:

1. Criminal defendants brought before the Superior Courts of lnyo County on felony charges
(hereinafter referred to as !'Felony cases");

2. Criminal defendants brought before the Superior Courts of lnyo County on misdemeanor
charges (hereinafter referred to as "Misdemeanor cases");

3. Minors brought before the Juvenile Court of lnyo County for proceedings under Welfare
and lnstitutions Code Sections 601 and 602 (hereinafter referred to as "Delinquency
cases");

4. Minors and/or parents brought before the Superior Court of lnyo County and/or
appropriate Courts of Appeal for proceedings under Welfare and lnstitutions Code section
300 (hereinafter referred to as "Dependency cases");

5. Persons ordered to show cause before the Superior Court of lnyo County re contempt for
alleged failure to pay child support or belore said court in proceedings to establish
paternity and supporl (hereinafter referred to as "Child Support cases");

6. Persons involuntarily detained by lnyo County for treatment and evaluation pursuant to
sections 5150 and 5170 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, or for prolonged

subsequent detention pursuant to Welfare and lnstitutions Code sections 5250, 5260,

5300, 5304 or 6500; or proposed L.P.S Conservatees and L.P.S. Conservatees brought
before the lnyo County Superior Court and/or appropriate Courts of Appeal pursuant to

sections 5350 or 5352.1 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code; or persons brought before
the lnyo.County Superior Court and/or appropriate Courts of Appeal for post adjudication
of criminal mental health status proceeding under Penal Code 1026 et. seq.; Children in

proceedings to declare child free from parental custody and control (Family Code section
7861); or indigent parents in proceedings to declare child free'from parental custody and

control (Family Code section 7860); or indigent non-custodial parents in proceedings to

terminate the parent's rights for willful failure to communicate and support (Family Code
section 7860); or conservatees, proposed conservatees, or persons alleged to lack legal

capacity or unable to retain legal counsel and requesting the appointment of counsel in

proceedings to establish a conservatorship or appoint a proposed conservator, terminate
' conservatorship, remove the conservator, or obtain an order authorizing removal of a

temporary conservatee from the temporary conservatee's place of residence (Probate

Code section 1471), {hereinafter all referred to as "Mental Health cases"l;

7. Patients for whom the Contractor is appointed the patients rights advocate pursuant to

Welfare and lnstitutions Code Section 5520, by the lnyo County Mental Health Director
(hereinafter referred to as "Patient Rights Advocate Cases");

B. Persons brought before the lnyo Gounty Superior Court for determinations and

commitments under Welfare and lnstitutions Code Section 6600 et seq. (hereinafter
referred to as "Sexually Violent Predator cases");

Counry of Inyo Standard Contract -l 60

(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )
Page I

0611t5



''!

9.

10.

11.

Persons taking misdemeanor criminal appeals from the lnyo County Superior Court to the

Appellate Divlsion of the Superior Court of lnyo County (hereinafier referred to as

"Misdemeanor Appeal cases"); and

persons requiring Public Defender representation under the provisions of AB 109; and

Any other persons for whom the County is statutorily required to fund Public Defender

services.

WHEREAS, the County has by contract divided performance of the required professional services

described above between private attorneys retained as independent contractors ("Contract Public

OetenOersl to perform public defender services for the County. The purpose of said contracts for public

defender services is to provide competent and effective legal representation to qualified indigent persons

"pp""ring 
before the various courts and to minimize the expenditure of Gounty funds for the payment of

ibirrt app-ointed private attorneys appearing pro tempore.as public defenders, in cases where the Contract
public befenderi are unable to appear due to attorney-client and/or time conflicts of interest.

WHEREAS, the County has the need lor Elizabeth Gornor?. Attorney at Law. ajroj.essi.onal

Qorporation of Bishop, CA (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor") to provide professional legal

seruices a53 Contract Public Defender for lnyo County (North and South).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions

hereinafter set forth, the County and Contractor agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, all of those services and work set

forth in the Scope of Work, Attachment A, attiched hereto and by refe.rence incorpolated herein.

Requests by the bounty to the Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by the judges.of

the'Superioi Court of lnyo County. Requests io the Contractor for work or services to be performed under

this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee

or wairanty, of any nature, as to the level or amount of services or work which will be requested or

iequiieO oi'tn" Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by.this. Agreement incurs no

obligation or requirement to cbmpensate Contractor, over and above that provided for in this Agreement,

tor i'tre performance of any services or work required to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement.will

be performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and professional standards established by

ippiiiJnf" federal, state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions' Such laws,

Jii1inancer, regulaiions, and resolution-s include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this

Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement is for the period from July 1. 2015 to June 30. 2017.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation. County shall pay Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees,

Attachment g, attacffid hereto and by reference incorporated herein, for the performance of the services

and work described in Attachment A.

B. Traveland Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed travel expenses or per

diemforanyi@rmedbyContraclorinprovidingservicesandworkunderthis
County oflnyo Standard Contract -160

(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page2

061 1 l5



Agreement. County shall reimburse Contractor for Court authorized out-of-county travel expenses and
per diem which Contractor incurs in providing work and services under this Agreement. Contractor shall
on a case by case basis, and prior to incurring any out-of-County travel expenses or per diem, receive
written authorization for Contractor to travel out-of-counly on the case from ihe assigned judge. Properly
authorized out-of-county travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in the same amount and to the
same extent as County reimburses its permanent status emplOyees for sUch expenses. County reserves
the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for out-of-county travel or per diem expenses which are
either in excess of the amounts that may be paid to County's permanent status employees, or which are
incurred by Contractor without the prior authorization of the assigned judge.

C. lncidental Expenses. County shall reimburse Contractor in accordance with the
Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, for those incidental expenses which are specifically identified in the
Schedule of Fees and which are necessarily incurred by the Contractor in providing the services and work
under this Agreement. Reimbursement by County for such incidental expenses will be limited to
Contractor's actual cost without regard to any administrative or overhead expenses incurred by Contractor
in obtaining or utilizing such incidental services or supplies, Reimbursement for actual costs will not
exceed the amounts set forth in the Schedule of Fees.

D. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement,
Contractor shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation,
salary wages, or other type of remuneration for any public defender services provided. ln addition,
Contractor shall not, by virtue of this Agreement, be entitled to consideration in the form of ovefiime,
health insurance benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid

holidays, or other paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

E. Billinq and pavment County shall pay to Contractor the monthly payments set forth in
the Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, without any billing or statement from Contractor, provided that
Contractor shall on no more frequently than a monthly basis submit to the County and/or Court a
,statement showing Contractor's charges for time and expenses as incurred if the Court has ordered the
client to pay such charges. Within 30 days of Contractor incurring any authorized incidental, travel, or per
diem expenses, Contractor shall submit a statement to the County. The statement will itemize each
incidental, travel, or per diem expense and identify the date and case in which the expense was incurred.
The statement will include a conformed copy of the cou.rt authorization for travel and/or incidental
expenses and receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental expenses in accordanc'e with the County'
accounting proceduies and rules. County will make payment to Contractor for all authorized reimbursable
expenses for which a statement is properly submitted, within 30 days of the County's receipt of such
statement.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or
state income taxei or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the
terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independenl contractors when it is anticipated that total
annual payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred
ninety nine dollars ($1,499.00)

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments

from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility
or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by Gounty to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to
non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the
California State Franchise Tax Board.

County oflnyo Standard Conhact -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Law, A Professional Law Corpofation )

Page 3

061115



4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in

Attachment A. lt is undeistood by Gontractor that the performance of the services and work will require a

varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with the courts of lnyo

County, other lnyo County Contract Public Defenders, other counsel, and parties, as necessary, to insure

that all services and work under this Agreement will be performed in a timely manner.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments, for Cbntractor to provide the serviies and work described in Attachment A must be procured

5y Contractoi and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement: Furthet during the term of

this Agreement Conlractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits.in.full force and effect.

LicenJes, certilidates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's license, professional

licenses.or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured

and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contraclor will provide County, upon

execution of this Agreemeht, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits_which are

required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor

and Countyas to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the-services identified in

Attachmeni A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,

declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal

department oi agency. Contraitor also warrants'that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving

federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement

Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://wwwepls.gov.

6. COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICES AND SUPPLIES.

County will provide Gontractor with those services and supplies which are specifically identified in

the Schedule 6t County Provided Services and Supplies, Attachment C, attached hereto and byreference
incorporated herein. iounty incurs no obligation nor requirement to reimburse or compensate Contraclor

if helshe for any reason does not use the County provided services and supplies, or procures similar

services and supplies from other sources.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or. safety devices, badges,

identification cards, keys, etc.,-provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and at

the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and ilxclusive property of County. Contractor will use

reasonable'care to proteit, safeguard and maintain such items while they.are in Con-tractor's possession.

Contractor will be financially resfonsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, which is the

result of Contractor's negligence.

8. PRODUCTS OF CONTHACTOR'S WORK AND SERVICES.

Unless otherwise legally privileged, any and all compositions, publications, plans, designs,

specifications, blueprints, mips, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer

piograms, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-

uis,iat presentaiions, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trade.marks, copyrights, or

intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,

product, oi manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the

iermination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the Contractor.

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Laq A Professional Law Corporation )

Page4

061 I 15



9. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENI ETC.

Except for the County Provided Services and Supplies provided for in Section 6 above,

Contractor shall provide all such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials and

books, postage, letterhead, stationery secretarial services, receptionist services, legal assistant services,

telephohe seirices, duplicating services, and case storage facilities as are necessary to provide the-work

and services required of Contractor by this Agreement. Except for those incidental expenses specifically
identified in the Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor

for any expense or cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items or services.

Respohsibiiity for the costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in providing a1! maintaining items or

services not ipecifically set forth in the Schedule of Fees (Ailachment B) as lncidental Expenses, is the
sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

10. WORKERS'COMPENSATPN.

To the extent required by law, Contractor shall provide statutory Galifornia Worker's Compensalion
coverage and Employe/s Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees

engaged in services-or operations under this Agreement. The County of lnyo, its agents; officers and

em-ptoyees shall be named as additional insured and a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

11. INSURANCE.

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, conlract insurance against

claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder and the results ol that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives

or employees.

A. Minimum Scope of lnsurance. Coverage shallbe at least as broad as:

1. lnsurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG
oo01 ).

2. lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, code 1

(any auto).

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of Galifornia and Employer's
Liability lnsurance.

B. Minimum Limits of lnsurance. Contractor shall maintain limits no less than:

1. General Liability (including operations, products and completed operations as applicable):

$l_09-000.0q per occurrence for bodily injury personal injury and property damage. .lf
CommerCial Gerier:al Liability insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is
used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this projecUlocation or

the general aggregate limit shallbe twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: $300,000.00 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Employer's Liability: $5gQJ00=49-per accident for bodily injury or disease.

4. Malpractice/ Professional Liability: $1.000.000.00 peroccurrence.

C. Deductibles and Sellinsured Retentions. Any deductibles or sellinsured retentions must be

declared io and approved by the County. At the option of the County, either the insurer shall reduce or

eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions aS respects the County, its officers, officials, employees

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
Qndependent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 5

061115



and volunteers; or the Contractor shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the County guaranteeing

pu'r.nl of U.."s and related investigaiions, claims administration, and defense expenses'

D. Other lnsurance provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are

to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. The county, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as

insureds *,iih respect to liability arising but of automobiles owned, leased, hired or

OonoweO UV or on'n"half of if'e Contraci-or; and with respect to liability arising out of work

or op"13tiois performeO by or on behalf of the Gontractor including materials, Pfrts..gr

equiilment turnisfred in cbnnection with such work or operations. General liability

.ou"rug; ."n be-proviOed in the form of'an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance, or

as a separate owner's policy (CG 20 10 11 B5)'

Z. For any claims related to this project,_ the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be

primary insurance as respects ttie bounty, its offiiers, otficials, employees-,. and

votuni6ert. Any insurance or self-insuranc-e maintained by the. County, its officers.,

oficiJ6, emptoy6es, or volunteers shall be excess ol the Contractor's insurance and'shall

. not contribute with it.

g. ' Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage

shall not be canieled ny iitner pirty, e"cept after thirty (30)_days prior written notice by

certified mail, return rec6ipt requested, has been given to the County.

4. Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coveiage for. the .active 
negligence. of the

addition'al insured in any case *here an agreement to indemnify- the additional insured

woufO OJ invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the Civil Code.

E. Acceptability of lnsurers. lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating

otnorcffiuntyatitsoptionmaywaivethisrequirement.

F. Verification of coverage. Contractor shall furnisfl 
. 
the County with .original certilicates and

amendai6[6E66ments effecting coverage. required.by this clause. The endorsements should be on

ffi; ilid"o 6v in" county, or if on tormJiirrerirran tn6 county's forms, provide such endorsements or

b;ti;tl th"ilont'orm-to in" 6*ntv's r"quii"r"nts. All certificates and endorsements are to be received

ffi 
"pp;;";d 

by the Cor"iv u"ior" work'commences. The county reserves.the right to require complete,

certified copies of all required insuranc" poti.ir., including endorsements affecting the coverage required

by the specifications at anY time.

12. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, his/her agenls, officers, and employees, relating to lhe performan?e ?l]hil
Agreement, sf,ln U" p"tforr6O as indelendent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees ot

C;*ty. cl;ntrjcror, by virtue of thisAgreerlnt, r,ir no authority to bind orlncur any obligation on behalf of

county. Except ur .i*pi"iilv provio6o.in Attachment A, coniractor has no authority or responsibility.to

exercise any rights 
"i li.*ii'"rit"o in ttre county. No.igent, officer, or employee of the county is to be

considered an emptoy#-oi conti".ior. it is undeistoodby both contractor and county that this Agreement

shall not under any circumstances be consirued or consid'ered to create an employer-employee relationship

or a joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and

services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement'

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results spe-cified in

this Agreement, and ;;""pt ; e*presily provided in_ $s A[reement, shall not be subjected to Gounty's

controlwith respect to irre inysical action or'activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - public Defend"i eUru'U"ttt Corn6ora Attomey at Law A Professional Law Corporation )

061115



C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this

Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of

County.

13. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICAilON.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees

from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and.other costs, including

litigation coslts and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance.of this

A{reement by Contractor,-or Coniractorls agents, officers, or employees- Contracto/s obligation to defend,

inlemnify, an-d hold the County, its agents, oticers, and employees harmless applies t9 any actual or alleged

personal'injury death, or damage oi destruction to tangible or intangible propeff,.including the loss of use.

bontracto/i oUtigation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, o,r other

cost which is carJsed in whole or in pari by any act or omission of the Contractor, his/her agents, employees,

supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts or omissions any

of them may be liable.

. Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agelts, officers, and employees

harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this
,.Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and.hold harmless Contractor, its

agents, officers, and 
'employees from and against all claims, damages, losses,- judgments, liabilities'

eipenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the

active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

14. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the- various

provisions of th'ts Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.

bontractor shall mairitain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of

this Agreement. Gontractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by

substiiuting photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records'

B. lnspectiq.ns and Audits. Any authorized representative of Gounty shall have access to any

books,documen@ludirig,butnotlimitedto,financialrecordsofContractor,whichare
not otherwise legaliypiivileged information, and which County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, 

.

for the purposei of makinj audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such

records are to be maintained by Gontractor.

C. Workload Data. Contractor shall promptly provide to County any and all workload or case

data, which is not otnenrvise tegally privileged information upon the written request of either the County

Administrator or the County Board of Supervisors'

15. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, his/her agents, officers, and employees.shall

not unlawfully?iscriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant

for employment, or person receiving servicei under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, natio_nal

origin,'ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex- Contractor and his/her

ag6nts, officers, anb employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act

(dovernment Code section-12900, et seq.), an_d the applicable_ regulations promulgated thereunder in the

balifornia Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. BB-

852) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

PageT

061115



16. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to

Contractor sixti (OO) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement

without cause,'ariO it will, for any reason whatsoever by giving sixty (60) days written notice of such intent to

cancelto County.

17. TERMINATION OFTHIS AGREEMENT.

Upon the termination of this Agreement or any extension thereof, County shall pay Contractor such

"omp"n#ion 
due, if any, prorated tittre date of teimination; and Contractor shall deliver all active and

inaciive case files to the attorney or law office as the CountyAdministrator shall designate in writing.

Should the County terminate that portion of this Agreement requiring legal sgMces in Dependency

cases, the payment for C6ntractor's serviies will be reduced by twenty percent (20%) as more particularly

discussed in Attachment B.

18. TERMINATIONOFPREVIOUSAGREEMENT.

Contractor agrees that upon the execution of this Agreement pythe_parties hereto, any prior ryr'Ien
Agreement for the piovision of professional seMces as a Contract Public Defender for the County of lnyo

sliall be terminated', and the consideration for the continued representation of clients in the courts of the

dounty oi lnyo shalibe subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement as of the effective date of this

Agre"inent. lt is further understood between the parties hereto that there are no oral agreements or

reiresentations between the parties affecting this Agreement and that this Agreement supersedes and

cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements and understandings, if any, and none

thereof shall be used to interpret or construe this Agreement.

19. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,

experience,-and traiiing of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor-shall not

asbign or subcontract irris Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.

Furtfier, Contractor shall not aisign any mo;ries due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior

written consent of CountY.

20. DEFAULT.

ll the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by

County in itimely ranner, or fails in any way as required tb conduct the work and seMces as required by..

filil County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written

notice to Contractor.

21. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any

subsequent default. Waiver or bieach of any'provision oJ this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver

oi any'otner or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this

Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-nine (29) below.

22. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,

regulations, and ordiiances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by

Contractor in the course of providing sirvices and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 8

061 I l5



or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such

confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only in compliance with law.

23. CONFLICTS.

Contractor agrees that he/she has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect,

which would conflict in any manner or degree with Contractor's performance of the work and services under
this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor agrees not to engage in any private legal representations of any
matter which would conflict or interfere with Contractor's ability to represent clients under this Agreement.
Additionally, Contractor, during the term of this Agreement agrees not to advise or represent any person,

corporation or entity with a claim or cause of action against the County of lnyo, its officers, agents, or
employees.

24. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained in

the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, or
enhancement.

25. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be

declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application

thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

26. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
.,ln.the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the

option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying

Gontractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification of
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-nine
(29) (Amendment).

27. ATTORNEV'S FEES.

lf either of the parties hereto brings an action or proceeding against the other, including, but not
limited to, an action to enforce or declare the cancellation, termination, or revision of lhe Agreement, the
prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be entitled to receive from the other party all reasonable
attorney's fees and costs incurred in connection therewith.

28. RENEGOTIAilON.

Either the County or the Contractor may, upon sixty (60) days written notice, initiate renegotiation of
the Scope of Work (Attachment A and A-1) and Schedule of Fees (Attachment B). lf as a result of
renegotiations, both parties agree to modify the Scope of Work and Schedule of Fees, such modification

must complywith the requirements of paragraph twenty-nine (29) (Amendment).

29. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual

consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
lormalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

Counry oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 9

061 l l5



30. NoTlcE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including

change of iddress ot eiilrei party oJring the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be

ffiii"a, or may oesire, to nijr.d, shall'be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first

class mailto, the respective parties as follows:

COUNTY OF INYO:

Countv Administrator
224 North Edwards
P.O. N

CONTRAGTOR:

P.O; Box 1161
Eishoo. cA 93514

Department
Street

City and State

Name

Street
City and State

31. ENTIREAGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement.oi the parties, 
-and 

no representations, inducements,

promises, or alreements otherwise betweeri the parties noi embodied herein or incorporated herein by

ietereniq shalibe ot-Jnv ioice oi efec. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,

Oisctrjrge'd, or terminatedl unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ttil lltl

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 10

061 I 15



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND
CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDERFORTHE PROVISION PRO SERVICESASA

TERM:

FRoM: J91il'?9l5- ro: JtlNE4€12

IN PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THB L 
T

DAYOF

COUNTYOFII.IYO

APPROVEDASTO FORMAND
LEGALITY:

ASTOACCOUNTING

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS;

dg/ConlractdPubDeferder/Elizabeth Oorpora 0611 15

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Conhactor - Publio Defendei Elizabcth Corpora Attorney at taw, A Professional Law Corporadon )

Page l1

*.'

06lll5



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AN D ELTZAB ETH CO RPORA ATTORN EY AT LAW A PROFESSIONAL L4W,.qO R PO RATIO N

FffiF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2015 TO: JUNE 30' 2017

SCOPE OF WORK:

1. PRIMARYRESPONSIBILITIES.

A. WARRANTY Gontractor warrants that he/she has read and reviewed the contracts of allthe other

uttorn"yr engaged by the County to provide professional services as public defenders (hereinafter referred to

is "Contract-p-unncbefenders') during the term of this Agreement. Such Agreements are by reference
'rntorporated herein as though sbt forth-in full. Gontractor agrees and understands that he/she shall consult,

Confri and agree with all t[e other Contract Public Defenders, and shall provide legal representation and

substiiute franlOling and coverage of Contract Public Defender cases as required by the provisions. be-loy.

Contractor agreeJand understa-nds that these provisions are of mutual benefit to Contractor and each of the

other Contrait public Defenders, and does noi entitle Contractor to any additional compensation under this

Agreement.

B. DEFINITIONS.

1. "Attorney-Gonflict of lntbrest" cases are those that would be within the primary responsibilities of

another Contiact public Defender but for an attorney-client conflict of interest of that public defender.

Attorney-client conflicts are those that are defined and recognized by applicable law.

Z. ,,Time Conflict" cases are those that are within the primary responsibilities of another Contract
public Defender who is unable to fulfill his/her contractual duties to attend the courts and represent

the clients in such cases for whatever reason including, but not limited to vacations, temporary

illnesses, conflicting court calendars, or attendance at attorney education courses'

c. ATTORNEY-GL|ENT CONFLTCT OF INTEREST CASES. Except as may be provided in F. below, or

where Contractor's own attorney-client conflict of interest or time conflict prohibits such, Contractor shall

provide legal representation for-attorney-client conflict of interest cases in accordance with the Conflicts

bou"r"ge iable,'AttachmentA-1 to this Agreement, attached hereto and by referenced incorporated herein.

D. TIME CONFLICT CASES. Except as may be provided in E and F beloW or where Contractor's

own aftorney-client conflict of interest'or time conilict prohibits such, Contractor shall provide.substitute

handling and coverage of court calendars and legal repr6sentation in time conflict cases in accordance with

the Conflicts Coverage Table, AttachmentA-1 to this Agreement.

E. TIME CONFLICT CASES LIMITATION. Contractor shall provide coverage for time conflict cases for

which another Contract Public Defender is primarily responsible but for whatever reason, the duties of such

other Contract public Defender cannot performed for a period of not more than thirty (30) consecutive

calendar days.

F. WAIVER. The requirements for Contractor to handle attorney-client conflict of interest and time

conflict cases as required by this Agreement may be waived by the County Administrator where extenuating

demands are placed'upon Contractor during his/her representation of the following:

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page12

061 I 15



G

ATTACHMENT A - Continued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND EL|ZABETH COBPORA. ATTORNEY AT LAW. A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

FROM:

TERM:

Julv 1. 2015 TO: JUNE 30. 2017

SCOPE OFWORK:

1. A defendant charged with a Felony;

2. A defendant charged with a capitol or other serious offense in which the death penalty or
life imprisonment without possibility of parole is a possible sanction;

3. A minor, who, if charged and tried as an adult, may face the death penalty or life
imprisonment without the possibility of parole;

4. A minor or parent(s) on a Writ arising out ol a dependency case in which the Gontractor
represents such minor or parent(s).

DECLARATIONS AND STATEMENTS FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF PUBLIC DEFENDER FEES
AND COSTS.

1. ln the event Contractor seeks reimbursement for costs spent in defense pursuant to court Ordel
each invoice submitted for payment shall be accompanied by a declaration affirming the invoice
represents a seruice provided in the defense of the matter from which the Order issued and shall
be signed by the attorney seeking payment of the invoice. [See Attachment B "Schedule of Fees'
paragraph 3.A.1

2. Pursuant to Penal Code section 987.8 Contractor shall prior to disposition or the final hearing file
wilh the appointing court in each and every case in which Contractor appeared as a Contract
Public Defender, the requisite form or forms declaring the amount of time expended on the case
by Contractor and any costs incurred in connection with Contractor's represenlation of the client,
including but not limited to any expert or investigative fees and costs, to facilitate reimbursement
hearings.

3. Contractor shall provide needed documentation required by the reviewing court to support the
value of all public defender services for which reimbursement is sought pursuant to Penal Code
section 987.B or any other provision of law providing for the reimbursement to the County for the

. cost of public defender services.

4. Contractor shall prepare and submit to the County and the Gourt statemenls, no more frequently
than monthly, showing time and cost charges as incurred for those cases in which the court has
ordered that Contractor's client is responsible to pay for such charges.

5. Contractor shall provide the County copies of any forms or declarations provided to the court
under this section in electronic format and at intervals specified by the County.

H. MONTHLY CASE REPORTING OF HOURS AND COSTS. Contractor shall provide monthly
reports specifying the total hours and costs expended by Contractor for each specific category of cases on
which the Contractor provides services under the terms of this Agreement. [See lntroduciion paragraphs 1-

11.1 County may provide Contractor the format for such reports, which shall be transmitted in electronic
format. County is not requesting, nor shall Contractor provide, information which is protected by the
attorney/client privilege or other conf identiality laws.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -1 60
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page l3

061115



ATTACHMENTA-1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ELIZABETH CORPORA. ATTORNEYAT LAW. APROFESSIONAL CORPORAtrION

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSTONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2015 TO: JUNE30.2017

COVERAGETABLE:

During the period of this Agreement, Gontractor shall provide legal representation for attorney-client conflict
of interest cases, and substitute handling and coverage of court calendars and legal representation in time
conflict cases as required by this Agreement, in the following tlpes of cases and in the following priority
among other Contract Public Defenders:

Primary Obligations: Dependency Cases
Delinquency Cases
Child Support Cases
Patient's Rights Advocacy Cases
Mental health and Conservatorship Cases

Secondary Obligations: Allother Conflict matters, including felony, misdemeanor, sexually
violent predator cases, AB 109 Revocation Hearings and any other
matter in which the Gounty is obligated to provide public defender
services.

Note: The Table listed above will be followed for the'majority of the cases assigned to
this Public Defender. However, a Judge, when assigning a case, will consider the
experience, caseload, complexity of the case and prior representation of the
same client, which may result in a Public Defender assigned a case out of the
listed sequence. ln addition, the County reserves the right to modify the conflicts
coverage table as necessary to make consistent with other Public Defender
contracts as they may be amended and as necessary to address legislative
changes which may impact the County's obligation to provide Public Defender
services.

(rndependenr contractor- pouri. o"?"xlYiltiilLi 3lH"x""ilffil;lfl,o or-r*sionar Law corporarion )
Page 14

061 I l5



ATTACHMENT B.

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

A.
B.

AND
FOR PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2015 TO: JUNE 30,2017

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

1. COMPENSATION:

County shall pay to Gontractor on or before the first (t') day of each month during the term ol the
Agreement, the amount set forth below as fulland complete compensation for Contractor's performance of
all of the work and services required to be performed during that month by Contractor:

From July 1 , 201 5 through June 30, 201 7;$11 3,500 per year/$9,458 per month,
ln the event the Gounty terminates that portion of the contract requiring services in
Dependency Cases, Contractor's compensation will be adjusted downward by 20% to
$90,800 a yearl$7,567 per month.

2. TIME CONFLICT LIMITATION AND GOMPENSATION:

A. ln addition to the compensation set out in Section 1 above, if Contractor is required to
provide coverage for time conflict cases for which another Contract Public Defender is primarily responsible,
but for whatever reason the duties of such other Contract Public Defender have not been performed or
provided for more than thirty (30) consecutive calendar days, the Contractor is entitled to the rate of $75.00
per hour for those time conflict cases.

B. Any requests for compensation under this section shall be submitted monthly to the County
Administrative Officer for review and payment, The request shall include the case name and number, the
hours worked, a brief description of services provided, the Contracl Public Defender or former Contract
Public Defender subject to the time conflict, arid any other information requested by the County. Contractor
shall be paid within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment.

3. INCIDENTAL EXPENSES:

A. County will reimburse Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Section 3.
"Consideration," paragraphs C and F of this Agreement, for the actual cost of authorized professional

services required to provide an adequate and competent defense and representation of a person which
Contractor is required by this Agreement to represent. Professional services shall include, but not be limited
to, investigators, photographers, accident reconstruction experts, chemists, criminalists, psychologists,
psychiatrists, physicians, and other legal counsel with specialized expertise. Contractor shall on a case by
case basis, and prior to incurring any expense for professional services, receive written authorization for
Contractor to engage the providers of specific professional services from the Judge assigned to the case.
Such authorization shall specifically approve engaging each provider of professional services as well as the
amount of any fees, costs, and other expenses for such services. County reserves the right lo deny
reimbursement to Contractor for the expenses of professional services which are either in excess of
Contractor's actual costs, or the amount authorized by the Judge, or which were incurred by Contractor
without the prior authorization of the assigned Judge. [See Attachment A "Scope of Work" paragraph G1.]

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Laq A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 15

061 I 15



AilTACHMENT B - Continued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ELIZABETH CORPORA. AfiORNEY AT LAW. A.PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2015 TO: JUNE 30.2017

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

B. County will reimburse Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Terms and
Conditions, "Consideration," Sections 3C. and 3F. of this Agreement, for the actual cost of authorized
document photocopying which is in excess of 5,000 pages in any single case, and which is required to
provide an adequate and competent defense and representation of a person whom Gontractor is required
by this Agreement to represent. Contractor shall on a case by case basis, and prior to incurring any
expense for reimbursable photocopying, provide documentation to the Oounty that Contractor has at
his/her own expense made 5,000 copies of documents in a single case, and received written authorization
for Contractor to incur reimbursable photocopying expenses from the Judge assigned to the case. Such
authorization shall specifically approve incurring expenses for photocopies in excess of 5,000 pages, shall
set forth the number of additional pages authorized to be copied, and the authorized cost of such copying.
County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for copying expenses which are in excess
of Gontractor's actual costs, or the amount authorized by the Judge, or which were incurred by Contractor
without the prior authorization of the assigned Judge, or which were incurred by the Contractor in making
the first 5,000 photocopy pages in any single case.

C. Gontractors providing public defender services for cases arising under WIC section 300
("dependency''cases),will have their compensation set forth in this Attachment B Section 1 reduced in the
event the Court reducbs or eliminates its contribution toward the cost of such public defender services, or
either the Court or County otherwise terminates its agreement regarding the provision of these services:

i. The reduction will be the amount set forth above in section 17 Termination of this
Agreement and in Schedule B Compensationparagraph 1. B.

ii. ln the event of termination of representation in dependency related cases, Contractor
. shall continue to be responsible for performing all other seruices set forth in this

Agreement in Attachment A-1, with the exception of the r'epresentation of parties in
matters arising under WIC section 300.

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 1 6

061 I 15



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ELIZABETH CORPORA. ATTORNEY AT LAW. A PROFESSIONAL CORPORAtrION

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1. 5 TO: JUNE 30.2017

SCHEDULE OF COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICES AND SUPPLIES:

1. County will set up a Centrix phone line in Contractor's office for Contractor's use in providing the
services and work required under this Agreement. County will pay the reasonable cost of installing this phone

line in Gontractor's Office. However, Contractor. will pay the monthly cost of this phone line plus the cost of
any calls or other services billed to this line.

2. County will provide Contractor with reasonable access to County's copying facilities for duplicating
documents, and FAX facilities for transmitting documents necessary to perform the work and seMces
required under this Agreement. Contractor will promptly pay to County the County's actual cost of providing

such copying and FAX services and facilities to Contractor.

3. lt is Contractor's obligation to maintain his/her files arising from the provision of public defender
services under this Agreement for such time as required by law, the California Rules of Court or local rule. ln
keeping with this obligation Contractor shall maintain an electronic record retention program for each case in
which the Contractor appears under this contract identifying for each case file the type of case (i.e.

misdemeanor, felony, juvenile dependency, juvenile delinquency, conservatorship etc.), and the year when
the individual case is closed by Contractor.

4. ln the event of termination of this Agreement, Gontractor agrees to direct all active pending files to
that attorney or law firm which has agreed to assume representation of the client in each case and to retain

any electronic records of closed files lor such time as is set by law. lt is the Contractorrs obligation to
personally maintain any clqsed files or to arrange for the proper handling of those files, in the event
Contractor is no longer able to do so.

County of lnyo Standard Contract -1 60
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 17

061I l5



In the Rooms of the Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisor of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 27'h day of June 2017 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

CAO-PUBLIC
DEFENDER-
ELIZABETH
CORPORA
CONTRACT
AMENDMENT 1

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Totheroh to approve
Amendment No. 1 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Elizabeth Corpora
for the provision of Professional Services as a Public Defender (Dependency Cases,
Delinquency Cases, Child Support Cases, Patients' Rights Advocate Cases, Mental and
Conservatorship Cases) extending the end date to June 30, 2020 and increasing the
contract amount by $340,500, contingent upon the Board's adoption of future budgets,
and authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously.

IYITNESS my hand and the seal of ratd Boartl this 2/h
oayaf ,Iyne, 2Ql7

KEI/IN D. CARUNCHIO
Clerk af the Baard oJ\upenisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Audftor
CAj PublicDefendat
Other:
DATE: June 27, 2017

lir'.'



AMENDMENTNUMBER. 1 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Elizabeth Cornora. Attornev Law. A Professional Corooration
FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Elizabgth C$pora.
Attornev At Law, A professional Cofpo-rqtig0-_., of Bishop, California (hereinafter referred to as
"Contractor/'), have entered into an Agreement to provide professional legal services as a Contract
Public Defender for lnyo County (North and South) dated June-16J0I,5, on County of lnyo Standard
Contract No. .!6O, for the term from .lrrlv .201s to June 24fi.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in
written form, and executed with the same formallties as such Agreement, and attached to the original
Agreement to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from Julv 1. 2015 to Jurre 30*_102Q unless sooner
terminated.

ln Attachment B, Agreement Between County of lnyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney At Law, A
Professional Corporation for the provision of professional services as a Public Defender, the following is

amended to read as follows:

T. COMPENSATION.

Change the following:

A. From July 1, 2015 through June 3e 2020: 9u3,500 per year/99,458 per month

The effective date of thls Amendment to the Agreement is Jdy.l,_2012,
All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No, J"6p....
(lndependent Contractor - Publlc Defender Elizabeth corpora, Attorney At Law. A professional Law Corporation)

Page 1



AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Elizabeth Corpora, Attornev A Law. A Professional Corooration
FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBTIC DEFENDER

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

frll DAY oF J'-*^" $ot1 .

COUNTY OF INYO

evtM&y
Dated: t"lll I n

t: ,uhe"tir
A\:dr

By:
SiBnature

El'
Type or Prlnt

Dated: ;] f N t, fle;/7

, fr#g <$ {a*,, dPCcoN

APPROVED RM'AND LEGALIW

AS TO ACCOUNTING FO

nty Auditor

AP ASTO P N IREMENTS:

ff:*
Di of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County k Manager

county of lnyo Standard Contract - No,_199-
(lndependent Contractor - Public Defender Ellzabeth Corpora, Attorney At Law, A Professional Corporation)

Page 2



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

X Consent fl Departmental nCorrespondence Action

n Scheduled Time for E Closed Session

FROM: County Administrator

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: June27,2017

SUBJECT: Approval of Contract Amendment for Public Defender Contract

DEPARTMENTAI,

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

n Puotic Hearing

E lnformational

TION

Request your Board approve the following Amendment #1 between County of lnyo and Elizabeth Corpora for the
Provision of Professional Services as a Public Defender [Dependency Cases, Delinquency Cases, Child Support Cases,
Patients Rights Advocate Cases, Mental Health and Conservatorship Casesl extending the end date to June 30, 2020
and increasing the contract amount by 5340,500, pending adoption of future budgets, and authorize the Chair to
sign.

SAMMARY DISCASSION

The County is required to provide Public Defender services for the indigent, and currently does so through
independent contracts with qualified attorneys. lf the County fails to provide adequate Public Defender services, or
conflicts exist between the County's Contract Public Defenders, the Court may appoint other attorneys ("Non-
Contract" or "Out-of-Contract" Public Defenders) to provide indigent legal services. Attorneys appointed by the Court
as Out-of-Contract Public Defenders are entitled to charge the County at a rate set without input or control by the
County.

On June 16, 2OL5, your Board took action to approve the original contracts with Elizabeth Corpora, to ensure the
provision of adequate Public Defender services, and to minimize potential conflicts (and provide coverage when
conflicts exist). The amendment being presented today will continue that original effort and continue to provide the
Public Defender services that the County is required to provide.

ALTERNATIVES

Your Board could choose to deny the approval of the amendment to extend the contract with this Public Defender,
however, this is not advised as this amendment will satisfy the County's obligation to provide indigent legal services
in an efficient and cost-effective manner.

OTTTER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT

County Counsel

FINANCING

Fundingforthese amendments will be budgeted in the Public Defenders Budget #022600 in future County Budgets,
contingent upon your Boards approval.



Agenda Request
Page 2

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION
reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submission to the board

RELATED ITEMS (Musf be

JApproved:

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller pior to

IApprovedo 6 ?)
submissrbn to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by\tl{e director of personnel prior to

15JApproved
3/

APPROVALS

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATU RE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

€-e-



AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Elizabeth Coroora. Attornev At Law, A Professional Corporation
FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Elizabeth Corpora,
Attornev At Law. A ional Corooration of Bishop, California (hereinafter referred to as
"Contractor"), have entered into an Agreement to provide professional legal services as a Contract
Public Defender for lnyo County (Nonh and South) dated June 16, 2015, on County of lnyo Standard
Contract No._16Q, for the term from Julv 2015 to June 30. 201 7-

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below.

WHTREAS , such Agreement provides that it may be moditied, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in
written form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original
Agreement to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from Julv 1. 2015 to June 2020 unless sooner
terminated

ln Attachment B, Agreement Between County of lnyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney At Law, A
Professional Corporation for the provision of professional services as a Public Defender, the following is

amended to read as follows:

1. COMPENSATION.

Change the following:

A. From July L,2Ot5 through June 30, 2020: S113,500 per year/S9,458 per month

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is Julv t,2017
All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 160
(lndependent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney At Law, A Professional Law Corporation)

Page 1



AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Elizabeth Corpora. Attornev At Law. A Professional Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBTIC DEFENDER

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

n+I^_DAy oF J.^^o ?ot1

COUNTY OF INYO

ev, 7ru,J-;EiUlL--,.-
, At+, a* Laat ) AP CE (la

By:

Dated

AP

t"llt I 1 L

Signature

Type or Prlnt

Datedr &8 H^r*h flo/7.
I

APPROVED

nty Auditor

AS TO

nMhruo LEGALITY

TO ACCOUNTING

IREMENTS:

ry-
of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County k Manager

County of lnyo Standard Contract - t''lo. Jg-
(lndependent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney At Law, A Professlonal Corporation)

Page 2



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
Elizabeth Corpora, Attornev At Law. A Professional Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAT SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Elizabeth Corpora,

Attornev At Law, A Professional Corporatjon , of Bishop, California (hereinafter referred to as

"Contractor/'), have entered into an Agreement to provide professional legal services as a Contract

Public Defender for lnyo County (North and South) dated June 16, 201-5 and June 27, 2017, on County

of lnyo Standard Contract No. l6Q for the term from Julv L, 2015 to June 30, 2020.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set fotth
below.

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in
written form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original

Agreement to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from Julv 1, 2015 to June 30, 2022 unless sooner

terminated.

ln Attachment B, Agreement Between County of lnyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney At Law, A

Professional Corporation for the provision of professional services as a Public Defender, the following is

amended to read as follows:

T. COMPENSATION.

Change the following:

A. From July L,2O!5 through June 30,2022 $113,500 per year/$9,458 per month

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is Julv 1, 2020.

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 160
(lndependent Contractor - Pubtic Defender Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney At Law, A Professional Law Corporation)

Page 1



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
Flizabeth Coroora. Attornev A I aw A Prnfpcci onal ratioCornn n

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAT SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

DAY OF , 

-.COUNTY OF INYO

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS

Director of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT

County Risk Manager

Dated lq '?)a., 4o&0
o

CONTRACTOR

ByBy:
Signature

Type or Print

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 160

{lndependent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney At Law, A Professional Corporatlon)
Page 2



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:  Clint Quilter 
 
SUBJECT:  Extension of Contract with Gregory L. James, Esq. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 9 to the contract between Gregory L. James, Water/Environmental 
Attorney Regarding Natural Resources, and the County of Inyo by extending the term of the contract to July 1, 
2013 through June 30, 2021, contingent upon the Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Mr. James continues to represent Inyo County on water-related matters and his expertise continues to be 
necessary to assist the County on natural resource and economic development issues. Mr. James consistently 
demonstrates the ability to handle numerous assignments in the area of environmental law while managing his 
time effectively and adjusting his schedule to meet workload requirements. Mr. James performs as a highly 
skilled and competent attorney in the area of Water/Environmental law and his experience and services continue 
to contribute significantly to the County’s ability to successfully represent itself and its officers and employees in 
water and environmental-related matters, including litigation.

His current contract, as amended by your Board on June 25, 2019, expires June 30, 2020. It is recommended 
your Board approve an amendment to extend the contract for another year, to June 30, 2021. All other terms and 
conditions of the contract would remain the same, including a total contract limit not to exceed $60,000 and a 
schedule of fees that includes the rate of $175 an hour for work directly related to litigation services, $155 an 
hour for other matters, and $50 an hour for travel time.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to deny the approval of the amendment to extend the contract with Gregory L. James 
as recommended and direct that the office of County Counsel provide the County and its departments with legal 
services relating to natural resource matters with existing attorney staff. This would result in significant delays in 
completing requests for legal services for all but the most critical matters.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Agencies with responsibility for renewable energy as well as environmental and natural resource issues.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:
Funding for this contract is provided through the Natural Resources Budget (010204), Professional Services 
Object Code (5265) and is included in the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget. There is no additional cost to extend 
the length of the contract.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Amendment 9 to CAO Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/3/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 6/3/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/3/2020
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 6/3/2020



AMENDMENT NUMBER~ 
TO 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 
GREGORY L. JAMES. ESQ. 

FOR THE PROVISION OF 
WATER/ENVIRONMENTAL ATTORNEY SERVICES 

REGARDING NATURAL RESOURCES 

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Gregory L. James, Esq. 
of Bishop, California (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), have entered into an Agreement for the 
Provision of Legal Services dated June 25, 2013, on County of lnyo Modified Contract No. 123, for the 
term from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2020 (extended with Amendment #8). 

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below; 

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity. 

NOW THEREFORE, County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows: 

1. Paragraph 2. TERM. is amended to read as follows: 

"The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2021, 
unless sooner terminated as provided below." 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is July 1, 2020. 

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same. 

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No 123 
Page 1 

04/30/2020 



AMENDMENT NUMBER~ 
TO 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 
GREGORY L. JAMES. ESQ. 

FOR THE PROVISION OF 
WATER/ENVIRONMENTAL ATTORNEY SERVICES 

REGARDING NATURAL RESOURCES 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
___ DAY OF ----------

COUNTY OF INYO 

By: __________________________ __ 

Dated: _____________ _ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

County Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 

County Auditor 

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 

Personnel Services 

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 

County Risk Manager 

s/CoCo/Contract/Modified/GJAmnd 1 WaterEnviron 04 30 2020 

Page 2 

~:.NT~~ 
~a~ 
~j 0~~QS' 

Type or Print 

Dated: ___ tP_/_~____,/'----"-~-o-~_0 __ _ 

04/30/2020 



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Recycling & Waste 
Management

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:  Leslie Chapman 
 
SUBJECT:  Recycling Processing Contract with Bishop Waste 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Bishop Waste of Bishop, CA, for the 
processing of recyclables collected at the Bishop-Sunland Landfill in an amount not to exceed $31,296 for the 
period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Inyo County Recycling and Waste Management Program (RWM) distributed a Request for Proposals for 
Recycling Processing in April, 2020.  RWM received a proposal for recycling processing from one vendor, Bishop 
Waste. Bishop Waste is located immediately adjacent to the Bishop-Sunland Landfill, and will pick up bins from 
the landfill to be processed.

The contract between the Bishop Waste and Inyo County for the processing of recyclables will expire on June 30, 
2023 or when a not-to-exceed amount of $31,296 is met. The cost to process each 25 cubic yard roll-off recycling 
container by Bishop Waste Recycling Center will cost $332.  Bishop Waste will also be processing 40 cubic yard 
roll-off recycling container for plastic at $350 a container.  Newspaper and office paper will be processed in 3 
cubic yard bins for a cost of $33 per load.  Inyo County fills up to eight (8) recycling roll-off containers per month 
between the Bishop-Sunland Landfill, Lone Pine Landfill, Independence Landfill, and the Big Pine Transfer 
Station.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the contract with the Bishop Waste for Recycling Processing, but that is 
not advised due to the efficiency of utilizing a recycling processor so close to the Bishop-Sunland Landfill allows 
for the Recycling and Waste Management Program.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

County Counsel, Auditor
 
FINANCING:
These services are included in the proposed Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Solid Waste Budget, 5265 Professional and 
Special Services, and will be included in future Solid Waste Budgets.

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bishop Waste-Inyo County Recycling Contract
2. Request for Proposals
 
APPROVALS:
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 5/22/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/22/2020
Teresa Elliott Approved - 5/26/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/26/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/27/2020
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 6/1/2020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND MADERA DISPOSAL SYSTEMS INC, DBA BISHOP WASTE DISPO{
FORTHE PRoVISIoN oF RECYCLING SERVICES SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for
the RECYCLING PROCESSING services of Madera Disposal Svstems DBA BISHOP WASTE DISF

of BISHOP, CA (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of
the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as
follows:

TERMS AND GONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by CAP AUBREY
whose title is: RWM SUPERINTENDENT Requests to the Contractor for work or services to
be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM

The term of this Agreement shall be from JULY 1, 2020 to JUNE 30,2023
unless sooner terminated as provided below

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Comoensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount pavable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
THIRTY ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED NINETY SIX AND OO/1OO DoIIaTs

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 1 0512112019



31, 296.00 (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly
reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work
performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request. This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted will coverthe period from the first (1st) dayof the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Upon timely
receipt of the statement by the fifth (sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the
last day of the month.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California
State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will

be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide County,
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 16
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page2 0512112019



B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://wwrrv.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Personal Propertv of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the Agreement,
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE.
For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope

and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 3 05t21t2019



10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not

unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national

origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,

officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such inter'it to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

14. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,

experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.

Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior

written consent of County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 4 o5t21t2019



15. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

17. CONFIDENTIALITY

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 5 05121t2019



20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification of
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twentytwo
(22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
RECYCLING WASTE MANAGMENT Department
163 MAY ST Address
BISHOP, CA 93514 City and State

Contractor:
BISHOP WASTE DISPOSAL Name

Address
City and State

1OO SUNLAND RESERVATION RD
BrsHoP, QA 93514

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 6

ilil ilil

05t21t2019



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNWOF INYO
AND MADERA DISPOSAL SYSTEMS INC, DBA BISHOP WASrE DISPO&

FOR THE PROVISION OF RECYCLING SERVICES
SERV|CES

THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
IN WTNESS

THIS _ DAY OF

COUNTYOFINYO

Signature

Print or Type Name

Dated:

APPROVEDAS TO FORM AND LEGALIry;

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

PerEonnel Services

APPROVED AS IO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

County Risk Manager

+

COilTRACTOR

Dated: 5
Print or Name

County of lnyo Standard Contract- No. 1 16
(lndepandent Contracto.)

PageT a1tn2a19



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND MADERA DISPOSAL SYSTEMS INC, DBA BISHOP WASTE DISPOSI

FOR THE pROvtStON gp RECYCLING SERVICES SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
TH|S _ DAY OF , _

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

Signature
By:-

Signrtrr"

Print or Type Name Print or Type Name

Dated: Dated

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 7

County Risk Manager

0512112019



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND MADERA DTSPOSAL SYSTEMS rNC, DBA BtSHOp WASTE DtSpOS

FOR THE pROVtStON OF RECYCLING SERVICES SERVICES

TERM

FROM
7t1t2020 6t30t2023

SCOPE OF WORK:

PROCESS RECYCLABLES COLLECTED AT STAFFED SOLID WASTE FACILITIES IN 3,25 AND 40 CUBIC YARD
ROLL OFF BINS. BINS WILL BE PICKED UP BY BISHOP WASTE AT THE BISHOP-SUNLAND LANDFILL.
HAULING FROM OTHER SOLID WASTE FACILITIES WILL BE PERFORMED BY INYO COUNTY STAFF.

NO CHARGE SERVICES

BISHOP WASTE WILL PROVIDE A ROLL OFF BIN, IF NEEDED, TO INYO COUNTY FOR COLLECTION AND
TRANSPORTATION OF RECYCLING MATERIAL.

BISHOP WASTE WILL PROVIDE INYO COUNTY WITH VOLUME AND/OR TONNAGE DATA IN REGARDS TO
RECYLING MATERIAL DIVERTED FROM THE LANDFILL.

BISHOP WASTE WILL INCLUDE INFORMATION ABOUT RECYCLING SERVICES OFFERED BY INYO COUNry
RECYCLING AND WASTE MANAGEMENT ON THE BISHOP WASTE WEBSITE:www.bishopwaste.com

TO

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 8 0512112019



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND MADERA DTSPOSAL SYSTEMS tNC, DBA BTSHOP WASTE DTSPOS

FOR THE pROVtStON OF RECYCLING SERVICES

TERM

FROM 7t112020 TO 6t30t2023

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

SERVIGES

PLASTIC #1 &#2
GLASS
25 CY ROLL OFF BIN $332.00 PER PICKUP

PLASTIC
40 CY ROLL OFF BIN $35O.OO PER PICKUP

NEWSPAPER
WHITE OFFICE PAPER
3 CY ROLL OFF BIN $33.00 PER PICKUP

HAULED TO MAMMOTH AND PROCESSED

TOTAL FOR 3 YEARS NoT TO EXCEED AMOUNT: $ 31,296

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 9 05t21t2019



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND MADERA DISPOSAL SYSTEMS INC DBA BISHOP WASTE DISPOSP

FOR THE pROVtStON OF RECYCLING SERVICES

TERM

FROM: 71112020 TO 6t30t2023

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 10

SERVICES

05t21t2019























County of Inyo

County Administrator - Recycling & Waste 
Management

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:  Leslie Chapman 
 
SUBJECT:  Approve the purchase of a new gatehouse for the Independence landfill. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board authorize a purchase order in an amount not to exceed $13,906.00, payable to Aztec Containers 
of Vista, CA for a used refurbished storage container to be used as a gatehouse at the Independence Landfill.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Recycling Waste Management (RWM) is in need of a new gatehouse at the Independence landfill.  The current 
gatehouse has many problems including, water damage on ceiling due to leaking roof, outside siding is warping 
and coming apart allowing dirt and wasps to come in, failing floor, window seal failing, and a broken door.  It is 
less than secure and unsafe.

RWM received three quotes for a gatehouse:

Aztec Containers                $13,905
Container Alliance              $15,381
Atlas Performance              $30,899

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to award the bid for the purchase of the gatehouse; however, this is not 
recommended given the age and condition of the current gatehouse.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor
 
FINANCING:
The purchase cost of the container is included in the fiscal year 2019/2020 budget for Recycling and Waste 
Management, 045700, object code 5620, Infrastructure. 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Indy gatehouse quotes
 
APPROVALS:
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 5/22/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/25/2020
Teresa Elliott Approved - 5/26/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/26/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/26/2020
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 6/1/2020









County of Inyo

County Counsel
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:  Grace Chuchla 
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of Updated Unification Agreement for Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Amended and Restated Great Basin Air 
Pollution Control District Unification Agreement.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District ("GBUAPCD") was initially formed in 1974 via a Unification 
Agreement involving Inyo, Mono, and Alpine Counties.  Since 1974, various laws related to air pollution control 
districts have changed, and the population distribution of Inyo, Mono, and Alpine Counties has also changed.  
Additionally, the Unification Agreement needed technical updates to bring it in line with current practice and to 
incorporate various rules passed by GBUAPCD's Board that should be in the Unification Agreement.

The three member counties worked with GBUAPCD to draft the updated Unification Agreement that is before 
your Board today.  The GBUAPCD Board and the Boards of Supervisors of Mono and Alpine Counties have all 
approved the updated Unification Agreement.  The changes made in this updated Unification Agreement are 
non-substantive, housekeeping issues that are intended to bring the Unification Agreement in line with current 
practice and current code references.  Your Board may note that Section 6, the funding formula, appears to be a 
totally new addition to the unification agreement.  However, this section does not change Inyo County's fiscal 
obligations to GBUAPCD.  The funding formula set out in Section 6 already exists as a rule passed by 
GBUAPCD's Board in 1994.  The member counties felt that this rule was better placed in the Unification 
Agreement, so it has been copied into the amended Unification Agreement from the existing rule.  

Attached is both a redline and clean version of the updated agreement.  

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not approve the updated Unification Agreement.  This is not recommended, as the 
updated Unification Agreement is necessary for GBUAPCD's continued operation.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Draft Updated Unification Agreement - Redline
2. Draft Updated Unification Agreement - For Signature
 
APPROVALS:
Grace Chuchla Created/Initiated - 5/27/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/2/2020
Grace Chuchla Approved - 6/2/2020
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/3/2020



2020 Amended and Restated GBUAPCD Unification Agreement                                                                               Page 1 of 6 

AMENDED AND RESTATED GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 

UNIFICATION AGREEMENT  

 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into by and between the Board of Supervisors of the County of 

Inyo, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Mono, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Alpine, 

and ex‐officio the Air Pollution Control Board of the Inyo County Air Pollution Control District, the Air 

Pollution Control Board of the Mono County Air Pollution Control District, and the Air Pollution Control 

Board of the Alpine County Air Pollution Control District. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo, the County of Mono and the County of Alpine (“Counties”) have 

heretofore each activated an air pollution control district pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 2 of 

Division 20Part 3 of Division 26 of the Health and Safety Code (the “Applicable Law”);, and 

WHEREAS, effective March 1, 1974, the Counties entered into an agreement pursuant to the Applicable 

Law to create a unified air pollution control district, designated the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution 

Control District; and 

WHEREAS, the Counties now wish to amend the 1974 agreement to update its provisions consistent 

with the Applicable Law; and 

WHEREAS, said membersthe Counties have met and so agreed; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Inyo County Air Pollution Control District, the Mono County Air Pollution Control 

District, and the Alpine County Air Pollution Control District shall continue to serve as one 

unified district pursuant to the provisions of Health and Safety Code Section 40150.be and the 

same are hereby merged into one district pursuant to the provisions of Article 7, Chapter 2, 

Division 20 of the Health and Safety Code. 

2. That said district shall continue to be known and designated as the Great Basin Unified Air 

Pollution Control District (“District”). 

3. That the relative population of the Ccounties and cities within said district as of 2017at the date 

hereof is as follows: 

      Inyo County    64.2 percent 

      Mono County  31.7 percent 

      Alpine County     4.1 percent 

  Population  % of Total Pop. 

Inyo County (total)  18,026  54% 

     Inyo County (unincorporated only)  14,072  42% 

     City of Bishop  3,954  12% 

Mono County (total)  14,186  43% 

     Mono County (unincorporated only)  6,184  19% 

Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 3



2020 Amended and Restated GBUAPCD Unification Agreement                                                                               Page 2 of 6 

     Town of Mammoth Lakes  8,002  24% 

Alpine County (total)  1,120  3% 

TOTAL  33,332   

 

     

   

Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 3



2020 Amended and Restated GBUAPCD Unification Agreement                                                                               Page 3 of 6 

 

4. That the District is governed by a 7‐membercomposition of the Air Pollution Control Board, shall 

becomprised as follows: 

(a)  Two members of the Board of Supervisors of Inyo County selected by said Board of 

Supervisors. 

(b)  Two members of the Board of Supervisors of Mono County selected by said Board of 

Supervisors. 

(c)  Two  Members of the Board of Supervisors of Alpine County selected by said Board of 

Supervisors. 

(d) One Member of the Town Council of the Town of Mammoth Lakes selected by said Town 

Council. 

5. Each member agency shall also select a member of their respective boards to serve as an 

alternate member who may serve in the event their designated member is absent or unable to 

attend.  That the voting procedure of the Air Pollution Control Board shall be as follows: 

  (a)  Each member shall have one vote. 

(b)  Quorum: A quorum of said Air Pollution Control Board shall consist of four members, 

provided, however, no action affecting only a particular zone designated pursuant to Health and 

Safety Code 40156 may be taken without a representative of that zone being present and voting 

on the action. 

 ((c) Alternate members:  The Board of Supervisors of Alpine County shall designate an alternate 

member who shall serve in the event the designate member is absent or unable to attend a 

meeting. 

(dc)  Actions requiring a majority vote of the Governing Board shall require 4 votes.  All acts of 

the Air Pollution Control Board shall require the affirmative vote from each of two 

counties.Actions requiring 4/5ths vote of the Governing Board shall require 6 votes. 

6. The District shall be funded by the Counties and cities who have representatives on the District 

Governing Board, by making the following annual payments to the District: 

a. Inyo County: $0.55 per capita of population within county boundaries; 

b. Alpine County: $0.55 per capital of population within county boundaries; 

c. Mono County: $0.55 per capita of population within the unincorporated area of the 

county; 

d. Town of Mammoth Lakes: $0.55 per capita of population within the incorporated city. 

6.7. That the Air Pollution Control Board of the unified District hereby created shall appoint a 
Hearing Board as provided by law, with the additional provision that at least one member of said 

Board shall be from each county. 

Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 3



2020 Amended and Restated GBUAPCD Unification Agreement                                                                               Page 4 of 6 

7. That employees of the said unified district, pending the adoption by the Air Pollution Control 

Board of the unified district of personnel policies and procedures, shall be subject to and 

granted the rights conferred, by the Personnel Ordinance of the County of Inyo. 

8. That a fifteen (15) member Advisory Committee may be appointed by the Air Pollution Control 

Board from a list provided by the Board of Supervisors of each county, with five (5) members 

from each county appointed to serve on said Advisory Committee. 

9. That the Treasurer for the County of Inyo shall serve as Treasurer for the unified dDistrict hereby 

created. 

   

Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 3



2020 Amended and Restated GBUAPCD Unification Agreement                                                                               Page 5 of 6 

9.  

10. That any employee of the three counties who transfers to the service of the unified district shall 

retain all sick leave, vacation, retirement, and other benefits accrued by reason of his county 

employment. 

11.10. Modification or termination: 

(a)  Modification.  This agreement, except as to the counties constituting the unified district 

hereby created, may be modified on the recommendation of the Air Pollution Control Board and 

concurred in by the Board of Supervisors of each county within the unified dDistrict; provided, 

however, that any issues related to the counties and/or cities that constitute the District must 

be handled pursuant to the procedures set forth in section 10(b) below. hereby created. 

(b)  Withdrawal of any Ccounty.  Any county that is a party, a party hereto, may withdraw from 

the unified dDistrict hereby created upon thirty (30) days’ notice in writing, one to the others; 

provided, however, such notification shall be made not less than ninety (90) days prior to the 

end of any fiscal year.  Upon the withdrawal of any Ccounty from the Unified District, the said 

Unified District shall terminate, and the duties and powers of thesaid Unified District shall revert 

to its respective member Counties’ air pollution controlcounty districts.  

(c)  Termination.  This agreement may be terminated at any time upon the recommendation of 

the Air Pollution Control Board and concurred in by the Board of Supervisors of each county 

within the unified dDistrict herein created.  Upon termination of the Unified District, the duties 

and powers of thesaid Unified  District shall revert to its respective member county Counties’ air 

pollution control districts. 

12.11. That the funds, property, and liabilities of the Inyo, Mono and Alpine County Air 

Pollution Control Districts shall, upon the merging of said three districts, become the funds, 

property and liabilities of the unified air pollution control district hereby created.  UponThat 

upon termination or withdrawal of a member Countythe Unified from the District, any assets or 

liabilities then or thereafter accruing to it shall revert to its member Ccounties in proportion as 

the same are set forth in Section 3 of this agreement. 

13.12. That this agreement shall become effective and operative , insofar as the merger of said 

Inyo County Air Pollution Control District, said Mono County Air Pollution Control District and 

said Alpine County Air Pollution Control District is concerned, on March 1, 1974upon approval of 

the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District Governing Board. 

   

Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 3



2020 Amended and Restated GBUAPCD Unification Agreement                                                                               Page 6 of 6 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year set 

opposite the signature of their respective officers.   

ATTEST: 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

COUNTY OF ALPINE 

 

____________________________    By____________________________________ 

Clerk of the Board           ChairmanChairperson 

Date:________________________   

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

COUNTY OF INYO 

 

____________________________    By____________________________________ 

Clerk of the Board           ChairmanChairperson 

Date:________________________ 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

COUNTY OF MONO 

 

____________________________    By____________________________________ 

Clerk of the Board           ChairmanChairperson 

Date:________________________ 

 

 

 

Agenda Item No. 6e - Attachment 3



2020 Amended and Restated GBUAPCD Unification Agreement                                                                               Page 1 of 4 

AMENDED AND RESTATED GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
UNIFICATION AGREEMENT  

 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into by and between the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Inyo, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Mono, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Alpine, 
and ex-officio the Air Pollution Control Board of the Inyo County Air Pollution Control District, the Air 
Pollution Control Board of the Mono County Air Pollution Control District, and the Air Pollution Control 
Board of the Alpine County Air Pollution Control District. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo, the County of Mono and the County of Alpine (“Counties”) have 
heretofore each activated an air pollution control district pursuant to the provisions of Part 3 of Division 
26 of the Health and Safety Code (the “Applicable Law”); and 

WHEREAS, effective March 1, 1974, the Counties entered into an agreement pursuant to the Applicable 
Law to create a unified air pollution control district, designated the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution 
Control District; and 

WHEREAS, the Counties now wish to amend the 1974 agreement to update its provisions consistent 
with the Applicable Law; and 

WHEREAS, the Counties have met and so agreed; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Inyo County Air Pollution Control District, the Mono County Air Pollution Control 
District, and the Alpine County Air Pollution Control District shall continue to serve as one 
unified district pursuant to the provisions of Health and Safety Code Section 40150. 

2. That said district shall continue to be known and designated as the Great Basin Unified Air 
Pollution Control District (“District”). 

3. That the population of the Counties and cities within said district as of 2017 is as follows: 

    
 Population % of Total Pop. 
Inyo County (total) 18,026 54% 
     Inyo County (unincorporated only) 14,072 42% 
     City of Bishop 3,954 12% 
Mono County (total) 14,186 43% 
     Mono County (unincorporated only) 6,184 19% 
     Town of Mammoth Lakes 8,002 24% 
Alpine County (total) 1,120 3% 
TOTAL 33,332  

 
   
  



2020 Amended and Restated GBUAPCD Unification Agreement                                                                               Page 2 of 4 

4. That the District is governed by a 7-member Air Pollution Control Board, comprised as follows: 

(a)  Two members of the Board of Supervisors of Inyo County selected by said Board of 
Supervisors. 

(b)  Two members of the Board of Supervisors of Mono County selected by said Board of 
Supervisors. 

(c)  Two  Members of the Board of Supervisors of Alpine County selected by said Board of 
Supervisors. 

(d) One Member of the Town Council of the Town of Mammoth Lakes selected by said Town 
Council. 

5. Each member agency shall also select a member of their respective boards to serve as an 
alternate member who may serve in the event their designated member is absent or unable to 
attend.  That the voting procedure of the Air Pollution Control Board shall be as follows: 

 (a)  Each member shall have one vote. 

(b)  Quorum: A quorum of said Air Pollution Control Board shall consist of four members, 
provided, however, no action affecting only a particular zone designated pursuant to Health and 
Safety Code 40156 may be taken without a representative of that zone being present and voting 
on the action. 

 (c)  Actions requiring a majority vote of the Governing Board shall require 4 votes.  Actions 
requiring 4/5ths vote of the Governing Board shall require 6 votes. 

6. The District shall be funded by the Counties and cities who have representatives on the District 
Governing Board, by making the following annual payments to the District: 

a. Inyo County: $0.55 per capita of population within county boundaries; 

b. Alpine County: $0.55 per capital of population within county boundaries; 

c. Mono County: $0.55 per capita of population within the unincorporated area of the 
county; 

d. Town of Mammoth Lakes: $0.55 per capita of population within the incorporated city. 

7. That the Air Pollution Control Board of the District shall appoint a Hearing Board as provided by 
law, with the additional provision that at least one member of said Board shall be from each 
county. 

8. That a fifteen (15) member Advisory Committee may be appointed by the Air Pollution Control 
Board from a list provided by the Board of Supervisors of each county, with five (5) members 
from each county appointed to serve on said Advisory Committee. 

9. That the Treasurer for the County of Inyo shall serve as Treasurer for the District. 

  



2020 Amended and Restated GBUAPCD Unification Agreement                                                                               Page 3 of 4 

10. Modification or termination: 

(a)  Modification.  This agreement may be modified on the recommendation of the Air Pollution 
Control Board and concurred in by the Board of Supervisors of each county within District; 
provided, however, that any issues related to the counties and/or cities that constitute the 
District must be handled pursuant to the procedures set forth in section 10(b) below. 

(b)  Withdrawal of any County.  Any county that is a party hereto may withdraw from the District 
upon thirty (30) days’ notice in writing, one to the others; provided, however, such notification 
shall be made not less than ninety (90) days prior to the end of any fiscal year.  Upon the 
withdrawal of any County from the District, the District shall terminate, and the duties and 
powers of the District shall revert to its respective member Counties’ air pollution control 
districts.  

(c)  Termination.  This agreement may be terminated at any time upon the recommendation of 
the Air Pollution Control Board and concurred in by the Board of Supervisors of each county 
within the District.  Upon termination of the District, the duties and powers of the District shall 
revert to its respective member Counties’ air pollution control districts. 

11. That upon termination or withdrawal of a member County from the District, any assets or 
liabilities then or thereafter accruing to it shall revert to its member Counties in proportion as 
the same are set forth in Section 3 of this agreement. 

12. That this agreement shall become effective and operative upon approval of the Great Basin 
Unified Air Pollution Control District Governing Board. 

  



2020 Amended and Restated GBUAPCD Unification Agreement                                                                               Page 4 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year set 
opposite the signature of their respective officers.  

ATTEST: 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
COUNTY OF ALPINE 

 

____________________________  By____________________________________ 

Clerk of the Board       Chairperson 

Date:________________________  

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
COUNTY OF INYO 

 

____________________________  By____________________________________ 

Clerk of the Board       Chairperson 

Date:________________________ 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
COUNTY OF MONO 

 
____________________________  By____________________________________ 

Clerk of the Board       Chairperson 

Date:________________________ 

 

 

 



County of Inyo

County Counsel
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the proposed Agreement Regarding Legal 
Services to be Provided by the Inyo County Counsel's Office to the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments Joint 
Powers Authority (ESCOG).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On February 18, 2020, your Board considered whether the Inyo County Counsel's office should provide general 
counsel legal services to the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments (ESCOG) -- which the office is able and 
willing to provide -- and a majority of the Board was supportive.  The ESCOG Board was also supportive.  
Accordingly, the proposed agreement was drafted to effectuate the provision of such services.  It is similar to 
other agreements under which the Inyo County Counsel's office provides legal services to joint powers entities.  

The agreement provides for the provision of general counsel services for a flat fee of $833 per month (which is 
based on a good-faith estimate of the County's average monthly costs of providing such services over a twelve-
month period).  That amount will be reviewed annually and can be adjusted up or down by mutual agreement.  
The contract can also be terminated by either party with or without cause.  The agreement is backdated to April 
1, 2020, in recognition of the fact that my office has already provided time-sensitive and necessary legal services 
informally to the ESCOG pending the drafting and approval of this agreement.  The proposed agreement was 
approved by the ESCOG Board on May 15, 2020.

As your Board is aware, the ESCOG exists pursuant to a Joint Powers Agreement between Inyo County, Mono 
County, the City of Bishop, and the Town of Mammoth Lakes.  That agreement was recently amended by the 
parties to reconfigure the ESCOG as a public agency.  The agency wishes to retain legal counsel and would 
prefer to have one of its own member agency's legal counsel serve as ESCOG legal counsel, for compensation.  
My office provides similar legal services to several other regional JPAs, including Eastern Sierra Transit Authority 
(ESTA), Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District, and the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority (OVGA). 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
ESCOG
 
FINANCING:
The agreement will generate revenue of $833 per month.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Legal Services Agreement for ESCOG 
 
APPROVALS:
Marshall Rudolph Created/Initiated - 5/29/2020
Grace Chuchla Approved - 5/29/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/2/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 6/3/2020
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/3/2020



 Page 1 of  3 

AGREEMENT REGARDING LEGAL SERVICES TO BE  
PROVIDED BY THE INYO COUNTY COUNSEL’S OFFICE 

TO THE EASTERN SIERRA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY (ESCOG) 

 
 This Agreement is entered into by and between the Eastern Sierra Council of 
Governments Joint Powers Authority (“ESCOG”) and the County of Inyo, a political 
subdivision of the State of California (sometimes referred to herein as “the County”). 
 
Recitals: 
 
 A. State law authorizes ESCOG to contract for legal services.  
 
 B. Under Government Code section 26520, which is made applicable to 
county counsels by Government Code section 26529, a county counsel is authorized to 
provide legal services to local public entities, and to charge a fee for such services. 
 
 C. ESCOG wishes to retain legal services from Inyo County through its 
County Counsel’s Office (as an independent contractor).  The County is willing to 
provide such services on the terms and conditions set forth below. 
 
Terms and Conditions: 
 
 The parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 1. Inyo County shall provide services to ESCOG through the Inyo County 
Counsel’s Office (hereinafter referred to as “the County Counsel”), when and if 
requested by ESCOG.  ESCOG shall be deemed a client of the County Counsel for 
purposes of this Agreement.  Individual attorneys employed by the County in the 
County Counsels’ Office shall at all times remain employees of the County and not 
employees of ESCOG.  All legal services provided shall be through the County as an 
independent contractor.  
 
 2. As compensation for any and all routine legal services provided under 
this Agreement, and any expenses associated therewith, ESCOG shall initially pay the 
County a flat fee of $833.00 per month regardless of the actual amount of services 
provided, which is based on the parties’ good-faith estimate of the County’s average 
monthly costs of providing such services over a typical 12-month period.  Routine legal 
services include “general counsel” services such as legal advice, document 
review/drafting, participation in negotiations, and attendance at ESCOG Board 
meetings; they do not include litigation, arbitrations, administrative proceedings to 
which ESCOG is a party, and hearings related to personnel matters.  Non-routine legal 



 Page 2 of  3 

services would be provided only upon mutual agreement of the ESCOG and the 
County Counsel’s office and would be charged on an hourly basis using the 
then-current billing rate for Inyo County Counsel services ($151 per hour as of the date 
of this Agreement) plus reimbursement of incidental costs and expenses.  On or before 
July 1, 2021, and every July 1st thereafter, the County Counsel and the ESCOG Executive 
Director shall review and discuss whether an adjustment to said monthly compensation 
may be appropriate.  Any agreed-upon adjustments shall be memorialized in writing 
and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.  Invoices for services shall be 
sent to ESCOG in care of its Executive Director or such other individual as ESCOG may 
designate from time to time, on a quarterly basis, or at such other intervals as may be 
mutually agreeable to the parties.  Invoices shall contain descriptions of work 
performed and time spent.  ESCOG shall pay invoices within 30 days of receipt.  
 
 3. The County Counsel’s Office shall notify the parties hereto of any actual 
or potential conflicts of interest that may arise between them as respective clients of the 
County Counsel’s office, and the County Counsel shall endeavor to avoid providing 
any services under this Agreement that would create a conflict.  Nevertheless, in the 
event that a conflict does arise between the County (or any of its boards, commissions, 
officers or employees) on the one hand and ESCOG on the other hand, or if for any 
reason the County Counsel’s office declines to or resigns from providing services to 
ESCOG, then ESCOG agrees that the County Counsel’s Office may thereafter continue 
to act as legal counsel for the County and that the County Counsel’s Office shall not be 
disqualified from representing or otherwise carrying out any of its powers and duties 
on behalf of the County.  
 
 4. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until terminated by 
any party, without cause, by supplying 30 days’ written notice of termination to the 
other party.  Either party may also terminate this agreement at any time for cause, 
through oral or written notice to the other party (effective immediately). 
 
 5. ESCOG acknowledges that it has been or has had the opportunity to be 
represented by separate legal counsel with respect to the negotiation and preparation of 
this Agreement or has knowingly waived its right to do so, and that it is fully aware of 
the contents of this Agreement and of its legal effect.  Thus, any ambiguities in this 
Agreement shall not be resolved in favor of or against either party.  ESCOG specifically 
acknowledges that the County Counsel has only represented the County with respect to 
the negotiation and preparation of this Agreement and that ESCOG has consented to 
such representation and has knowingly and voluntarily waived any actual or potential 
conflict associated with such representation.  
 
 6. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no 
representations, inducements, promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties 



 Page 3 of  3 

not embodied herein or incorporated herein by reference, shall be of any force or effect.  
Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, or 
terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto. 
 
 
 
Execution: 
 
 This Agreement shall be deemed entered into as of April 1, 2020, regardless of 
when actually approved or executed by the parties hereto. 
 
EASTERN SIERRA COUNCIL OF  COUNTY OF INYO, a political 
GOVERNMENTS, a joint powers authority subdivision of the State of California 
 
By:_________________________________  By:___________________________ 
      Stacy Corless, Chair         Matt Kingsley, Chair 
      ESCOG Board of Directors          County Board of Supervisors 



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:  Ashley Helms 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution and Notice of Completion for the Bishop Library Exterior Coating Removal Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Resolution No. 2020-26 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Inyo, State of California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Bishop Library Exterior 
Coating Removal Project," and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
At the April 21, 2020 meeting of the Board of Supervisors, your Board awarded the construction contract for the 
Bishop Library Exterior Coating Removal Project (Project) to Blasting and Coatings Enterprises Inc. of Canyon 
Country, CA, in the amount of $27,320.50.  The final construction contract amount (not including construction 
engineering/inspection) is $30,820.50.  

Blasting and Coatings Enterprises Inc. completed the work for the Project on May 16, 2020.  The project work 
consisted of removing the failing elastomeric coating by sandblasting.  On May 16, 2020 the final inspection was 
performed and the improvements were determined to be complete to the satisfaction of the Public Works 
Director.  Accordingly, the Public Works Department is requesting that the Board adopt the attached Resolution, 
which accepts the improvements and authorizes the Public Works Director to record a Notice of Completion for 
the project.

In addition to formally accepting the work, the recordation of the Notice of Completion begins the 30 day period 
during which stop notices may be placed against the work.  In the event that no stop notices are filed, the 
retention shall be returned to the Contractor.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the resolution.  Consequently, the project would not be formally accepted 
and the Notice of Completion (NOC) could not be filed. This is not recommended, as it will extend the period 
during which stop notices can be submitted and will delay release of retention to the Contractor.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

N/A
 
FINANCING:
The costs for construction were be paid through budget unit 011501: Deferred Maintenance, object code 5191: 
Maintenance of Structures.  This project is included in the FY 2019/2020 Deferred Maintenance list.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Proposed Resolution No. 2020-26
2. Notice of Completion
 
APPROVALS:
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 5/29/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/29/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/29/2020
Michael Errante Approved - 6/1/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 6/1/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/1/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 6/1/2020



RESOLUTION #2020 - __

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF THE

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA
AUTHORIZING THE RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION

FOR THE
Bishop Library Exterior Coating Removal Project 

WHEREAS, Michael Errante, Director of the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo, has 
determined that the County Buildings Roofing Project has been completed by Blasting and Coatings Enterprises 
Inc. of Canyon Country, California in accordance with the project specifications.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Public Works is hereby authorized 
and directed to sign and file with the County Recorder a separate Notice of Completion pertaining to the Bishop 
Library Exterior Coating Removal Project.

Passed, approved and adopted this              day of                                 , 2020 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Clint Quilter, Clerk

by 
Assistant Clerk of the Board



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

Inyo County Public Works Department
P. O. Drawer Q
Independence, CA 93515

                                                                                               The area above this line is for Recorder’s Use

NOTICE OF COMPLETION    

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1. A work of improvement known as the    Bishop Library Exterior Coating Removal Project on the property 
hereinafter described was completed on   May 16, 2020    and was accepted by the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors on                                .

2. The properties on which the   Bishop Library Exterior Coating Removal Project has been completed are 
located at 210 Academy Ave, Bishop, CA.

3.   The County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the address of which is 224 North
Edwards Street, P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526, owns and maintains the Bishop Library.

4.  The undersigned Michael Errante is the Director of Public Works of the County of Inyo and has been duly 
authorized pursuant to Resolution adopted _____________, by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo to 
execute and file this Notice of Completion.

5. The name of the original contractor that constructed the Bishop Library Exterior Coating Removal Project 
pursuant to the construction contract with the owner is Blasting and Coatings Enterprises Inc. of Canyon 
Country, California.

Pursuant to the contract, the contractor was required to furnish all labor, materials, methods or processes, 
implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation services, and all other items and related functions that 
are necessary or appurtenant to construct the project designated in the purchase order.

COUNTY OF INYO

Dated: _________________________ By: 
       Michael Errante, Director of Public Works



VERIFICATION

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)  SS.

COUNTY OF INYO )

I, Michael Errante, hereby declare: That I am the Director of Public Works for the County of 
Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the public entity on behalf of which I 
executed the foregoing NOTICE OF COMPLETION for the Bishop Library Exterior Coating 
Removal Project, and which entity is the owner of the aforesaid interest or estate in the property 
therein described; that I am authorized by the public entity to execute this NOTICE on the 
entity's behalf; that I am authorized to and hereby make this verification on behalf of the public 
entity; and that I have read said NOTICE and know the contents thereof. I declare under penalty 
of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the NOTICE and the information set 
forth therein are true and correct.

Dated: ____________________________________
Michael Errante



County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request the Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and the Inyo Local Agency Formation 
Commission to provide staff services in the amount not to exceed $14,464.80 for the period of July 1, 2020 
through June 30, 2021, contingent upon the Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget; authorize the 
Chairperson to sign; and, direct the Planning Department and County Counsel to provide services as outlined in 
the contract.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Inyo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) contracts with the Inyo County Planning Department for 
the services of LAFCO Executive Officer and support staff.  The Commission contracts with the Inyo County 
Office of County Counsel for legal services.  A single contract between Inyo LAFCO and the County of Inyo 
Planning Department covers both staff and counsel services. Inyo LAFCO has budgeted $14,464.80 in Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2020-2021 for staff and counsel services. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could not approve the contract and not direct staff to provide services to Inyo LAFCO as outlined in 
the contract. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
The Inyo LAFCO FY 2020-2021 Final Budget proposes both the City of Bishop and Inyo County contribute 
$10,000 in funding for the Inyo LAFCO FY 2020-2021 Budget.  Other expenses will be provided for by fund 
balance. Funds are expended through the LAFCO Budget (451001), Professional Services & Fees (5265).  
Revenues are realized in the Planning Budget (023800) and the County Counsel Budget (010700), LAFCO Fees 
Revenue Code (4817). 
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. FY 2020-2021 LAFCo Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 5/6/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/6/2020
Cathreen Richards Approved - 6/1/2020
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 6/1/2020























County of Inyo

Public Works - Road Dept.
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
SUBJECT:  Request authorization to purchase 30,000 pounds of glass beads for traffic striping 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Interstate Sales of Auburn, CA the successful bidder for 30,000 pounds of reflective 
glass beads (Type II) per Bid No. RD2020-04; and B) authorize the purchase of 30,000 pounds of reflective glass 
beads from Interstate Sales of Auburn, CA in an amount not to exceed $13,260.25.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:

The Road Department solicited bids from suppliers of glass beads for application in conjunction with traffic 
striping in May, 2020 for upcoming pavement marking maintenance work to be completed under the SB-1 
program during the 2020 season.  The glass beads provide for retro-reflectivity of the traffic markings.  The 2020 
season needs were estimated to be at approximately 30,000 pounds of this material.  Bids were opened on June 
3rd, 2020, and two bids were received:

Interstate Sales of Auburn, CA                                                                                           $13,260.25

Swarco Reflex LLC of Mexia, TX                                                                                          $13,414.88

The Road Department has reviewed the bids received for responsiveness.
 
The Road Department is recommending your Board authorize the purchase of 30,000 pounds of glass 
beads from Interstate Sales, to be delivered to the Inyo County Road Yard at 750 South Clay Street, 
Independence, CA. The total expense, including delivery and taxes, is not to exceed $13,260.25.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended, as the materials are needed 
to perform necessary pavement marking maintenance on Inyo County roads.  If the purchase is not approved, 
the Road Department would need to re-advertise the Bid Package which would delay maintenance work and 
could result in less favorable bids.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
Auditor
 
FINANCING:
The funding for retro-reflective glass beads to be used in road marking maintenance will be paid from the Road 
Department Budget 034600, Object Code 5309 - Road Materials.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bid Tab
 
APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor Created/Initiated - 5/18/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/20/2020
Trevor Taylor Approved - 6/3/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 6/3/2020
Chris Cash Approved - 6/3/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 6/3/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/4/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 6/4/2020



Project Title & Bid No. Glass Beads Bid No. RD2020-04

Bid Opening Date: June 3, 2020

COUNTY OF INYO BID TABULATION

Location: County Admin Center

I -Ge r*mo-^ ala,2w.F N/A

2 Swcu co 8,nEtey ?l5,HH.3g

-t

4

5

6.

7

8

9

10.

Trttul Bid
llondBIDDEII N.4ME

Opened By is

Present. YYln nirn Tn tin

Interstate Sales_______________



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:  Ashley Helms 
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment 3 to the contract with TEAM Inc, of Bishop, CA. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 3 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and TEAM Engineering 
Inc. of Bishop,CA, increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $82,000 and extending the term end date 
from June 30, 2020 to February 28, 2021, contingent upon the Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
Budget; and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On November 7, 2017, your Board approved the contract between Inyo County and TEAM Inc, for Environmental 
Services for assistance with developing a Routine Maintenance Agreement (RMA) with the California Department 
of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW).   TEAM has completed the majority of the scope included in the original contract, 
and the agreement with CDFW is nearly complete.  Task 5 in the initial contract included the preparation of a 
compliance guide for the Inyo County Road Department after the RMA was completed.  
After review of the draft RMA from CDFW, Public Works would like to modify Task 5 to the contract, extend the 
contract end date to February 28, 2021, and increase the not to exceed amount by $15,000.  This contract has 
two previous amendments, neither of which increased the not to exceed limit.
Amendment 3 removes the original scope of Task 5, and adds the following scope, to be used on an as needed 
basis:

 Creation of a training program to satisfy the annual training requirement of the RMA.  This training will be 
administered to the Road Department staff each year.

 Attend meetings with Inyo County staff during the initial 6 months of the new Agreement, to address any 
issues with permit compliance early on (limit 3 meetings).

 Attend meetings with Inyo County staff and CDFW during initial 6 months, as needed, to address 
compliance issues (limit 2 meetings).

 Complete portions of the Annual Report, for submittal to CDFW by January 31, 2021.
 Complete biological surveys if avoidance measures included in the RMA cannot be implemented and 

certain road maintenance activities (not anticipated).

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
11/7/2017 - Contract Awarded to TEAM Inc
7/10/2018 - Amendment 1, added staff to sub-consultants Schedule of Fees
12/6/2019 - Amendment 2, extended the contract end date to June 30, 2020
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve this amendment, and direct Inyo County staff to complete the work, this 
is not recommended, because current staff does not have the background necessary to complete some of the 
work.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
CDFW
 
FINANCING:
This contract is paid out of Budget 034600 (Road), object code 5265 (Professional Services).  Adequate funding 
exists in this object code for the remainder of the fiscal year, and this funding is included in the rollover budget for 
FY 20/21.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. TEAM Amendment 3
2. TEAM Engineering Contract
3. TEAM Engineering Contract Amendment 1
4. TEAM Engineering Contract Amendment 2
 
APPROVALS:
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 5/26/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/26/2020
Ashley Helms Approved - 6/2/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 6/2/2020
Michael Errante Approved - 6/2/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 6/2/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/3/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 6/3/2020



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with TEAM 
Amendment 3 

Page 1 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    3    TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

   TEAM ENGINEERING AND MANAGEMENT    
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and     TEAM Engineering and 

Management  of     Bishop, CA      (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), have entered into an Agreement for 
the provision of engineering services dated    November 7, 2017    , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, 
for the term from    November 7, 2017    to    June 30, 2020. 
 

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and 
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain 
continuity. 
 

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below. 
 

1. Section 3D, Limit upon amount payable under Agreement.  The first sentence is revised as 
follows: “The total sum of all payments made by the County to Consultant for services and work 
performed under this Agreement shall not exceed eighty two thousand dollars ($82,000.00) 
(hereinafter referred to as “Contract limit”). 

2. Attachment A to the Contract, Scope of Work, shall be revised to include the additional tasks 
described Attachment A-3 to the Contract. 

3. The term of the agreement is extended to February 28, 2021. 
 
The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is     June 9, 2020      . 
 
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with TEAM 
Amendment 3 

Page 2 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    3    TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

      TEAM ENGINEERING AND MANAGEMENT     
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
            DAY OF                                  , 2020. 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONTRACTOR 
 
 
By:        By:        
 
Dated:        Dated:        
 
        
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND    
     LEGALITY:  
 
 
       
County Counsel 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING 
     FORM: 
 
 
       
County Auditor 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with TEAM 
Amendment 3 

Page 3 
 

ATTACHMENT A-3 
 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 
    Team Engineering and Management (TEAM)      

FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 

 
 

TERM: 
 
 

FROM: ___November 7, 2017___ TO: ___June 30, 2020___ 
 
 

SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
 

This Amendment removes the original scope of Task 5– Preparation of Road Department Guide, and 
adds the following scope, to be used on an as needed basis: 

• Creation of a training program to satisfy the annual training requirement of the RMA.  This 
training will be administered to the Road Department staff each year. 

• Attend meetings with Inyo County staff during the initial 6 months of the new Agreement, to 
address any issues with permit compliance early on (limit 3 meetings). 

• Attend meetings with Inyo County staff and CDFW during initial 6 months, as needed, to 
address compliance issues (limit 2 meetings). 

• Complete portions of the Annual Report, for submittal to CDFW by January 31, 2021. 
• Complete biological surveys if avoidance measures included in the RMA cannot be implemented 

and certain road maintenance activities (not anticipated). 
 
 

 



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with TEAM 
Amendment 3 

Page 4 
 

ATTACHMENT B-3 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 
   TEAM ENGINEERING AND MANAGEMENT(TEAM)  

FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 
     

 
 

TERM: 
 
 

FROM: ___November 7, 2017___ TO: ___December 31th, 2018___ 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 
 
Payment for the rates and costs identified in Attachment B to the contract shall constitute full compensation for 
providing all services, labor, and equipment for the work included in Attachment A-3 to the contract.   
 
The total compensation to be provided shall not exceed the total Contract amount, subject to such adjustments as 
may be made by properly approved amendments. 
 



































































County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with TEAM 
Amendment 1 

Page 1 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    1    TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

   TEAM ENGINEERING AND MANAGEMENT    
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and     TEAM Engineering and 

Management  of     Bishop, CA      (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), have entered into an Agreement for 
the provision of engineering services dated    November 7, 2017    , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, 
for the term from    November 7, 2017    to    December 31, 2018. 
 

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and 
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain 
continuity. 
 

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below. 
  

1. Attachment B to the Contract, Schedule of Fee’s is amended for the sub-consultant, Wood, PLC is included as 
Attachment B1 to the Contract. 

 
The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is     July 10, 2018      . 
 
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same. 







County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156 with TEAM 
Amendment No. 1 

Page 4 

ATTACHMENT B1 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 
   TEAM ENGINEERING AND MANAGEMENT(TEAM)  

FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 
     

 
 

TERM: 
 
 

FROM: ___November 7, 2017___ TO: ___December 31th, 2018___ 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 
 
Payment for the rates and costs identified herein shall constitute full compensation for providing all services, 
labor, equipment, materials, and other incidentals necessary to perform all work described in Attachment A of the 
original Contract, Scope of Work. 
 
The Schedule of Fee’s shown in this Attachment B1 contains the rates of compensation for Wood, PLC, the sub-
consultant to TEAM. The total compensation to be provided shall not exceed the total Contract amount, subject to 
such adjustments as may be made by properly approved amendments. 











County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - EMCC
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Presentation of the Annual EMS Provider of the Year award 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve a proclamation titled, "Proclamation of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, 
Honoring Carl Dennett as the Inyo County 2020 EMS Provider of the Year;" and B) present the proclamation to 
Carl Dennett.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Emergency Medical Care Committee (EMCC) is comprised of representatives from Local hospitals and EMS 
providers throughout the County.  The emergency medical care providers include individuals who are Emergency 
Medical Technicians (EMT) and ambulance drivers who respond in the community when help is needed.  The 
Annual EMS Provider of the Year award was created in 1999 to honor local emergency medical providers, in the 
hope that through the establishment of this prestigious award, people will be encouraged to become local EMT 
providers.  This year, the EMCC selected Southern Inyo Fire Protection District's retired Fire Chief and first 
responder, Carl Dennett as the 2020 EMS Provider of the Year.  The Department respectfully requests your 
Board approve the proclamation naming Carl Dennett the 2020 EMS Provider of the Year.  

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
NA
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The Emergency Medical Care Committee is comprised of representatives from local hospitals and EMS 
providers.
 
FINANCING:
There is no fiscal impact associated with this action.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2020 EMS Provider of the Year
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

APPROVALS:
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 5/23/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/25/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 5/26/2020



Commemorating the  
100 Mules Walking the Los Angeles Aqueduct 

 
     Whereas, in commemoration of the 100th Anniversary of the Los Angeles Aqueduct, artist 
Lauren Bon, the Metabolic Studio, and mule wranglers mostly from Inyo County, took 100 
mules from the Intake in the Owens Valley to the Cascades in Los Angeles, in recognition of the 
essential labor force used in the building of the Aqueduct; and 

     Whereas, the walk commenced on October 18, 2013 traveling the length of the Aqueduct 
through Inyo, Kern, and Los Angeles counties, culminating at the Cascades on November 5, 
2013, 100 years to the day from the date William Mulholland opened the gates delivering 
Owens River watershed water to the City of Los Angeles; and 

     Whereas, this project raised awareness of the mules, water source, and the direct line 
between Inyo County and the City of Los Angeles, highlighting how their history and futures 
are intertwined; and 

     Whereas, without the reliability, strength, and endurance of the mule, the Aqueduct could 
not have been built; and  

     Whereas, the mules were all obtained in Inyo County thanks to the Eastern Sierra packing 
industry, with most of the staff, equipment, and mule gear coming from the Eastern Sierra, 
including 17 trucks hauling everything from a mobile kitchen, to mule gear, corrals, hay, 
water and supplies; and  

     Whereas without the support, vision, and determination of Lauren Bon, the Metabolic 
Studio, and Lee and Jennifer Roeser of Independence, this historic and memorable event would 
not have been possible; and  

     Whereas  on November 11, 2013, the Great American Mules marched strong and proud, so 
fittingly honoring the defenders of our freedoms, at the Veterans Parade in the City of 
Glendale, and after many photographic opportunities at Griffith Park and the L.A. State 
Historic Park, the 100 mules and their wrangler team headed home to the Owens Valley to a 
heartwarming welcome home tribute in Bishop, not only the “Mule Capital of the World” but 
the home of Bishop Mule Days Celebration, and the future home of the American Mule 
Museum. 

     Now therefore be it proclaimed the Inyo County Board of Supervisors thanks the artist 
Lauren Bon, the Metabolic Studio, and Lee and Jennifer Roeser, for raising awareness of the 
importance of the mule to the history of the Owens Valley, congratulates all those who 
embraced the true pioneer spirit, blazing new trails of understanding and possibilities,  and 
commemorates this highly creative and innovative living art exhibit:  

 

“100 Mules Walking the Los Angeles Aqueduct,”  
     
     Passed and proclaimed  this 17th day of December, 2013, by the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors. 
                                                              
 ________________________________________________________________ 
 Linda Arcularius, Chairperson Board of Supervisors  

A PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, HONORING CARL DENNETT  

AS INYO COUNTY 2020 EMS PROVIDER OF THE YEAR 
  

Whereas, the Inyo County Emergency Medical Care Committee, dedicated to the preservation and 
improvement of the local EMS program throughout Inyo County, created the Annual EMS Provider of the 
Year Award; and 
           

Whereas, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors strongly supports the efforts of its EMS providers 
throughout Inyo County and is pleased to join with the other members of our Community in honoring the 
brave men and women who volunteer their time to help keep their loved ones, friends, neighbors, and our 
visitors safe in times of emergencies; and  
  

Whereas, Carl Dennett joined the Southern Inyo Fire Protection District in August of 2011; and  
  

Whereas, Carl served as Administrative Chief, Head EMT, held an Advanced EMT certification, responded to 
fire calls as a firefighter and was a lead instructor in training new EMT recruits; and  
  

Whereas, Carl has demonstrated commitment to his role as a volunteer to his community and who, as a 
leader in the Department, devoted much of his personal time to the Department addressing the wide-range 
of administrative functions, ensuring that the Department followed the multitudes of rules and regulations, 
and recruiting new volunteers; and  
          

Whereas, Carl has worked diligently to establish a fire station in Charleston View and continues to advocate 
on behalf of the station’s development; and 
  

Whereas, Carl has been an integral member of the Southern Inyo Fire Protection District, motivating others 
through his actions and example, and earning the respect of his fellow Inyo County EMS volunteers as 
evidenced by being named the EMS Volunteer of the Year in 2016 and being awarded the Meritorious 
Service Award by the California EMS System in 2016;   
  

Now, Therefore, Be It Proclaimed, this 9th day of June, 2020, that the Inyo County Board of Supervisors in 
recognition of the dedicated service Carl Dennett has given to the Southern Inyo Fire Protection District, is 
proud to join with the Emergency Medical Care Committee in honoring Carl Dennett as the Inyo County 
2020 EMS Provider of the Year; extends its congratulations, heartfelt appreciation and thanks to Carl 
Dennett for his dedication and personal commitment to the citizens of Inyo County; and commends him on 
being a shining example of what it means to be a volunteer.   
 

                                                                                                       

 
 
 

Matt Kingsley, Chairperson, District 5 
 
 
 



Commemorating the  
100 Mules Walking the Los Angeles Aqueduct 

 
     Whereas, in commemoration of the 100th Anniversary of the Los Angeles Aqueduct, artist 
Lauren Bon, the Metabolic Studio, and mule wranglers mostly from Inyo County, took 100 
mules from the Intake in the Owens Valley to the Cascades in Los Angeles, in recognition of the 
essential labor force used in the building of the Aqueduct; and 

     Whereas, the walk commenced on October 18, 2013 traveling the length of the Aqueduct 
through Inyo, Kern, and Los Angeles counties, culminating at the Cascades on November 5, 
2013, 100 years to the day from the date William Mulholland opened the gates delivering 
Owens River watershed water to the City of Los Angeles; and 

     Whereas, this project raised awareness of the mules, water source, and the direct line 
between Inyo County and the City of Los Angeles, highlighting how their history and futures 
are intertwined; and 

     Whereas, without the reliability, strength, and endurance of the mule, the Aqueduct could 
not have been built; and  

     Whereas, the mules were all obtained in Inyo County thanks to the Eastern Sierra packing 
industry, with most of the staff, equipment, and mule gear coming from the Eastern Sierra, 
including 17 trucks hauling everything from a mobile kitchen, to mule gear, corrals, hay, 
water and supplies; and  

     Whereas without the support, vision, and determination of Lauren Bon, the Metabolic 
Studio, and Lee and Jennifer Roeser of Independence, this historic and memorable event would 
not have been possible; and  

     Whereas  on November 11, 2013, the Great American Mules marched strong and proud, so 
fittingly honoring the defenders of our freedoms, at the Veterans Parade in the City of 
Glendale, and after many photographic opportunities at Griffith Park and the L.A. State 
Historic Park, the 100 mules and their wrangler team headed home to the Owens Valley to a 
heartwarming welcome home tribute in Bishop, not only the “Mule Capital of the World” but 
the home of Bishop Mule Days Celebration, and the future home of the American Mule 
Museum. 

     Now therefore be it proclaimed the Inyo County Board of Supervisors thanks the artist 
Lauren Bon, the Metabolic Studio, and Lee and Jennifer Roeser, for raising awareness of the 
importance of the mule to the history of the Owens Valley, congratulates all those who 
embraced the true pioneer spirit, blazing new trails of understanding and possibilities,  and 
commemorates this highly creative and innovative living art exhibit:  

 

“100 Mules Walking the Los Angeles Aqueduct,”  
     
     Passed and proclaimed  this 17th day of December, 2013, by the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors. 
                                                              
 ________________________________________________________________ 
 Linda Arcularius, Chairperson Board of Supervisors  

A PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, RECOGNIZING  

CARL AND SUZI DENNETT’S SELFLESS CONTRIBUTIONS TO SOUTHEAST INYO COUNTY 
  

Whereas, volunteerism, altruism, kindness, and trusted, fair leadership are all part of the foundation of a healthy, thriving community; and 
 

Whereas, Inyo County proudly enjoys a reputation for spirited community service, philanthropy, and attentiveness in all of its communities, which is 

perhaps most impressively displayed in its small desert communities; and 
 

Whereas, the residents of Tecopa, Shoshone, and Charleston View work hard, work together, care for one another, and champion each other with 

relatively few resources in a vast expanse of land; and 
 

Whereas, Carl and Suzi Dennett are the personification of the dedication, community spirit, and determination on display in these small communities; 

and  
 

Whereas, for more than a decade, the Dennetts devoted considerable time, talents, labor, and personal resources to ensure the health, safety, and 

wellbeing of their neighbors, visitors, and local businesses; and 
 

Whereas, Carl and Suzi have contributed tirelessly to local organizations, causes, fundraisers, and community events – most of it on a purely 

volunteer basis; and  
 

Whereas, both Carl and Suzi have been integral members of the Southern Inyo Fire Protection District since 2006, helping since 2007 to organize 

the SIFPD’s annual fundraisers, as well as cooking, serving up barbecue, and cleaning up afterwards, gathering prizes, and working booths; and 
 

Whereas, Carl embarked on a mission to build a thriving SIFPD, first as administrator and most recently as chief, working hard to recruit and retain 

personnel, secure funding for equipment and expenses, and train volunteers to become certified EMTs; and  
 

Whereas, Suzi was right there alongside him, serving as clerk for the SIFPD Board of Directors and putting her heart, soul, and considerably sharp 

mind in to working with Carl to overcome the challenges presented by operating an organization that is always balanced on the financial edge; and 
 

Whereas, for the last 12 years, Suzi has joined Carl’s efforts with the Emergency Medical Care Committee to address critical staffing shortages – 

with the Dennetts often volunteering to travel to volunteer fire departments throughout the county to host EMT certification courses; and 
 

Whereas, Suzi would go the extra mile for students, getting to know them personally and helping them succeed by offering unwavering support; and 
 

Whereas, her support of the District also included delivering food, water, and coffee to volunteers in the field at all times of the day and night, as well 

as working on other fundraisers over the years that included a recycling project and T-shirt sales; and  
 

Whereas, while Carl was running the District, Suzi was enthusiastically networking as she represented the SIFPD in a way that not only brought in 

donations, but earned the District friends; and 
 

Whereas, there was seemingly no distance or inconvenience that would stop either of the Dennetts from contributing to the greater good, 

participating in local government, and advocating for causes and projects they believed would benefit Southeast Inyo County and the county as a 

whole; and 
 

Whereas, much of this advocacy was made in the Chambers of the Board of Supervisors – almost 200 miles from Tecopa – where they made 

frequent appearances to address their elected officials on behalf of the fire district, local businesses, and themselves as private citizens, on issues 

ranging from groundwater to desert protection legislation to cannabis; and 
 

Whereas, Suzi, as Executive Director of the Death Valley Chamber of Commerce, invested much energy and many hours in assisting visitors, 

supporting small businesses, and promoting Southeast Inyo’s attractions and resources; and 
 

Whereas, Suzi and Carl could always be counted on to step up as leaders or volunteers for various community projects, including the water kiosk in 

Tecopa, the construction and maintenance of which was overseen by Carl; and 
 

Whereas, the Dennetts, by virtue of their diligence and vigilance – and by their mere presence – have made Southeast Inyo and the entire County of 

Inyo a better place to live and visit. 
 

Now, Therefore, Be It Proclaimed, this 9th day of June, 2020, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors acknowledges and thanks, with its deepest and 

most heartfelt gratitude, Carl and Suzi Dennet for their many years of service to the residents and visitors of Inyo County, and wishes them a fond 

farewell as they embark on what this Board hopes will be a healthy, happy, and rewarding new chapter in their lives.  

  
  

 

Matt Kingsley, Chairperson, District 5 

 
 
 
 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - ESAAA
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of ESAAA Four-Year Plan for Services in Inyo and Mono Counties 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board:
A) approve the 2020-2024 Area Plan for Services for Planning and Services Area 16 (Inyo and Mono Counties); 
B) set the minimum percentages for the subcategory of Supportive Services as recommended by the Advisory 
Council (50% for access, 10% for legal services, and 5% for in-home services); and
C) authorize the Chairperson to sign the required Transmittal Letter.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Every four years, the local Area Agency on Aging is required to conduct an extensive needs assessment of 
regional seniors, including those living in long-term care facilities, as well as needs of caregivers and 
subsequently prepare a Four-Year Plan for service provision in the Planning and Service Area (PSA) of Inyo and 
Mono Counties.   The development of the Plan and the prioritization and targeting of services is informed by an 
analysis of the Needs Assessment, the population density of the target population, including how high priority 
populations such as low-income, isolated seniors are disbursed throughout the PSA. Issues such as 
geographical service area size, including time and distance required to provide services is also considered.    

The Needs Assessment analysis, as well as the population demographics, information on how priority 
populations are disbursed throughout the region, and the rate service penetration base on utilization trends were 
were reviewed at the May 28, 2020 public hearing held during the Advisory Council meeting.  Based on the data 
points provided, the Advisory Council voted to recommend maintaining the same minimum percentage levels if 
50% for Access, which provides for transportation (bus passes), assisted transportation, and information and 
assistance; 10% for legal services; and 5% for in-home services which is provided in the PSA with telephone 
reassurance calls.  

Although the allocation for the supportive services funding (Title IIIB) is less than $100,000 for FY 2020-2021, the 
Advisory Council voted to also recommend maintaining the funding level for legal services above 10% to ensure 
issues such as appeals for benefits and assistance with evictions and other financial issues can be provided 
given that slightly over 30% of needs survey respondents identified a lack of financial resources as a concern. 
They continued to recommend focusing the Access monies on transportation and assisted transportation in 
addition to the information and assistance given that accessing medical care and other critical services remained 
a primary concern.  Finally, with regards to in-home services, they recognized the challenge in meeting the 
physical care needs through in-home provision of services with such a small allocation and noted that most of 
those services are available through the In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) program, and not through ESAAA.  



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Because in-home is a required category of service, the Advisory Council again recommended that Telephone 
Reassurance be provided as the in-home service throughout the PSA.

During the Advisory Council meeting, the drafted Four-Year Area Plan was presented.  Comments from the 
Public Hearing included:

- Neither Program Development nor Program Coordination service units are captured in this Plan as these are 
services not funded by the State 
- It is important for the staff to ensure they are consulting with Mono County regarding needs and 
recommendations
- Staff in both counties, as well as Board of Supervisor members in both counties, have worked hard to foster a 
good, working relationship
- Concern about having flexibility with funding to address the pandemic-related issues as we move forward
- Concern about future funding and potential impacts locally if funding is reduced or one-time only funds are not 
received 

Finally, the Advisory Council, agreed to recommend to your Board that the funding ratio sharing between Inyo 
and Mono counties for the 2020-2024 planning period change as follows:

                               Previous Ratios                     Current Recommended Ratios
 Access:
  Transportation    Inyo - 77%;Mono - 23%               Inyo - 80%;Mono - 20%
  Assisted Trans.   Inyo - 86%;Mono - 14%               Inyo - 86%;Mono - 14%
  Info. & Assist.               20%                                       20%
    (Inyo)
 Legal:     10%+Amount to bring to $20,000                 Same
 In-Home:
   Telephone Reass.         5%                                          5%
 Congregate:     Inyo - 84%;Mono - 16%           Inyo - 84%;Mono - 16%
 Home 
 Delivered:        Inyo - 83%; Mono - 17%          Inyo - 80%; Mono - 20%

Also, note that on page 12 of the Draft Plan, we are required to indicate the Governing Board’s discussion and 
action.  Your copy has a highlighted yellow sentence from the prior 4-Year Plan (2016-2020), which will be 
updated with any further discussion or actions taken.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to modify the area plan and/or not approve the plan.  Should the plan not be approved, 
either as presented or with modification, ESAAA will be out of compliance with State requirements for funding.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Mono County Social Services; California Indian Legal Services
 
FINANCING:
There is no funding involved in this plan
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Final Draft Plan for BOS



Agenda Request 
Page 3

2. Transmittal checklist
3. Transmittal Letter
 
APPROVALS:
Rhiannon Baker Created/Initiated - 5/27/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/27/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/29/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/29/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 6/1/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/1/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 6/2/2020



 

 
 

 
 

EASTERN SIERRA AREA AGENCY ON AGING 
(ESAAA) 

for 
PLANNING & SERVICE AREA (PSA) 16 

 
  

 
2020-2024 AREA PLAN FOR SERVICES 

 
 
 

Submitted by  
 The Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) Program 

of the 
Inyo County Health and Human Services Department 

163 May Street 
Bishop, CA 93514 

760 873-3305 
 
 
 

Inyo County Board of Supervisors/ESAAA Governing Board Chairperson Matt Kingsley 
ESAAA Advisory Council Chairperson Roger Rasche 

ESAAA Director Marilyn Mann 
mmann@inyocounty.us 

 
  
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

mailto:jturner@inyocounty.us


 

Page 2 of 81 
 

 
 
 

SECTION 1.  Mission Statement       PSA 16  
 
The Mission of the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) is to provide leadership 
in addressing issues that relate to older Californians living in the Eastern Sierra region, to 
develop community-based systems of care that provide services which support 
independence within California’s interdependent society, and which protect the quality of 
life of older persons and persons with functional impairments, and to promote citizen 
involvement in the planning and delivery of services. 
 
ESAAA is committed to the vision that older adults live informed, active, healthy and self-
determined lives.  This mission is consistent with the umbrella agency’s mission of 
Strengthening Resilience and Well-Being in our Community. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 81 
 

 
 
 
 
SECTION 2.  Description of the Planning and Service Area 16        PSA 16  
 
Planning and Service Area (PSA) 16, which includes the Counties of Inyo and Mono, is 
located at the eastern edge of California, approximately midway between the northern and 
southern boundaries of the state. The two-county area is a long triangle of which Mono 
County forms the apex and Inyo County the base. The east side of the triangle comprises 
about 300 miles of the California-Nevada border. Kern, San Bernardino, Fresno, Tulare and 
Alpine Counties share borders on the north, south and west. Total area exceeds 13,000 
square miles. The total year-round population is approximately 32,400, but visitors and 
second homeowners double this at certain times of the year.  The total aging population, 
based on most recent census data, is approximately 9,096 individuals aged 60 and older.  

The area can be divided into essentially two geographic regions. The Western portion 
includes the Sierra Nevada Mountain range, which, with its forest, lakes, streams, and ski 
slopes, plays a major role in the resources and economy of the area, attracting outdoors 
enthusiasts for hiking, backpacking, hang gliding, snow skiing, snowboarding, fishing, 
camping and hunting. The Eastern two-thirds of the area is made up essentially of desert 
basins and mountain ranges, featuring the Death Valley National Park. Emphasizing the 
contrasting topography of the area is the fact that the western edge of Inyo County contains 
Mt. Whitney, the highest peak in the United States outside of Alaska, while the eastern 
region includes Death Valley, in which is found the lowest point in the western hemisphere. 
Most of the population of the counties is located along US Highway 395 – in Inyo County’s 
Owens Valley along the base of the Sierra Nevada Mountains, and in the mountain 
communities of Mono County.  Small pockets of population also are found along Highway 
6 in Mono County and, in Inyo County, east of the Death Valley National Park boundary. 
 
This expansive geographic region of over 13,000 square miles, spread out over desert and 
mountain terrain, coupled with the dispersed and diverse population pockets, also provides 
significant constraints and challenges in the delivery of services and in the development of 
overarching systems for services.   
 
As part of a county health and human services agency, ESAAA service delivery in Inyo 
County is carefully braided into other service delivery systems; such braided funding occurs 
also in Mono County service delivery systems, specifically including in both counties: 

• those funded through Social Services such as In-Home Supportive Services and 
Adult Protective Services 

• those funded through Mental Health, including Mental Health Services Act 
 



 

Page 4 of 81 
 

Also, the Inyo County-funded Growing Older, Living with Dignity (IC-GOLD), is a county-
funded nutrition program that works in tandem with IIIC Nutrition Services in the Inyo 
County portion of the PSA.  Congregate meals are served five days a week in Inyo County 
senior centers.  At the two largest centers – Bishop and Lone Pine – ESAAA IIIC meals are 
served four days per week and the meal on the fifth day is provided by IC-GOLD.  The IC-
GOLD days are different days of the week between the two sites, maintaining the provision 
of IIIC meals for five days per week within the PSA.    
 
Similarly, Home-Delivered meals were capped in Inyo County at the maximum allowed 
within the allocated funds, with the option of creating a waiting list, thus allowing for 
Home-Delivered meals to be provided only within the allocation.  The sliding-fee-based IC-
GOLD program is offered to anyone on a waiting list for IIIC meals in the Inyo County part 
of the service area.     
 
Direct services are provided by ESAAA staff in both Inyo and Mono Counties in all funded 
service categories, except for Elderly Nutrition Program services, Transportation, Assisted 
Transportation and Legal Assistance.  A contract with the County of Mono allows Mono 
County employees to provide elderly nutrition, transportation and assisted transportation to 
Mono County elderly; those same services are provided in Inyo County as a direct service 
by ESAAA staff.  A contract with California Indian Legal Services provides legal assistance 
in both Inyo and Mono Counties.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 5 of 81 
 

SECTION 3.  Description of the Area Agency on Aging (AAA)        PSA 16  
 
The Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Agency (ESAAA), re-formed in June of 2012 under the 
governance of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, is organized within the Inyo County 
Health and Human Services Department.  The ESAAA Director, also the Health and Human 
Services (HHS) Director, reports directly to the ESAAA Governing Board, which is also the 
Inyo County Board of Supervisors.  Within the Inyo County Health and Human Services 
(HHS) Department, the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) is the lead aging 
services program within the Aging and Social Services division.   
 
The HHS Department is the largest department within the structure of the County of Inyo, 
and is the largest and lead agency within Inyo County for providing services to older adults.  
The HHS/ESAAA leadership role in serving local residents is implemented through 

• Regular discussion and updates to the Inyo County Board of Supervisors/ESAAA 
Governing Board 

• Weekly planning and coordination of services systems between and among ESAAA, 
Adults Protective Services, In-Home Supportive Services 

• Monthly planning with the leadership of, and coordination of services systems 
between and among ESAAA, Social Services, Behavioral Health, Public Health and 
Prevention 

• Technical assistance as needed to contracted agencies and routine monitoring visits, 
including desk reviews as appropriate 

• Bi-annual coordination of care with executives of local hospitals, residential care 
facilities, Toiyabe Indian Health Care, and other health care entities 

• Bi-annual coordination of care with local transit officials 
• At least quarterly presentations and discussions with the ESAAA Advisory Council 

 
Promotion of the involvement of older individuals, adults with disabilities, and their 
caregivers in developing community-based systems of care is accomplished through 

• regular outreach at seniors centers throughout the region  
• participation in and support for the senior volunteer groups known as the Bishop 

Senior Recreation Committee in Inyo County and the Antelope Valley Volunteers in 
Mono County 

• coordination with the Inyo County Mental Health Nurse team and with the Mental 
Health Wellness Center for outreach to adults with mental health disabilities 

• at least quarterly meetings of the ESAAA Advisory Council whose membership is 
comprised primarily of older adults aged 60 and over with 7 of the 8 current 
membership meeting the age eligibility category 

 
The development of the service delivery systems continues through on-going outreach and 
monitoring of older adults by caregivers and service providers of in-home services and 



 

Page 6 of 81 
 

home-delivered meals, as well as through the Mental Health Services Act-funded Friendly 
Visitor program that provides in-home contacts for shut-ins and isolated older adults in Inyo 
County and the Mono County contracting agency for the population residing in the Mono 
County area of the PSA. The Inyo County Mental Health Nurse will continue to provide 
identified, targeted outreach to seniors as well as training to ESAAA staff to assist in the 
identification of symptoms of emerging mental health concerns; when concerns are 
identified, the older adult is linked to further behavioral health services as needed.   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 7 of 81 
 

SECTION 4.  Planning Process/Establishing Priorities    PSA 16  
 
The planning process involved a Needs Assessment survey printed in English and Spanish 
for older adults living in long-term care facilities, as well as older adults living 
independently within the PSA. (Attachment A)  Survey languages (English and Spanish) 
were chosen to match the demographics of both the long term care facilities and the general 
population.  Surveys were disseminated directly at long-term care facilities with multiple 
follow-up prompts.  Community surveys of needs were distributed in-person at all senior 
center focal points, through home-delivered meals, to family caregivers, through public 
agency (Social Services, Mental Health, Public Health) employees who serve older adults, 
and in the local newspapers.  Additionally, an on-line survey through Survey Monkey was 
advertised through social media and other media outlets to maximize penetration of the 
survey throughout the PSA.   
 
The Needs Assessment surveyed individuals on a wide-range of demographics including 
sexual orientation and gender identity.  Outreach to the specific population was limited by 
the lack of advocacy groups or other outlets targeted to reach members of this community.  
While unable to effectively target outreach to community members who identify as other 
than male or female and express sexual orientation other than heterosexual, the surveys did 
elicit responses from three individuals who identify as either non-binary or transgender, as 
well as 11 individuals who identify as gay, lesbian, bisexual, queer, or questioning, 
indicating a need to better identify ways to outreach to this community.  
 
The community Needs Assessment responses were analyzed and ranked for prioritization 
purposes.  (Attachment A)  Because of historical differences of needs and services within 
the region, specifically between Inyo and Mono counties, the responses and rankings were 
also separated by county.  These rankings informed the prioritization of services, 
particularly within the IIIB allowable categories.   
 
Subsequently, the Needs Assessment results were reviewed and discussed at an ESAAA 
Advisory Council meeting, and served as one data point to inform the Advisory Council 
about their recommendations for establishing the minimum priorities in the IIIB supportive 
services categories.  This data point, combined with demographic distribution of the priority 
population – those with the greatest economic and/or social need with particular attention to 
minority populations and the past penetration level throughout the PSA to meet those needs 
helped inform the priorities for funding and minimum percentages which is discussed later 
in the plan, that the Advisory Council voted to recommend to the Governing Board.    
 
 
 
 



 

Page 8 of 81 
 

SECTION 5. Needs Assessment       PSA 16  
 
Community needs surveys were distributed as outlined above beginning in the month of 
December 2019 through January 2020, with an additional extension through February 8, 
2020 due to an unexpected distribution problem in the south part of the PSA.   The total 
response rate represents approximately 3% of the total over-sixty population in the PSA. 
Aggregate responses from the Community Needs Assessment are included in Attachment 
A and provide an overview of respondent demographics, locations responses originated 
from, and priority needs.  Approximately 61% of responses were generated from individuals 
residing in Inyo County with the remainder coming from Mono County residents.  Only 5% 
of the responses were from caregivers and the vast majority, approximately 85.4% were 
completed by the aging person themselves.    

An analysis of the data highlighted the importance of providing congregate settings and/or 
alternate outreach services to the more remote areas of the PSA.  Needs identified by older 
adults, including those with disability and their caregivers in the PSA, clustered in the 
largest numbers around (1) Isolation in current living situation was identified by 
approximately 20% of respondents (62 responses), as they indicated Social Isolation (43%), 
Geographical Isolation (37%), and/or Cultural Isolation (19%) as a current need; (2) 
transportation concerns, including access to transportation out of the area for medical or 
other social needs was identified by approximately 14% (44 responses); (3) getting help 
with activities of daily living: dressing, eating, bathing, mobility and medication; 
housekeeping activities like cleaning and laundry was identified by about 10.8% (34 
responses); and (4) having enough money to live on as approximately 31% of respondents 
were at or below poverty level. 

The related resources available within the PSA to address those identified needs include: (1) 
Isolation: senior centers, elder outreach, and assessments to help with detecting depression; 
(2) Access to medical and other services: transportation and assisted transportation have 
historically been prioritized IIIB funding areas, providing both bus passes, and staff-assisted 
medical and related transportation services; (3) In-Home Assistance: telephone reassurance 
and connection to services like In Home Supportive Services; and (4) Poverty related 
resources: legal services to assist with appealing SSI or related claims as well as assistance 
with housing practices/evictions.   

The Information and Assistance services also provide support to residents in identifying 
community-based resources to assist in meeting the identified needs and linking individuals 
to the resource.  This includes the county-based services available in both Inyo and Mono 



 

Page 9 of 81 
 

counties including, but not limited to IHSS, CalFresh, Medi-Cal, and Behavioral Health 
Services to address mental health and substance use issues.   

Constraints around addressing needs are a result of the expansive 13,000 plus square miles 
of challenging mountain and desert terrain of the PSA along with the small pockets of 
population spread throughout.  The average population density is just under 2.5 people per 
square mile for the total population with the majority of geo-isolation occurring in the Inyo 
County area where the population density is 1.8 people per square mile compared to the 4.7 
per square mile located in Mono County.    Our funding allocation in any one service area is 
small, and travel time alone, for staff to provide service can consume much of the allocated 
funds.  This is especially highlighted in Inyo County where assisted transportation to 
specialty medical appointments out of the area averages over 200 miles one way as residents 
are often being transported to the Carson City/Reno area to the north or to the Loma 
Linda/Los Angeles area to the south.  This results in higher costs per service unit in the Inyo 
County area of the PSA than in the northern area located in Mono County. 

Where appropriate, telephone information or videoconferencing of information or other 
electronic methods of disseminating information are used to reduce the need for staff to 
travel.  Computer-based options, such as Internet-linked information sharing are available, 
constrained however by the limited knowledge and use of computer-related technology and 
the Internet among many (but not all) older adults, as well as pockets of geography 
throughout the PSA with limited internet access.  

Recommendations for minimum percentages of Title IIIB Supportive funding for Access, 
In-Home, and Legal Services were reviewed by the Advisory Council in the context of both 
the Needs Assessment, the demographic location of high priority populations, and the 
historical penetration of services to difficult to reach areas through reviewing historical 
utilization trends.  Minimum percentages were chosen by the Advisory Council to be 
recommended to the Governing Board, and subsequently adopted by the Governing Board 
as part of their acceptance and approval of this Four-Year Plan.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 10 of 81 
 

SECTION 6. Targeting         PSA 16  
 
The entire PSA is considered rural or frontier and isolated in that the combined population 
is approximately 32,483 residents.  The least isolated from medical and other resource needs 
are the communities of Tecopa and Walker, each of which has some border access to 
medical services in Nevada, although it is much more limiting for residents dependent upon 
Medi-Cal.  While Tecopa and Walker are approximately a six-hour drive from each other, 
they each are within a forty (40) minute drive to the PSA’s closest smaller urban-type areas, 
both of which are located in the State of Nevada., but at opposite ends of the PSA.  By 
adding yet another one-hour drive on either end of those Nevada areas, our older adults can 
then reach either of our closest urban areas of Reno, Nevada or Las Vegas, Nevada.  Our 
most geographically isolated communities are located more central to the PSA, where the 
larger communities of Mammoth Lakes and Bishop are located.  Each of those communities 
has more shopping and medical resources than the other tiny communities along the 
Highway 395 corridor. 
 
According to the 2019 CDA Population Demographic projections by region, approximately 
28% of the PSA population is age 60 and older.  When looking at how the high priority 
populations are disbursed, the data indicates that (1) low-income individuals represent 
approximately 10.9% of the PSA population with 80.9% of them residing in Inyo County; 
(2) 42.5% of people age 60 and older are isolated by geography with approximately 63% of 
them residing in Inyo County, primarily in the more remote south and southeastern areas of 
the county; and (3) individuals age 75 and older, who are more likely to experience declines 
in their physical and mental health, represent approximately 26.4% of the aging population 
with about 79.4% residing in the Inyo County area of the PSA. 
 
The two largest minority groups in the PSA are Native American and Hispanic populations.  
Only approximately 7% of responses (less than 4% for each) were submitted by individuals 
who identified as either Hispanic or Native American.  This is significantly less than their 
respective representation within the PSA’s population of people age 60 and older.    
Approximately 14.4% of the people age 60 or older are minorities with 72.9% of them 
residing in Inyo County. It is important to note, however, that the response rate from the 
Hispanic community was greater during this needs survey, while the response rate from the 
Native American community declined.  The low response rate from both communities, 
however, indicates a need to find additional avenues for outreach and targeting. 
 
The Older Americans Act, the Older Californians Act, and the California Code of 
Regulations require targeting to older individuals with the greatest economic need and 
greatest social need.  The geographical expanse of this region is a significant barrier to 
providing minimally sufficient services to the most isolated, lowest income seniors.      



 

Page 11 of 81 
 

The isolation numbers for any one community are very small AND total population for each 
community also is very small.  Because of the tiny population pockets dispersed over the 
challenging geography, senior center focal points were developed decades ago by the two 
respective Boards of Supervisors in each county.  The location and existing infrastructure of 
those centers have been primary drivers of targeting efforts, based on how the residents of 
the small communities naturally cluster.   
 
In terms of identifying greatest economic need, it is noteworthy that in the 2019 projected 
Census data, the median income for Mono County was reported to be $63,018 and the 
median income for Inyo County was reported to be $52,874 and the 2019 CDA data for 
people age 60 and older reflect the majority who are in greatest economic need are residing 
in the southern part of the PSA located in Inyo County. 
 
The disbursement of high-priority target populations has a greater level of representation in 
the Inyo County area of the PSA, which is taken into consideration along with the needs 
assessment data and penetration of services to meet needs when looking at priority for 
services.  This data is also used to inform the local formulary of how funding is distributed 
and for what services throughout the PSA.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 12 of 81 
 

SECTION 7.  Public Hearings       PSA 16  
 
As part of a noticed Advisory Council meeting, a scheduled Public Hearing on the draft 
Four-Year Plan was held on May 28, 2020 virtually using Zoom with notice being provided 
in the paper at least 30 days prior to the meeting and posted in public locations throughout 
the PSA.   Due to the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, arrangements were made 
with long-term care facilities for remote access by interested residents as an alternative to 
hosting the meeting at the facility as has been done in the past.   
 
Program Development (PD) and Program Coordination (C) activities were discussed.  No 
PD and C comments were received, as these are activities are not performed under the 
contract with California Department of Aging. 
 
The Governing Board relied on the recommendations for ranking of priorities and needs by 
the Advisory Council and the findings from the survey to inform their decisions. 
 

Fiscal 
Year Date Location 

Number 
of 

Attendees 

Presented 
in 

languages 
other 
than 

English?1 
Yes or No 

Was 
hearing 

held 
at a 

Long-
Term 
Care 

Facility?2 
Yes or 

No 
2020-21 05/28/2020 Virtual due to 

COVID-19 17 No No 

2021-22                               
2022-23                               
2023-24                               

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                 
1 A translator is not required unless the AAA determines a significant number of attendees require translation services. 
2 AAAs are encouraged to include individuals in LTC facilities in the planning process, but hearings are not required to be held in LTC facilities. 

mmann
Highlight



 

Page 13 of 81 
 

 
SECTION 8.  Identification of Priorities      PSA 16  
 
In the Community Needs Assessment conducted during the period of December 2019 
through February 2020, needs were identified by older adults, including those with 
disabilities and their caregivers in the PSA.  The largest numbers of responses about needs 
clustered around (1) addressing isolation; (2) assistance with poverty-related issues, 
including having enough money to live on; (3) access to transportation out of the area for 
medical or other needs; and (4) assistance with activities of daily living and incidental 
activities of daily living.   Those identified needs influenced our Advisory Council in 
recommending the targeting of IIIB funds for priority services, but also included Advisory 
Council discussion about adequate proportion of funding towards priority services. 
 
The Advisory Council also considered the population density of persons age 60 and older 
throughout the PSA, as well as the demographic spread of high priority populations across 
the large region.  The percentage of persons age 60 and older has not changed substantially 
since the last area plan and continues to represent over 28% of the PSA population.  
However, seniors are dispersed throughout the entire area.  The population in general, is 
represented by 4.7 persons per square mile in Mono County and 1.8 per square mile in Inyo 
County with many of our older community members residing in those more isolated areas.  
These factors, combined with the knowledge of limited resources to meet needs, were taken 
into consideration when reviewing the area plan and establishing priorities.     
 
This thoughtful consideration of the priority needs, high priority population distribution, and 
limited funding resources led not only to the identification of minimum percentages for 
supportive services, but also led to the Council recommending that the AAA fund legal 
services at an amount greater than the minimum percentage in order to address legal issues 
related to poverty, as well as funding transportation and assisted transportation services, one 
of the identified higher priorities at a level greater than the minimum percentage identified.  
The Council also supported recommending funding of Information and Assistance at a level 
sufficient to meet this mandate in both regions of the PSA.  Finally, although assistance 
with activities of daily living and incidental activities of daily living were identified as a 
higher priority in the needs assessment, the limited funding available to support these 
services did not allow for a significant minimum percentage recommendation.  Instead, the 
Council supported continuing to meet the in-home needs through telephone reassurance and 
having program staff continue their efforts to link low-income, Medi-Cal eligible seniors to 
programming such as In Home Supportive Services. The final recommendations were not 
substantially different than those identified during the last area planning process. 
 
 
 



 

Page 14 of 81 
 

SECTION 9 - Area Plan Narrative Goals and Objectives                       PSA 16                 
 
Goal #1 
 
Goal:  Promote positive physical and mental health outcomes for the aging 
population and their caregivers. 
Rationale:  Most or our aging population concur that remaining in their own 
home is of major importance.  Ensuring that the physical and mental well-being 
needs of our senior population are being addressed help to facilitate this outcome.  
Issues related to meeting the basic nutritional needs of seniors, as well as 
addressing access to health care services were identified as high priorities during 
the ESAAA needs assessment. 
Objectives: Projected  

Start and   
End Dates 

Title III 
B 

Funded  
PD or C 

 
Update Status 

1.1 ESAAA staff will coordinate 
with area service providers to 
conduct regular quarterly meeting 
of providers of aging services 
including the LTC Ombudsman, 
law enforcement and the District 
Attorney, to ensure that identified 
at-risk seniors are connected to 
appropriate resources, as well as 
trends or gaps are identified and 
steps taken to adequately address 
these issues within the community. 

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and 
Ongoing 

  

1.2 ESAAA staff will coordinate 
with the LTC Ombudsman and the 
County-based Social Services 
programs to ensure that training is 
provided to individuals, 
professionals, paraprofessionals and 
volunteers who provide services to 
the aging and dependent adult 
populations on the identification, 
prevention and treatment of elder 
abuse, neglect and exploitation on 
an annual basis.  The continuum of 
training will ensure earlier 

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  



 

Page 15 of 81 
 

identification and intervention of 
abuse and neglect.    
 
1.3 ESAAA staff will coordinate 
with the County-based Social 
Services programs, law 
enforcement, and other aging 
services providers to provide 
relevant training in regards to issues 
impacting the safety of seniors, 
including, but not limited to 
financial abuse, self-neglect, and 
effective interventions.  
 

 
July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

 
 

 

1.4 ESAAA staff will coordinate 
with Behavioral Health Staff to 
provide training to aging services 
employees on issues related to 
recognizing mild to moderate 
depression, substance use or 
medication mismanagement in an 
effort to support early detection and 
intervention. 

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  

1.5 ESAAA staff will coordinate 
with Behavioral Health Staff and 
nutrition program staff to issue a 
quarterly newsletter focused on the 
wellness.  Aging issues related to 
nutrition education to overall 
emotional and physical wellbeing 
will be provided.  

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  

1.6 ESAAA staff will coordinate 
with County-based aging and social 
service programs to ensure that 
home-based services designed to 
support the aging population to stay 
safely in their own home are 
available.    

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  

1.7 ESAAA staff will maintain 
congregate meal sites, providing 
basic nutrition services, as well as a 

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  



 

Page 16 of 81 
 

resource for socialization and 
information in an effort to support 
physical and emotional wellness. 
1.8 ESAAA staff will ensure home 
delivered nutrition services are 
available to the frail and isolated 
aging population.  

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  

1.9 ESAAA staff, in coordination 
with HHS Prevention staff, will 
provide Wellness Initiative for 
Senior Education (WISE), an 
evidence-based, curriculum-based 
health promotion program that aims 
to help older adults increase their 
knowledge and awareness of issues 
related to health and the aging 
process. WISE is approved by the 
SAMHSA’s national Registry of 
Evidence-based Programs and 
Practices (NREPP) and the 
Administration for Community 
Living’s Aging and Disability 
Evidence-Based Programs and 
Practices (ADEPP). Staff will 
conduct quarterly session 
throughout the PSA, in an effort to 
help older adults celebrate healthy 
aging, make healthy lifestyle 
choices and avoid substance abuse.      

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and 
Ongoing 

  

1.10 ESAAA, in coordination with 
aging and social services programs, 
will ensure caregivers are connected 
to supportive services. 

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and 
Ongoing 

  

1.11 ESAAA’s LTC Ombudsman 
will actively monitor the ability of 
local long term care facilities, in 
context of affiliation with poorly 
funded rural hospitals, to remain 
viable in their ability to provide 
quality care to area residents.   

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and 
Ongoing 

  

1.12 ESAAA, in coordination with July 2020 –   



 

Page 17 of 81 
 

aging and social services programs, 
will identify isolated, home-bound 
aging persons who could benefit 
from regular and routine contact to 
ensure their general health and well-
being needs are being met.   

June 2024 
and 
Ongoing 

Goal #2 
 
Goal: Maintain a minimum level of access to services, including health care 
services and local support services to the aging population throughout our 
communities. 
Rationale:  Communities throughout both Inyo and Mono counties are isolated 
from many support services, including access to primary health care services, 
pharmacies and grocery vendors.  Specialized care is often not locally available, 
requiring our older adults to travel to urban areas in southern California, as well as 
southern and northern Nevada. This issue continues to be identified as one of the 
highest priorities for our aging population across both counties. 
Objectives: Projected  

Start and   
End Dates 

Title III 
B 

Funded  
PD or C 

 
Update Status 

2.1 ESAAA staff will coordinate 
with County-Based social service 
programs, such as IHSS to address 
the caregiving and transportation 
needs of seniors in an effort to 
promote access to health care 
services, both locally and out of the 
area. 

July 2020 – 
June 2024 

  

2.2 ESAAA will coordinate with 
county and city agencies, as well as 
community based agencies and 
local hospitals to identify additional 
resources to support access to 
medical and other support services. 

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  

2.3 ESAAA staff will coordinate 
with other service organizations to 
ensure that a continuum of services 
are available and will provide 
information and assistance services 
to ensure access to information is 

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  



 

Page 18 of 81 
 

readily available to the aging 
population.  
2.4 ESAAA staff will coordinate 
with and ensure appropriate 
referrals are made to HICAP in 
order to help seniors address their 
medical coverage issues and remove 
any barriers to health care services. 

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  

 
2.5 ESAAA staff will coordinate 
with the Governing Board and the 
Advisory Council to monitor the 
needs of our aging population 
throughout the planning area and 
assess the available opportunities to 
reach those who are underserved. 

 
July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  

2.6 ESAAA staff will monitor 
changing state and federal policies 
and will coordinate with the 
Governing Board and Advisory 
Council to ensure issues related to 
adequate access to health care and 
support services remain a focus of 
policymakers.  

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  

Goal #3 
 
Goal:  Strengthen the service delivery system to proactively address unmet needs. 
Rationale:  Both Inyo and Mono Counties have aging populations living in areas 
that are isolated from the primary service delivery systems.  In general, the aging 
population throughout the entire region has limited access to the wide range of 
medical and support services found in larger communities.  Ensuring adequate 
information and referral services are available to all community members and 
actively identifying methods to fill gaps in services continues to be identified as 
an area of focus throughout the planning area.  
Objectives: Projected  

Start and   
End Dates 

Title III 
B 

Funded  
PD or C 

 
Update Status 

3.1 ESAAA staff will identify 
resources to meet identified needs in 
both the private and public sectors, 

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  



 

Page 19 of 81 
 

ensuring that the resources are 
updated at least annually. 
3.2 ESAAA staff will utilize public 
information mechanisms to ensure 
that the aging population, their 
caregivers and service providers are 
aware of the resources available to 
meet identified needs.  

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and Ongoing 

  

3.3 ESAAA staff will maintain 
resource information and 
disseminate information through 
multiple distribution modes, 
including web-based access. 

July 2020 – 
June 2024 
and 
Ongoing 

  

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 20 of 81 
 

SECTION 10 -  Service Unit Plan (SUP) Objectives                                   PSA 16 
      

TITLE III/VIIA SERVICE UNIT PLAN OBJECTIVES 
CCR Article 3, Section 7300(d) 

 
  
1. Personal Care (In-Home)      Unit of Service = 1 hour 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable)  

2020-21 -0- -0-  
2021-22 -0- -0-  
2022-23 -0- -0-  
2023-24 -0- -0-  

 
2. Homemaker (In-Home)      Unit of Service = 1 hour 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable) 

2020-21 -0- -0-  
2021-22 -0- -0-  
2022-23 -0- -0-  
2023-24 -0- -0-  

 
3. Chore (In-Home)       Unit of Service = 1 hour 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable) 

2020-21 -0- -0-  
2021-22 -0- -0-  
2022-23 -0- -0-  
2023-24 -0- -0-  

 
 
 
 



 

Page 21 of 81 
 

 
 
 
 
4. Home-Delivered Meal        Unit of Service = 1 meal 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable) 

2020-21 37,000 1       
2021-22 Same Same       
2022-23 Same Same       
2023-24 Same Same       

 
5. Adult Day/ Health Care (In-Home)    Unit of Service = 1 hour 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable) 

2020-21 -0- -0-  
2021-22 -0- -0-  
2022-23 -0- -0-  
2023-24 -0- -0-  

 
6. Case Management (Access)      Unit of Service = 1 hour 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable) 

2020-21 -0- -0-   
2021-22 -0- -0-  
2022-23 -0- -0-  
2023-24 -0- -0-  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 22 of 81 
 

7. Assisted Transportation (Access)   Unit of Service = 1 one-way trip 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable)  

2020-21 150 1,2       
2021-22 Same Same       
2022-23 Same Same       
2023-24 Same Same       

 
8. Congregate Meals       Unit of Service = 1 meal 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable)  

2020-21 20,000 1,2       
2021-22 Same Same       
2022-23 Same Same       
2023-24 Same Same       

 
9. Nutrition Counseling    Unit of Service = 1 session per participant 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable) 

2020-21 10 1       
2021-22 Same Same       
2022-23 Same Same       
2023-24 Same Same       

 
10. Transportation (Access)    Unit of Service = 1 one-way trip 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable) 

2020-21 8,500 1,2       
2021-22 Same Same       
2022-23 Same Same       
2023-24 Same Same       



 

Page 23 of 81 
 

11. Legal Assistance       Unit of Service = 1 hour 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable) 

2020-21 100 1,2       
2021-22 Same Same       
2022-23 Same Same       
2023-24 Same Same       

 
12. Nutrition Education    Unit of Service = 1 session per participant 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable) 

2020-21 2,400 1       
2021-22 Same Same       
2022-23 Same Same       
2023-24 Same Same       

 
13. Information and Assistance (Access)         Unit of Service = 1 contact 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable)  

2020-21 400 1,2,3       
2021-22 Same Same       
2022-23 Same Same       
2023-24 Same Same       

 
14. Outreach (Access)            Unit of Service = 1 contact 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers (if applicable) 

2020-21 -0- -0-  
2021-22 -0- -0-  
2022-23 -0- -0-  
2023-24 -0- -0-  



 

Page 24 of 81 
 

15. NAPIS Service Category – “Other” Title III Services 
  
Other Supportive Service Category                                    Unit of Service =1 contact 
Telephone Reassurance (In-Home) 

Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers  

2020-21 120 1       
2021-22 Same Same       
2022-23 Same Same       
2023-24 Same Same       

 
16. Title IIID/ Disease Prevention &Health Promotion   Unit of Service = 1 contact 
 
Service Activities: Wellness Initiative for Senior Education (WISE) 

Title IIID/ Disease Prevention and Health Promotion: Enter required program goal and 
objective numbers in the Title III D Service Plan Objective Table below: 

 Fiscal 
Year 

Proposed 
Units of 
Service 

Goal Numbers Objective Numbers 
(Required) 

2020-21   25    1 1.9 
2021-22 Same Same Same 
2022-23 Same Same Same 
2023-24 Same Same Same 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Page 25 of 81 
 

                                        TITLE IIIB and Title VIIA:                                 PSA 16 

LONG-TERM CARE (LTC) OMBUDSMAN PROGRAM OUTCOMES 
2020-2024 Four-Year Planning Cycle 

 
As mandated by the Older Americans Act Reauthorization Act of 2016, the mission of 
the LTC Ombudsman Program is to seek resolution of problems and advocate for the 
rights of residents of LTC facilities with the goal of ensuring their dignity, quality of 
life, and quality of care.  
 
Each year during the four-year cycle, analysts from the Office of the State Long-Term 
Care Ombudsman (OSLTCO) will forward baseline numbers to the AAA from the prior 
fiscal year National Ombudsman Reporting System (NORS) data as entered into the 
Statewide Ombudsman Program database by the local LTC Ombudsman Program and 
reported by the OSTLCO in the State Annual Report to the Administration on Aging 
(AoA). 

 
The AAA will establish targets each year in consultation with the local LTC 
Ombudsman Program Coordinator. Use the yearly baseline data as the benchmark for 
determining yearly targets. Refer to your local LTC Ombudsman Program’s last three 
years of AoA data for historical trends. Targets should be reasonable and attainable 
based on current program resources. 
 
Complete all Measures and Targets for Outcomes 1-3; 

 
Outcome 1. The problems and concerns of long-term care residents are solved 
through complaint resolution and other services of the Ombudsman Program. 

Older Americans Act Reauthorization Act of 2016, Section 712(a)(3), (5)] 

Measures and Targets: 
 

A. Complaint Resolution Rate (NORS Element CD-08) (Complaint 
Disposition). The average California complaint resolution rate for FY 
2017-2018 was 73%. 
1. FY 2018-2019 Baseline Resolution Rate: 
Number of complaints resolved  81 +  number of partially resolved complaints  0  
divided by the total number of complaints received 88 =  Baseline Resolution 
Rate 92 %  
FY 2020-2021 Target Resolution Rate 90 % 
 

      



 

Page 26 of 81 
 

2. FY 2019-2020 Baseline Resolution Rate:  
Number of complaints partially or fully resolved  ___________divided by the total 
number  
of complaints received   _____ =  Baseline Resolution Rate_______%  
 FY 2021-2022 Target Resolution Rate 90 % 
 
 
 
   

      

3. FY 2020 - 2021 Baseline Resolution Rate: 
Number of complaints partially or fully resolved  divided by the total 
number of complaints received  =  Baseline Resolution Rate_______%  
FY 2022-2023 Target Resolution Rate 90 % 
 4. FY 2021-2022 Baseline Resolution Rate: 
Number of complaints partially or fully resolved  divided by the total number 
of complaints received =  Baseline Resolution Rate ______%  
FY 2023-2024 Target Resolution Rate 90 % 
 
Program Goals and Objective Numbers:  1 

 
B. Work with Resident Councils (NORS Elements S-64 and S-65) 
1.   FY 2018-2019 Baseline: Number of Resident Council meetings attended 

14 FY 2020-2021 Target:  15 
2. FY 2019-2020 Baseline: Number of Resident Council meetings attended   

FY 2021-2022 Target:  15  
3. FY 2020-2021 Baseline: Number of Resident Council meetings attended   

FY 2022-2023 Target:  15  
4.  FY 2021-2022 Baseline: Number of Resident Council meetings attended   

FY 2023-2024 Target:  15  

Program Goals and Objective Numbers:  1  
 
C. Work with Family Councils  (NORS Elements S-66 and S-67) 
1. FY 2018-2019 Baseline: Number of Family Council meetings attended 

16 FY 2020-2021 Target: 10 
2.  FY 2019-2020 Baseline: Number of Family Council meetings attended   

FY 2021-2022 Target: 10 
3. FY 2020-2021 Baseline: Number of Family Council meetings attended   

FY 2022-2023 Target: 10 

4. FY 2021-2022 Baseline: Number of Family Council meetings attended   
FY 2023-2024 Target:  10 

Program Goals and Objective Numbers:  1  



 

Page 27 of 81 
 

 
D. Information and Assistance to Facility Staff (NORS Elements S-53 and S-54)   
1. FY 2018-2019 Baseline: Number of Instances 31 

FY 2020-2021 Target:  30  
2. FY 2019-2020 Baseline: Number of Instances  

FY 2021-2022 Target:    30  
3. FY 2020-2021 Baseline: Number of Instances  

FY 2022-2023 Target:  30  
4. FY 2021-2022 Baseline: Number of Instances  

FY 2023-2024 Target:  30  

Program Goals and Objective Numbers:  1  
 
E. Information and Assistance to Individuals (NORS Element S-55)   

1. FY 2018-2019 Baseline: Number of Instances 89 
FY 2020-2021 Target:  50  

2. FY 2019-2020 Baseline: Number of Instances  
FY 2021-2022 Target:  50  

3. FY 2020-2021 Baseline: Number of Instances  
FY 2022-2023 Target:  50  

4. FY 2021-2022 Baseline: Number of Instances  
FY 2023-2024 Target:  50  

Program Goals and Objective Numbers:  1  
 
F. Community Education (NORS Element S-68)   

1. FY 2018-2019 Baseline: Number of Sessions 13 
FY 2020-2021 Target:  5  

2. FY 2019-2020 Baseline: Number of Sessions   
FY 2021-2022 Target:  5  

3. FY 2020-2021 Baseline: Number of Sessions   
FY 2022-2023 Target:  5  

4.  FY 2021-2022 Baseline: Number of Sessions   
FY 2023-2024 Target:  5  

Program Goals and Objective Numbers:  1  
 



 

Page 28 of 81 
 

 
 

G. Systems Advocacy (NORS Elements S-07, S-07.1) 
  
FY 2020-2021 
 
FY 2020-2021 Systems Advocacy Effort(s):  Recognizing that California’s older 
population is projected to grow, a new goal for the Ombudsman Program is to 
implement a public awareness campaign that focuses on the changing long-term care 
resident population and its needs.  The Ombudsman program will adopt a strategy of 
working with other organizations, to further this goal and will conduct community and 
facility educational events.    
 FY 2021-2022 
 
Outcome of FY 2020-2021 Efforts:  
 
FY 2021-2022 Systems Advocacy Effort(s): (Provide one or more new systems 
advocacy efforts) 
 
 FY 2022-2023 
 
Outcome of FY 2021-2022 Efforts:  
 
FY 2022-2023 Systems Advocacy Effort(s): (Provide one or more new systems 
advocacy efforts) 
 
 FY 2023-2024 
 
Outcome of 2022-2023 Efforts:  
 
FY 2023-2024 Systems Advocacy Effort(s): (Provide one or more new systems 
advocacy efforts) 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 29 of 81 
 

 
 

Outcome 2. Residents have regular access to an Ombudsman. [(Older 
Americans Act Reauthorization Act of 2016), Section 712(a)(3)(D), 

(5)(B)(ii)] 

 
Measures and Targets: 

 
A. Routine Access: Nursing Facilities (NORS Element S-58  
1. FY 2018-2019 Baseline: Number of Nursing Facilities visited at least once a quarter 

not in response to a complaint 2 divided by the total number of Nursing Facilities 2      
=    Baseline 100 % 
FY 2020-2021 Target: 100% 

2. FY 2019-2020 Baseline: Number of Nursing Facilities visited at least once a quarter 
not in response to a complaint    divided by the total number of Nursing Facilities        
=    Baseline % 
FY 2021-2022 Target: 100 % 

3. FY 2020-2021 Baseline: Number of Nursing Facilities visited at least once a quarter 
not in response to a complaint_____divided by the total number of Nursing Facilities       
=    Baseline_____% 
FY 2022-2023 Target: 100 % 

4. FY 2021-2022 Baseline: Number of Nursing Facilities visited at least once a quarter 
not in response to a complaint_____divided by the total number of Nursing 
Facilities       =    Baseline_____% 
FY 2023-2024 Target: 100 % 

Program Goals and Objective Numbers:  1  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 30 of 81 
 

B. Routine access: Residential Care Communities (NORS Element S-61)   
 

1. FY 2018-2019 Baseline: Number of RCFEs visited at least once a quarter not in 
response to a complaint 1 divided by the total number of RCFEs 1 = 
Baseline 
 100 % 
FY 2020-2021 Target: 100% 

2. FY 2019-2020 Baseline: Number of RCFEs visited at least once a quarter not in 
response to a complaint  divided by the total number of RCFEs  = 
Baseline 
  % 
FY 2021-2022 Target: 100% 

3. FY 2020-2021 Baseline: Number of RCFEs visited at least once a quarter not in 
response to a complaint  divided by the total number of RCFEs  = 
Baseline 
  % 
FY 2022-2023 Target: 100% 

4. FY 2021-2022 Baseline: Number of RCFEs visited at least once a quarter not in 
response to a complaint  divided by the total number of RCFEs  = 
Baseline 
  % 
FY 2023-2024 Target:100% 

Program Goals and Objective Numbers:  1  
 
C. Number of Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (NORS Element S-23)   

1. FY 2018-2019 Baseline: 1.39 FTEs 
FY 2020-2021 Target: 1.39 FTEs 

2. FY 2019-2020 Baseline:  FTEs 
FY 2021-2022 Target: 1.39 FTEs
 FTE  3. FY 2020-2021 Baseline:  FY 
2022-2023 Target: 1.39 FTEs 

    4. FY 2021-2022 Baseline:  FTEs 
FY 2023-2024 Target: 1.39 FTEs
  

Program Goals and Objective Numbers:  1  

 



 

Page 31 of 81 
 

D. Number of Certified LTC Ombudsman Volunteers (NORS Element S-24) 
 
1. FY 2018-2019 Baseline: Number of certified LTC Ombudsman volunteers 1 

 FY 2020-2021 Projected Number of certified LTC Ombudsman volunteers 5 

2.  FY 2019-2020 Baseline: Number of certified LTC Ombudsman volunteers   
FY 2021-2022 Projected Number of certified LTC Ombudsman volunteers 5 

3.   FY 2020-2021 Baseline: Number of certified LTC Ombudsman volunteers   
FY 2022-2023 Projected Number of certified LTC Ombudsman volunteers 5 

4.   FY 2021-2022 Baseline: Number of certified LTC Ombudsman volunteers   
FY 2023-2024 Projected Number of certified LTC Ombudsman volunteers 5 

Program Goals and Objective Numbers:  1  
 

Outcome 3. Ombudsman representatives accurately and consistently report data 
about their complaints and other program activities in a timely manner. [Older 

Americans Act Reauthorization Act of 2016, Section 712(c)] 

 
Measures and Targets: 
In the box below, in narrative format, describe one or more specific efforts your 
program will undertake in the upcoming year to increase the accuracy, consistency, and 
timeliness of your National Ombudsman Reporting System (NORS) data reporting. 
Some examples could include: 

• Hiring additional staff to enter data 
• Updating computer equipment to make data entry easier 
• Initiating a case review process to ensure case entry is completed in a timely 

manner 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

The LTC Ombudsman program will: 
1.) Enter data into ODIN in a timely manner, to ensure data is complete for each 

quarter.  
2.) Regularly attend NORS Consistency training opportunities provided by the 

OSLTCO and online courses provided by the National Long-Term Care 
Ombudsman Resource Center (NORC) 

3.) Ensure all new volunteers are training and attend the same system trainings 
that staff are attending. 

4.) Allow staff and volunteers to have “protected” time to ensure data entry is not 
interrupted. 



 

Page 32 of 81 
 

             TITLE VIIA ELDER ABUSE PREVENTION      PSA 16 
SERVICE UNIT PLAN OBJECTIVES 

Units of Service: AAA must complete at least one category from the Units of 
Service below. 
 
Units of Service categories include public education sessions, training sessions for 
professionals, training sessions for caregivers served by a Title IIIE Family Caregiver 
Support Program, educational materials distributed, and hours of activity spent developing 
a coordinated system which addresses elder abuse prevention, investigation, and 
prosecution. 

 
When developing targets for each fiscal year, refer to data reported on the Elder Abuse 
Prevention Quarterly Activity Reports. Set realistic goals based upon the prior year’s 
numbers and the resources available. Activities reported for the Title VII Elder Abuse 
Prevention Program must be distinct from activities reported for the LTC Ombudsman 
Program. No activity can be reported for both programs. 

 
AAAs must provide one or more of the service categories below. 
NOTE: The number of sessions refers to the number of presentations and not the number of 
attendees 

 
• Public Education Sessions –Indicate the total number of projected education 

sessions for the general public on the identification, prevention, and treatment of 
elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation. 

 
• Training Sessions for Professionals –Indicate the total number of projected training 

sessions for professionals (service providers, nurses, social workers) on the 
identification, prevention, and treatment of elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation. 

 
• Training Sessions for Caregivers Served by Title IIIE –Indicate the total number of 

projected training sessions for unpaid family caregivers who are receiving services 
under Title IIIE of the Older Americans Act (OAA) on the identification, prevention, 
and treatment of elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation. Older Americans Act 
Reauthorization Act of 2016,  Section 302(3) ‘Family caregiver’ means an adult 
family member, or another individual, who is an informal provider of in-home and 
community care to an older individual or to an individual with Alzheimer’s disease or 
a related disorder with neurological and organic brain dysfunction. 

 
• Hours Spent Developing a Coordinated System to Respond to Elder Abuse –

Indicate the number of hours to be spent developing a coordinated system to respond 
to elder abuse. This category includes time spent coordinating services provided by 



 

Page 33 of 81 
 

the AAA or its contracted service provider with services provided by Adult Protective 
Services, local law enforcement agencies, legal services providers, and other agencies 
involved in the protection of elder and dependent adults from abuse, neglect, and 
exploitation. 

 
Educational Materials Distributed –Indicate the type and number of educational 
materials to be distributed to the general public, professionals, and caregivers (this may 
include materials that have been developed by others) to help in the identification, 
prevention, and treatment of elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation. 

 
• Number of Individuals Served –Indicate the total number of individuals expected to 

be reached by any of the above activities of this program. 
  



 

Page 34 of 81 
 

PSA  16  
 

TITLE VIIA ELDER ABUSE PREVENTION SERVICE UNIT PLAN 
OBJECTIVES 

 
The agency receiving Title VIIA Elder Abuse Prevention funding is: Inyo County Health 
and Human Services - ESAAA 

 
Fiscal 
Year 

Total # of Public 
Education Sessions 

 Fiscal 
Year 

Total # of Training 
Sessions for 

Professionals 
2020-2021 -0- 

 
 
 

 

2020-2021 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2021-2022 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2021-2022 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2022-2023 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2022-2023 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2023-2024 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2023-2024 -0- 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Total # of 
Training 

Sessions for 
Caregivers 

served by Title 
IIIE 

  
Fiscal 
Year 

Total # of Hours 
Spent Developing 

a Coordinated 
System 

2020-2021 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2020-2021 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2021-2022 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2021-2022 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2022-2023 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2022-2023 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2023-2024 -0- 
 
 
 

 

2023-2024 -0- 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 35 of 81 
 

 
Fiscal Year 

Total # of Copies 
of Educational 
Materials to be 

Distributed 

 
Description of Educational 

Materials 

2020-2021 5000 Annual Newspaper Publication of “Everyone can 
do Something to Prevent Elder Abuse” 
advertisement. 

2021-2022 same  

2022-2023 same  

2023-2024 same  
 
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Total Number of Individuals Served 

2020-2021 5000 
2021-2022 Same 
2022-2023 Same 
2023-2024 Same 



 

Page 36 of 81 
 

PSA  16  
TITLE IIIE SERVICE UNIT PLAN OBJECTIVES 

CCR Article 3, Section 7300(d) 

2020-2024 Four-Year Planning Period

 

This Service Unit Plan (SUP) uses the five broad federally mandated service categories. 
Refer to the CDA Service Categories and Data Dictionary Revisions Effective July 2018 
for eligible activities and service unit measures. Specify proposed audience size or units of 
service for ALL budgeted funds.  

 
Direct and/or Contracted IIIE Services 

 
CATEGORIES 

 
1 

 
2 

 
3 

 
Family Caregiver 

Services 
Caring for Elderly 

 
Proposed 

Units of Service 

 
Required 
Goal #(s) 

 
Optional 
Objective 

#(s) 

Information Services # of activities and 
Total est. audience for 

 

  

2020-2021 
# of activities: -0- 

Total est. audience for above: 
  

2021-2022 
# of activities: -0- 

Total est. audience for above: 
  

2022-2023 
# of activities: -0- 

Total est. audience for above: 
  

2023-2024 
# of activities: -0- 

Total est. audience for above: 
  

Access Assistance Total contacts   
2020-2021 -0-   
2021-2022 -0-   
2022-2023 -0-   
2023-2024 -0-   



 

Page 37 of 81 
 

Access Assistance Total 
 

  

Support Services Total hours   
2020-2021 15 1  
2021-2022 same same  
2022-2023 same same  
2023-2024 same same  

Respite Care Total hours   
2020-2021 100 1  
2021-2022 same same  
2022-2023 same same  
2023-2024 same same  

Supplemental 
Services 

Total occurrences   

2020-2021 -0-   
2021-2022 -0-   
2022-2023 -0-   
2023-2024 -0-   

 
Direct and/or Contracted IIIE Services 

Grandparent 
Services 

Caring for Children 

Proposed 
Units of Service 

Required 
Goal #(s) 

Optional 
Objective 

#(s) 

Information Services # of activities and 
Total est. audience for 

 

  

2020-2021 
# of activities: -0- 

Total est. audience for 
above: 

  

2021-2022 
# of activities: -0- 

Total est. audience for 
above: 

  

2022-2023 
# of activities: -0- 

Total est. audience for 
above: 

  

2023-2024 
# of activities: -0- 

Total est. audience for 
above: 

  



 

 
 

Grandparent 
Services 

Caring for Children 

Proposed 
Units of Service 

Required 
Goal #(s) 

Optional 
Objective 

#(s) 

Access Assistance Total contacts   
2020-2021 -0-   
2021-2022 -0-   
2022-2023 -0-   
2023-2024 -0-   

Support Services Total hours   
2020-2021 -0-   
2021-2022 -0-   
2022-2023 -0-   
2023-2024 -0-   

Respite Care Total hours   
2020-2021 -0-   
2021-2022 -0-   
2022-2023 -0-   
2023-2024 -0-   

Supplemental 
Services 

Total occurrences   

2020-2021 -0-   
2021-2022 -0-   
2022-2023 -0-   
2023-2024 -0- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  



 

Page 39 of 81 
 

 
 

PSA 16 
HEALTH INSURANCE COUNSELING AND ADVOCACY PROGRAM 

(HICAP) 
SERVICE UNIT PLAN 

    
MULTIPLE PSA HICAPs: If you are a part of a multiple-PSA HICAP where 
two or more AAAs enter into an agreement with one “Managing AAA,” to 
deliver HICAP services on their behalf to eligible persons in their AAA, then 
each AAA is responsible for providing HICAP services in the covered PSAs in a 
way that is agreed upon and equitable among the participating parties. 

 
HICAP PAID LEGAL SERVICES: Complete this section if your Master 
Contract contains a provision for using HICAP funds to provide HICAP Legal 
Services. 

STATE & FEDERAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS: The Administration for 
Community Living (ACL) establishes targets for the State Health Insurance 
Assistance Program (SHIP)/HICAP performance measures (PMs). ACL 
introduced revisions to the SHIP PMs in late 2016 in conjunction with the 
original funding announcement (ref HHS-2017-ACL-CIP-SAPG-0184) for 
implementation with the release of the Notice of Award (Grant No. 
90SAPG0052-01-01 issued July 2017). 

The new five federal PMs generally reflect the former seven PMs (PM 2.1 
through PM 2.7), except for PM 2.7, (Total Counseling Hours), which was 
removed because it is already being captured under the SHIP Annual Resource 
Report. As a part of these changes, ACL eliminated the performance-based 
funding scoring methodology and replaced it with a Likert scale comparison 
model for setting National Performance Measure Targets that define the 
proportional penetration rates needed for improvements. 

Using ACL’s approach, CDA HICAP provides State and Federal Performance 
Measures with goal-oriented targets for each AAA’s Planning and Service Area 
(PSA). One change to all PMs is the shift to county-level data. In general, the 
State and Federal Performance Measures include the following: 

 PM 1.1 Clients Counseled ~ Number of finalized Intakes for clients/ 
beneficiaries that received HICAP services 



 

Page 40 of 81 
 

 PM 1.2 Public and Media Events (PAM) ~ Number of completed PAM 
forms categorized as “interactive” events 

 PM 2.1 Client Contacts ~ Percentage of one-on-one interactions with 
any Medicare beneficiaries 

 PM 2.2 PAM Outreach Contacts ~ Percentage of persons reached 
through events categorized as “interactive” 

 PM 2.3 Medicare Beneficiaries Under 65 ~ Percentage of one-on-one 
interactions with Medicare beneficiaries under the age of 65 

 PM 2.4 Hard-to-Reach Contacts ~ Percentage of one-on-one interactions 
with “hard-to- reach” Medicare beneficiaries designated as: 
o PM 2.4a Low-income (LIS) 
o PM 2.4b Rural 
o PM 2.4c English Second Language (ESL) 

 PM 2.5 Enrollment Contacts ~ Percentage of contacts with one or 
more qualifying enrollment topics discussed 

AAA’s should demonstrate progress toward meeting or improving on the 
Performance requirements established by CDA and ACL as is displayed 
annually on the HICAP State and Federal Performance Measures tool located 
online at: 
https://www.aging.ca.gov/Providers_and_Partners/Area_Agencies_on_Aging/
#pp-planning.  (Reference CDA PM 17-11 for further discussion, including 
current HICAP Performance Measures and Definitions).  

 
For current and future planning, CDA requires each AAA ensure that HICAP 
service units and related federal Annual Resource Report data are documented 
and verified complete/ finalized in CDA’s Statewide HICAP Automated 
Reporting Program (SHARP) system per the existing contractual reporting 
requirements. HICAP Service Units do not need to be input in the Area Plan 
(with the exception of HICAP Paid Legal Services, where applicable). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.aging.ca.gov/Providers_and_Partners/Area_Agencies_on_Aging/#pp-planning
https://www.aging.ca.gov/Providers_and_Partners/Area_Agencies_on_Aging/#pp-planning


 

Page 41 of 81 
 

HICAP Legal Services Units of Service (if applicable) 6 

 

Fiscal Year 
(FY) 

3.1 Estimated Number 
of Clients Represented 
Per FY 

(Unit of Service) 

 
Goal Numbers 

2020-2021 -0-  
2021-2022 -0-  
2022-2023 -0-  
2023-2024 -0-  

 

Fiscal Year 
(FY)  

3.2 Estimated Number of 
Legal Representation Hours 
Per FY 

(Unit of Service) 

 
Goal Numbers 

2020-2021 -0-  
2021-2022 -0-  
2022-2023 -0-  
2023-2024 -0-  

 

Fiscal Year 
(FY) 

3.3 Estimated Number of 
Program Consultation 

Hours 
Per FY (Unit of Service) 

 
Goal Numbers 

2020-2021 -0-  
2021-2022 -0-  
2022-2023 -0-  
2023-2024 -0-  

 



 

Page 42 of 81 
 

 
 

PSA 16 
SECTION 11.  Focal Points        

 
COMMUNITY FOCAL POINTS LIST 

DESIGNATED COMMUNITY 
FOCAL POINT 

ADDRESS 

Walker Senior Center Mule Deer Road, Walker, CA 96107 
Bishop Senior Center 682 Spruce Street, Bishop, CA 93514 
Big Pine Senior Center 180 Dewey Street, Big Pine, CA 93513 
Independence Senior Center 155 E. Market Street, Independence, CA 

93526 
Lone Pine Senior Center 138 N. Jackson Street, Lone Pine, CA 

93545 
Tecopa Senior Center (Hurlbutt-Rook) Tecopa Hot Springs Road, Tecopa, CA 

92389 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 43 of 81 
 

 
SECTION 12. Disaster Preparedness     PSA 16 

 
1. Description of how the AAA coordinates its disaster preparedness plans 

and activities with local emergency response agencies, relief 
organizations, state and local governments, and other organizations 
responsible for emergency preparedness and response as required in 
OAA, Title III, Section 310. 
 
According to the 2010 “Disaster Assistance Handbook for Area Agencies 
on Aging” prepared by California Department of Aging, a local AAA 
must prepare for disasters and participate in disaster-assistance activities 
on behalf of older persons and persons with disabilities within their span 
of control. 
 
Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA), as part of the local Inyo 
County Health and Human Services Department, coordinates disaster 
preparedness plans and activities with local Office of Emergency 
Services (OES) through the HHS/ESAAA Director.  The Director 
historically receives early notification from the local OES Commander 
about disaster alerts, and begins the coordination with other local, state, 
and federal government organizations, as well as with local hospitals and 
private health care entities.   Regularly updated telephone call trees, and 
annual staff trainings ensure activation of groups of HHS employees to 
provide:  (1) access to the updated GPS database identifying the 
residential location of all functional access need elderly individuals in 
Inyo County, as well as their identified health care issues and needs; (2) 
evacuation and shelter care; (3) basic food and nutrition; (4) coordination 
with Red Cross and Salvation Army; (5) access to client databases and 
direct client records; and (6) medical/health care response. 
 
As a two-county PSA, the Director also coordinates with the contracting 
agency in Mono County to ensure service delivery and other needs are 
addressed in the event of a disaster.  The point person in Mono County is 
the Social Services Director who, like the Director, is charged with 
coordination with their OES during a disaster.   

 
2.  Identify each of the local Office of Emergency Services (OES) contact 

person(s) within the PSA that the AAA will coordinate with in the event 
of a disaster. 



 

Page 44 of 81 
 

Name Title Telephone E-Mail 
Kathy Peterson Mono County 

Social Services 
Director 

Office: 760 924-
1763 
Cell: 760 937-
6518 

kpeterson@mono.ca.gov 

Clint Quilter Inyo County 
Administrative 
Officer 

Office: 760 878-
0292 

cquilter@inyocounty.us 

 
 

3.  Identify the Disaster Response Coordinator within the AAA. 
Name Title Telephone E-Mail 

Keri Oney Inyo County HHS 
Deputy Director 

Office:  760 872-
0902 
Cell:  760 878-
8001 

koney@inyocounty.us 

 
  

4.  List critical services the AAA will continue to provide after a disaster 
and describe how these services will be delivered.  

Critical Services How Delivered? 
 

a. Outreach to frail, vulnerable older 
adults for well-being checks, 
identified through GPS database and 
California Aging Reporting System 
(CARS) database, Adult Protective 
Services and In-Home Supportive 
Services caseload information 
 
b.  Provision of emergency shelters 
and/or heating/cooling centers 
 
 
 
c.  Basic food and nutrition 
 
 
 

 
a. By telephone and door-to-door, as 

determined by OES in consultation 
with AAA Disaster Response 
Coordinator 

 
 
 
 

b. Community-based shelters and centers 
will be available within close travel 
distances; assisted transportation will 
be provided, as needed. 
 

c. (1) Delivery of hot and/or frozen 
meals as    capability allows, including 
shelf-ready 

             (2) Access to disaster-related 



 

Page 45 of 81 
 

 
d.  Access to critical medications, 
health services 
  
 
e.  After-disaster follow-up assessment 

CalFresh services 
 

d. Via local OES-Red Cross vendor 
agreements for pharmaceuticals, 
oxygen/other health care apparatus 
and care 

 
e.  Telephone and/or in-person welfare 

checks 
 
 

5.  List any agencies with which the AAA has formal emergency 
preparation or response agreements. 
ESAAA is part of local County government, and as such, is formally 
obligated to be 
 part of the local government OES system, as is the contracting agency 
in Mono County 
As part of the HHS Department: 
 Red Cross-Los Angeles chapter 
 Inland Counties Emergency Medical Services Authority (ICEMA) 
 CalFresh (Food Stamps) agreement between Inyo and Mono Counties 

 
6.  Describe how the AAA will identify vulnerable populations, and 

follow-up with these vulnerable populations after a disaster event. 
Identification of vulnerable populations will be conducted in Inyo County 
through a GPS-linked database showing residential locations of all frail, 
elderly individuals.  Also available in both Inyo and Mono Counties are 
client records and the CARS database, as well as IHSS data systems. 
 
Local Inyo County law enforcement typically sends personnel door-to-
door for well-being checks of those individuals identified in the GPS 
database and for those identified by staff accessing the CARS database.  
Telephone and door-to-door follow-up also is provided by a range of 
County employees, in consultation with AAA Disaster Response 
Coordinator, to identify needs and request services. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 46 of 81 
 

SECTION 13.  Priority Services         PSA16 
 

2020-2024 Four-Year Planning Cycle 
Funding for Access, In-Home Services, and Legal Assistance 

 
Category of Service and the Percentage of Title III B Funds expended in/or to be 
expended in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 through Fiscal Year 2023-2024. 
 

Access: 
Transportation, Assisted Transportation, Case Management, Information and 
Assistance, Outreach, Comprehensive Assessment, Health, Mental Health, and 
Public Information 
 
2020-2021:  50% 2021-2022:  50% 2022-2023:  50% 2023-2024:  50% 
 

In-Home Services: 
Personal Care, Homemaker, Chore, Adult Day/Health Care, Alzheimer’s, 
Residential Repairs/Modifications, Respite Care, Telephone Reassurance, and 
Visiting 
 
2020-2021:  5% 2021-2022:  5% 2022-2023:  5% 2023-2024:  5% 

 
Legal Assistance Required Activities: 

Legal Advice, Representation, Assistance to the Ombudsman Program and 
Involvement in the Private Bar 
 
2020-2021:  10% 2021-2022:  10% 2022-2023:  10% 2023-2024:  10% 
  
 
Explain how allocations are justified and how they are determined to be sufficient 
to meet the need for the service within the PSA.    
Recognizing that the entire Title IIIB Allocation of less than $100,000 is 
insufficient to meet the breadth of needs for IIIB services identified by area seniors 
on the Needs Assessment activities, the discussion and decisions around the setting 
of minimum percentages for an adequate proportion of funds was difficult.  
The ESAAA Advisory Council echoed what the written Needs Assessment 
showed, and what past Advisory Council members have concluded: in this 
geographically expansive PSA of over 13,000 square miles, with a small 
population base, specialty medical care and other specialty shopping opportunities 



 

Page 47 of 81 
 

are nonexistent or extremely limited. Our older adults told us over and over about 
their need for access to health care and their need for information and assistance, 
along with their need for basic help with money-related issues. Ultimately our 
ESAAA Advisory Council decided to honor the need for access by setting a 50% 
minimum floor for the Access service areas, specifically transportation, assisted 
transportation, and information and assistance. 
 
Legal Assistance ranked lower on the Needs Assessment, however, the Advisory 
Council did recognize that the legal assistance provided, especially to those 
struggling with issues such as evictions or appeals of applications for SSI/SSD was 
critical, as is the need for general legal consultations on issues such as wills and 
trusts.  The Council believed that maintaining the minimum percentage at 10% and 
funding at an amount closer to 20% would help to address the identified needs 
related to lack of financial resources.   
Likewise, In-Home funding minimum was set at 5%, with a continued plan for 
coordination with other social services programs providing in-home services (i.e., 
In-Home Supportive Services, local county-funded programs). 
  
 
 



 

Page 48 of 81 
 

SECTION 14.  Notice of Intent to Provide Direct Services   PSA 16  
 

CCR Article 3, Section 7320 (a)(b) and 42 USC Section 3027(a)(8)(C) 
If an AAA plans to directly provide any of the following services, it is required to 
provide a description of the methods that will be used to assure that target 
populations throughout the PSA will be served. 
 

 Check if not providing any of the below listed direct services. 
 
Check applicable direct services  Check each applicable Fiscal Year 
Title IIIB     20-21               21-22                22-23               
23-24 

  Information and Assistance                     
 

  Case Management                      
 

  Outreach                       
 

  Program Development                     
 

  Coordination                       
 

  Long-Term Care Ombudsman                    
 
Title IIID     20-21               21-22                22-23               
23-24 
 

 Disease Prevention and Health Promo.                     
 

 
Title IIIE 3     20-21               21-22                22-23               
23-24 
 

  Information Services                      
 

  Access Assistance                      
 

  Support Services                       
                                                 
3 Refer to PM 11-11 for definitions of Title III E categories.  



 

Page 49 of 81 
 

 
Title VIIA     20-21               21-22                22-23               
23-24 
 

  Long-Term Care Ombudsman                             
 

 
Title VII      20-21               21-22                22-23               
23-24 
 

  Prevention of Elder Abuse, Neglect                   
 

      and Exploitation 
 
Describe methods to be used to ensure target populations will be served throughout 
the PSA.   
 
ESAAA staff will provide Information and Assistance by telephone to all areas of 
the PSA, maintaining updated resource information for both counties.  In regards 
to Health Promotion, ESAAA staff, in coordination with HHS Prevention staff will 
provide WISE classes on a quarterly basis, rotating the class location, throughout 
the PSA. Family Caregiver support services will be provided by ESAAA staff 
based, in part, upon referrals from the adult social service programs in both 
counties and will either provide respite services directly or through purchase of 
services.  ESAAA staff will utilize demographic information, including primary 
language information, to prioritize target populations and to ensure that resources 
such as bi-lingual staff or the AT&T language line are utilized as needed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

Page 50 of 81 
 

SECTION 15 - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO PROVIDE DIRECT 
SERVICES             PSA16 

 
Older Americans Act, Section 307(a)(8) 

CCR Article 3, Section 7320(c), W&I Code Section 9533(f) 
 
Complete and submit for CDA approval a separate Section 15 for each direct 
service not specified in Section 14.  The request for approval may include 
multiple funding sources for a specific service. 

 Check box if not requesting approval to provide any direct services. 
 
Identify Service Category: ______Home Delivered Meal_______ 
 
Check if applicable funding source. 
 

 III B 
 

 III C-1 
 

 III C-2 
 

 III E 
 

 VII A 
 

 HICAP 
 
Request for Approval Justification: 
 

 Necessary to Assure an Adequate Supply of Service OR 
 

 More cost effective if provided by the AAA than if purchased from a 
comparable service provider. 
 
Check all fiscal year(s) the AAA intends to provide service during this Area Plan 
cycle. 
  



 

Page 51 of 81 
 

 2020-2021   2021-2022    2022-2023 2023-2024 
Justification:  Comparable service provider able to provide hot meal delivery is 
not located within the Inyo County geographic part of the service area.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 52 of 81 
 

SECTION 15 - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO PROVIDE DIRECT 
SERVICES             PSA16 
   
Complete and submit for CDA approval a separate Section 15 for each direct 
service not specified in Section 14.  The request for approval may include 
multiple funding sources for a specific service. 
 

 Check box if not requesting approval to provide any direct services. 
 
Identify Service Category: _____Assisted Transportation______ 
 
Check if applicable funding source. 
 

 III B 
 

 III C-1 
 

 III C-2 
 

 III E 
 

 VII A 
 

 HICAP 
 
Request for Approval Justification: 
 

 Necessary to Assure an Adequate Supply of Service OR 
 

 More cost effective if provided by the AAA than if purchased from a 
comparable service provider. 
 
Check all fiscal year(s) the AAA intends to provide service during this Area Plan 
cycle. 
 
  2020-2021   2021-2022    2022-2023  2023-2024 
 
Justification:  Comparable service provider is not located within the Inyo County 
geographic part of the service area. 
 



 

Page 53 of 81 
 

SECTION 15 - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO PROVIDE DIRECT 
SERVICES             PSA16 
    
Complete and submit for CDA approval a separate Section 15 for each direct 
service not specified in Section 14.  The request for approval may include 
multiple funding sources for a specific service. 
 

 Check box if not requesting approval to provide any direct services. 
 
Identify Service Category: _____Congregate Meals______ 
 
Check if applicable funding source. 
 

 III B 
 

 III C-1 
 

 III C-2 
 

 III E 
 

 VII A 
 

 HICAP 
 
Request for Approval Justification: 
 

 Necessary to Assure an Adequate Supply of Service OR 
 

 More cost effective if provided by the AAA than if purchased from a 
comparable service provider. 
 
Check all fiscal year(s) the AAA intends to provide service during this Area Plan 
cycle. 
 
  2020-2021   2021-2022    2022-2023  2023-2024 
 
 
Justification:  Comparable service provider not available within the Inyo County 
part of the service area.  



 

Page 54 of 81 
 

SECTION 15 - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO PROVIDE DIRECT 
SERVICES             PSA16 
    
Complete and submit for CDA approval a separate Section 15 for each direct 
service not specified in Section 14.  The request for approval may include 
multiple funding sources for a specific service. 
 

 Check box if not requesting approval to provide any direct services. 
 
Identify Service Category: ____Nutrition Counseling______ 
 
Check if applicable funding source. 
 

 III B 
 

 III C-1 
 

 III C-2 
 

 III E 
 

 VII A 
 

 HICAP 
 
Request for Approval Justification: 
 

 Necessary to Assure an Adequate Supply of Service OR 
 

 More cost effective if provided by the AAA than if purchased from a 
comparable service provider. 
 
Check all fiscal year(s) the AAA intends to provide service during this Area Plan 
cycle. 
 
  2020-2021   2021-2022    2022-2023  2023-2024 
 
 
Justification:  Comparable service provider not available within the service area.   
 



 

Page 55 of 81 
 

SECTION 15 - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO PROVIDE DIRECT 
SERVICES             PSA16 
       
Complete and submit for CDA approval a separate Section 15 for each direct 
service not specified in Section 14.  The request for approval may include 
multiple funding sources for a specific service. 
 

 Check box if not requesting approval to provide any direct services. 
 
Identify Service Category: ____Nutrition Education______ 
 
Check if applicable funding source. 
 

 III B 
 

 III C-1 
 

 III C-2 
 

 III E 
 

 VII A 
 

 HICAP 
 
Request for Approval Justification: 
 

 Necessary to Assure an Adequate Supply of Service OR 
 

 More cost effective if provided by the AAA than if purchased from a 
comparable service provider. 
 
Check all fiscal year(s) the AAA intends to provide service during this Area Plan 
cycle. 
 
  2020-2021   2021-2022    2022-2023  2023-2024 
 
 
Justification:  Comparable service provider not available within the service area.   
 



 

Page 56 of 81 
 

SECTION 15 - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO PROVIDE DIRECT 
SERVICES             PSA16 
    
Complete and submit for CDA approval a separate Section 15 for each direct 
service not specified in Section 14.  The request for approval may include 
multiple funding sources for a specific service. 
 

 Check box if not requesting approval to provide any direct services. 
 
Identify Service Category: ____Nutrition Education______ 
 
Check if applicable funding source. 
 

 III B 
 

 III C-1 
 

 III C-2 
 

 III E 
 

 VII A 
 

 HICAP 
 
Request for Approval Justification: 
 

 Necessary to Assure an Adequate Supply of Service OR 
 

 More cost effective if provided by the AAA than if purchased from a 
comparable service provider. 
 
Check all fiscal year(s) the AAA intends to provide service during this Area Plan 
cycle. 
 
  2020-2021   2021-2022    2022-2023  2023-2024 
 
Justification:  Comparable service provider not available within the service area.   
 
 



 

Page 57 of 81 
 

SECTION 15 - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO PROVIDE DIRECT 
SERVICES             PSA16 
 
Complete and submit for CDA approval a separate Section 15 for each direct 
service not specified in Section 14.  The request for approval may include 
multiple funding sources for a specific service. 
 

 Check box if not requesting approval to provide any direct services. 
 
Identify Service Category: ____Telephone Reassurance ______ 
 
Check if applicable funding source. 
 

 III B 
 

 III C-1 
 

 III C-2 
 

 III E 
 

 VII A 
 

 HICAP 
 
Request for Approval Justification: 
 

 Necessary to Assure an Adequate Supply of Service OR 
 

 More cost effective if provided by the AAA than if purchased from a 
comparable service provider. 
 
Check all fiscal year(s) the AAA intends to provide service during this Area Plan 
cycle. 
 
  2020-2021   2021-2022    2022-2023  2023-2024 
 
 
Justification:  Comparable service provider not available within the service area.   
 



 

Page 58 of 81 
 

SECTION 15 - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO PROVIDE DIRECT 
SERVICES             PSA16 
 
Complete and submit for CDA approval a separate Section 15 for each direct 
service not specified in Section 14.  The request for approval may include 
multiple funding sources for a specific service. 

 Check box if not requesting approval to provide any direct services. 
 
Identify Service Category: Transportation 
 
Check applicable funding source:4 
 

 III B 
 

 III C-1 
 

 III C-2 
 

 III E 
 

 VII A 
 

 HICAP 
 
Request for Approval Justification: 
 

  Necessary to Assure an Adequate Supply of Service OR 
 

  More cost effective if provided by the AAA than if purchased from a 
comparable service provider. 

 
Check all fiscal year(s) the AAA intends to provide service during this Area Plan 
cycle. 
 

 2020-2021   2021-2022    2022-2023  2023-2024 
Justification:  Provide a cost-benefit analysis below that substantiates this request 
for direct delivery of the above stated service5 :  Comparable service provider is 
not located within the Inyo County geographic part of the service area. 

                                                 
13 Section 15 does not apply to Title V (SCSEP). 



 

Page 59 of 81 
 

SECTION 15 - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO PROVIDE DIRECT 
SERVICES             PSA16 
 
Complete and submit for CDA approval a separate Section 15 for each direct 
service not specified in Section 14.  The request for approval may include 
multiple funding sources for a specific service. 
 

 Check box if not requesting approval to provide any direct services. 
 
Identify Service Category: Respite Homemaker 
Check applicable funding source:6 
 

 III B 
 

 III C-1 
 

 III C-2 
 

 III E 
 

 VII A 
 

 HICAP 
 
Request for Approval Justification: 
 

  Necessary to Assure an Adequate Supply of Service OR 
 

  More cost effective if provided by the AAA than if purchased from a 
comparable service provider. 

 
Check all fiscal year(s) the AAA intends to provide service during this Area Plan 
cycle. 

 2020-2021   2021-2022    2022-2023  2023-2024 
Justification:  Provide a cost-benefit analysis below that substantiates this request 
for direct delivery of the above stated service7 :  Comparable service provider is 
not located within the Inyo County geographic part of the service area. 

                                                                                                                                                             
14 For a HICAP direct services waiver, the managing AAA of HICAP services must document that all affected 

AAAs are in agreement. 
13 Section 15 does not apply to Title V (SCSEP). 



 

Page 60 of 81 
 

SECTION 15. Request for Approval to Provide Direct Services PSA 16    
  
Complete and submit for CDA approval a separate Section 15 for each direct 
service not specified in Section 14.  The request for approval may include 
multiple funding sources for a specific service. 
 

 Check box if not requesting approval to provide any direct services. 
 
Identify Service Category: Respite Personal Care 
 
Check applicable funding source:8 
 

 III B 
 

 III C-1 
 

 III C-2 
 

 III E 
 

 VII A 
 

 HICAP 
 
Request for Approval Justification: 
 

  Necessary to Assure an Adequate Supply of Service OR 
 

  More cost effective if provided by the AAA than if purchased from a 
comparable service provider. 

 
Check all fiscal year(s) the AAA intends to provide service during this Area Plan 
cycle. 

 2020-2021   2021-2022    2022-2023  2023-2024 
Justification:  Provide a cost-benefit analysis below that substantiates this request 
for direct delivery of the above stated service9 :  Comparable service provider is 
not located within the Inyo County geographic part of the service area. 

                                                                                                                                                             
14 For a HICAP direct services waiver, the managing AAA of HICAP services must document that all affected 

AAAs are in agreement. 
13 Section 15 does not apply to Title V (SCSEP). 



 

Page 61 of 81 
 

 SECTION 16 – GOVERNING BOARD                   PSA16    
 

GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
2020-2024 Four-Year Planning Cycle 

 
CCR Article 3, Section 7302(a)(11) 

 

Total Number of Board Members:    ____5____ 

Name and Title of Officers:            Office Term 
Expires: 
Matt Kingsley, Chairperson December 31, 2024 

Jeff Griffiths, Vice-Chair December 31, 2024 

 

 

Name and Title of All Members:           Board Term 
Expires: 
Mark Tillemans December 31, 2020 

Richard Pucci December 31, 2022 

Dan Totheroh December 31, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                             
14 For a HICAP direct services waiver, the managing AAA of HICAP services must document that all affected 

AAAs are in agreement. 



 

Page 62 of 81 
 

  
SECTION 17 – ADVISORY COUNCIL                                      PSA 16  
    

ADVISORY COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP 
2020-2024 Four-Year Planning Cycle 

 
45 CFR, Section 1321.57 

CCR Article 3, Section 7302(a)(12) 
 

Total Council Membership (include vacancies) ___9___ 

Number of Council Members over age 60 ___7 (1 vacancy)___ 

      % of PSA’s   % on 
      60+Population  Advisory Council 
 
Race/Ethnic Composition 

White      63.3%  66.7% 
Hispanic      24.8%  11.1% 
Black      1%   0 
Asian/Pacific Islander    1.6%   0 
Native American/Alaskan Native  8.8%   11.1% 
Other      .5%   0 

 
Name and Title of Officers:            Office Term 
Expires: 
Roger Rasche, Chair December 31, 2020 

   

Name and Title of other members:           Office Term 
Expires: 
Phyllis Mikalowsky December 31, 2020 

Rachel Lober December 31, 2020 



 

Page 63 of 81 
 

Sandra Lund December 31, 2020 

 Kelli Davis December 31, 2021 

 Patti Hamie-Christensen December 31, 2021 

JoAnn Poncho December 31, 2021 

Dan Totheroh December 31, 2020 

Vacant December 31, 2021 

Indicate which member(s) represent each of the “Other Representation” 
categories listed below. 

      Yes No 

Low Income Representative    Roger Rasche, Phyllis 
Mikalowsky,  
Disabled Representative     Roger Rasche, Phyllis 
Mikalowsky 
Supportive Services Provider  

Representative     Patti Hamie-Christensen 
Health Care Provider Representative   Kelli Davis 
Family Caregiver Representative        Phyllis Mikalowsky 
Local Elected Officials     Dan Totheroh 
Individuals with Leadership  

Experience in Private and  
Voluntary Sectors     Sandra Lund, Rachel Lober, 

 JoAnn Poncho, Kelli Davis,  
Patti Hamie-Christensen 

Explain any “No” answer(s): _____________________ 

Briefly describe the local governing board’s process to appoint Advisory 
Council members: 

Vacant positions are advertised in local media as well as through the respective 
focal points, and include targeted outreach to fill unfilled categories of 
representation, while also working to ensure appropriate geographical 



 

Page 64 of 81 
 

representation.  Upon the closing of the recruitment, the appointment of Advisory 
Council members will be placed on the agenda for a public meeting of the 
Governing Board, at which time the Governing Board will appoint Advisory 
Council members for designated terms of office. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 65 of 81 
 

 SECTION 18 - LEGAL ASSISTANCE                                          PSA16 
    

2020-2024 Four-Year Area Planning Cycle 
This section must be completed and submitted with the Four-Year Area Plan. 

Any changes to this Section must be documented on this form and remitted with 
Area Plan Updates.10 

 
1. The mission of ESAAA’s Legal Assistance services is to ensure justice, 

dignity, health, security, maximum autonomy and independence to older 
residents by protecting and enforcing the legal rights of individuals and by 
promoting social change through broad elder rights advocacy.  The  purpose 
of Legal Assistance is to deliver high quality, cost-effective services 
designed to address the unmet legal needs of vulnerable older people 
throughout the PSA, with the following considerations: 

• Recognition of targeted populations:  those in greatest social and 
economic need, disadvantaged or vulnerable older adults. 

• Recognition that Legal Assistance is part of a continuum of care that 
must be coordinated with other ESAAA services to economize costs 
and develop systems for greatest impact. 

• Address all Older Americans Act legal services (caregiver, hotline, 
IIIB). 

• Empowerment of older persons to secure their own rights. 
• Protection against threat/loss of basic and essential civil rights (e.g., 

shelter, health care, income, personal and economic security). 
• Consideration of outcomes and target resources to achieve outcomes 

that make a difference in the lives and well-being of disadvantaged or 
vulnerable older adults. 

• Balance coordination with local needs and situations.   

 
2. The local Community Needs Assessment respondents identified legal 

assistance as a need not being met, behind issues related to transportation for 
medical needs; help with daily activities and adequate food and nutrition. 
The minimum percentage of Title III B funding thus was set at 10% 

                                                 
10 For Information related to Legal Services, contact Chisorom Okwuosa at 916 419-7500 or chisorom.okwuosa@aging.ca.gov  

mailto:chisorom.okwuosa@aging.ca.gov


 

Page 66 of 81 
 

although the actual funding was set closer to 20% to approach an adequate 
proportion of the very limited funding available to serve an area exceeding 
13,000 square miles.  
  

3. Specific to legal services, there have been minimal significant changes noted 
in local needs, although there has been a new focus on housing/eviction 
related issues and advanced health care directive as reported by our 
contractor, with the need assessment priority still identifying legal assistance 
for matters such as contracts, will, estate planning and other legal issues.    
 

4. ESAAA contracts legal services in compliance with CDA requirements and 
ensures that the contractual agreement includes the expectation that the 
contractor will use California Statewide Guidelines in the provision of legal 
services.  
 

5. The PSA 16 service area has limited legal assistance programs outside of the 
legal services provided privately by local California State Bar members.  
Information provided by the one legal assistance program, which also has 
historically been the primary contractor for legal services, has indicated that 
priority legal issues identified in the ESAAA needs assessment are 
consistent with the types of requests received by their program with the 
addition of the housing/eviction related issues and the advanced health care 
directive assistance.   
 

6. ESAAA identifies the target population in coordination with service 
providers and consistent with the requirements of CDA and the provisions of 
the OAA. 
 

7. Specific to legal services, our targeted senior population is low-income and 
disabled seniors.  We will reach seniors through in-person outreach at Senior 
Centers.  Occasionally some Centers will be linked in via videoconferencing 
to other Centers.  Written educational and outreach literature will also be 
used at congregate meal settings and through home-delivered meals. 
 



 

Page 67 of 81 
 

8. Legal assistance service providers within PSA 16. The current contracted 
provider of service is California Indian Legal Services – Senior Legal 
Service Program.  

Fiscal Year # of Legal Assistance 
Services Providers 

2020-2021 1 
2021-2022 Same  
2022-2023  Same 
2023-2024  Same 

 
9. PSA 16 does not have a hotline for legal services.    

 
10. Outreach methods will include a combination of written materials provided 

at congregate meal sites and through home-delivered meals, mailings to 
family caregivers, and in-person and/or videoconference presentations at 
Senior Centers throughout the PSA. 
 

11. Geographic regions covered by each provider: 

Fiscal Year Name of Provider 
Geographic Region 

covered 
2020-2021 California Indian Legal 

Services Inyo and Mono counties 

2021-2022 Same Same 

2022-2023 Same Same 

2023-2024 Same Same 
 

12. Older adults will access Legal Assistance Services through local telephone 
contact to the local Legal Assistance office, and through ESAAA sites and 
staff. 
 

13. During the last four year planning process, stakeholder Needs Assessment 
discussions and surveys identified money management, credit card debt and 



 

Page 68 of 81 
 

taxes as priority area, with money management a continued need. During 
this four year planning process, a focus on money management will be 
continued and contracted services will be adjusted to meet the changing 
needs that have been identified, such as housing/eviction related issues and 
advanced health care planning.   
 

14. As indicated above, money management continues to be an area or 
prioritization, being the 4th identified priority in the Needs Assessment. The 
contracted legal service provider has identified additional areas of priority 
from their work with clients, which includes general debt assistance, as well 
as housing//eviction issues and advanced health care planning.  
 

15. Barriers to access for legal assistance within the PSA result from the 
expansive 13,000+ square miles in the PSA, coupled with the sparse 
population.  These two factors combine to make it difficult for private sector 
for-profit businesses or health care providers to sustain in the PSA.  
Therefore much of the specialty care and shopping requires extensive 
assistance with transportation out of the PSA, and even within the PSA.  The 
prioritization of assistance with access to services left smaller amounts of III 
B funding available for legal assistance.    Therefore, ESAAA will continue 
to coordinate with legal assistance services to provide videoconferencing 
capability where possible, in an effort to extend access to legal assistance.  
 

16. The one legal service provider will be coordinating services with other 
ESAAA programs, the Ombudsman Coordinator, and with the local bar to 
ensure a continuum of legal information/services throughout the PSA.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 69 of 81 
 

PSA 16 
SECTION 19. Multipurpose Senior Center Acquisition 
or Construction Compliance Review       
                     

  No. Title IIIB funds not used for Acquisition or Construction 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 70 of 81 
 

 
SECTION 20.  Family Caregiver Support Program                             PSA16 

Notice of Intent for Non-Provision of FCSP Multifaceted Systems of Support 
Services 

Older Americans Act Section 373(a) and (b) 
 

2020-2024 Four-Year Planning Cycle 
Based on the AAA’s review of current support needs and services for family 
caregivers and grandparents (or other older relative of a child in the PSA), indicate 
what services the AAA intends to provide using Title III E and/or matching FCSP 
funds for both family caregivers and grandparents/older relative caregivers. 
 
Check YES or NO for each of the services* identified below and indicate if the service 
will be provided directly or contracted. If the AAA will not provide a service, a 
justification for each service is required in the space below. 
 
Family Caregiver Services 

Category 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 
Family 

Caregiver 
Information 

Services 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Family 
Caregiver 

Access 
Assistance 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Family 
Caregiver 
Support 
Services 

Yes      No 
 

Direct  Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 
 

 Yes   No 
 

Direct Contract 

Family 
Caregiver 

Respite Care 
 

Yes      No 
 

Direct  Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 
 

 Yes   No 
 

Direct Contract 

Family 
Caregiver 

Supplemental 
Services 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 



 

Page 71 of 81 
 

*Refer to PM 11-11 for definitions for the above Title IIIE categories. 
 
Grandparent Services  

*Refer to PM 11-11 for definitions for the above Title IIIE categories.   
 
Justification:  For each service category checked “no”, explain how it is being 
addressed within the PSA.  The justification must include the following: 

 
Family Caregiver Information, Access and Supplemental services can be addressed 
in both Inyo and Mono Counties through alternative resources including general 
information publications for the Adult Protective Service Programs (Mono County 
Social Services and Inyo County Health and Human Services), as well as through 
the general Information and Assistance program.  In addition, the IHSS Caregiver 
Registries in both counties provide information, training and support to caregivers 
in both counties (Mono: Community Services Solutions, 26 HFU Circle, Suite 1, 
Coleville, California  and Inyo: Life, Remedies and Celebrations, 314 W. Line 
Street, Suite E, Bishop, California).  In addition, grandparent caregivers have 
additional caregiving resources including non-needy caregiver financial aid 
through the county social service programs in both Inyo and Mono counties.  Child 
Care Connection, a program offered through the Inyo County Office of Education 

Category 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 
Grandparent 
Information 

Services 
 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Grandparent 
Access 

Assistance 
 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Grandparent 
Support 
Services 

 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Grandparent 
Respite Care 

 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 
Grandparent 
Supplemental 

Services 
 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 

Yes    No 
 

Direct Contract 



 

Page 72 of 81 
 

(164 Grandview, Bishop, California) has respite child care funding available to 
both counties as funding allows.   
 
In determining how to utilize the Title IIIE funding, consideration was given to the 
limited financial resource available to serve a geographic area spanning over 360 
miles in length, the limited identification of all mandated areas as priority needs in 
either community, and the available alternative resources.  Based upon this 
analysis, the focus of resources was directed towards support services and respite 
care.   



 

 
 

SECTION 21. Organizational Chart           PSA 16 
 

California Department of Aging 

Inyo County Board of Supervisors/ 
Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging Governing Board 

County of Inyo Health & Human Services 

Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging 

Director 
Marilyn Mann 

0.05 FTE (0.05APA) 

Assistant Director 
Meaghan McCamman 

Eastern Sierra Area Agency on 
Aging Advisory Council 

Deputy Director of Aging & Social Services 
Keri Oney 

0.15 FTE (0.10 APA, 0.05 IIIE) 

Assistant to HHS Director 
Rhiannon Baker 

0.05 FTE (0.05 APA) 

Senior Mgmt Analyst 
Melissa Best-Baker 

0.10 FTE (0.10 APA) 

Office Tech III 
0.10 FTE (0.03 APA, 

0.025 IIIB, 0.025 IIIC1, 
0.02 IIIC2) 

Office Tech II 
0.19 FTE (0.19 APA) 

Contracted 
Services 

Bishop Senior 
Center & Kitchen 

Lone Pine Senior 
Center & Kitchen 

HHS Specialist 
0.45 FTE (0.395 IIIB, 

0.023 IIIC1, 0.032 
IIIC2) 

Registered Dietician 
0.05 FTE (0.025 

IIIC1, 0.025 IIIC2) 
Ombudsman 

Senior Legal 

Mono 
County 

Big Pine Senior 
Center 

Walker Senior 
Center 

Independence 
Senior Center 

Tecopa Senior 
Center 

Senior Center Supervisors  
0.93 FTE (0.31 IIIB, 0.18 IIIC1, 

0.45 IIIC2, 0.06 IIIE) 

Cooks 
1.81 FTE (0.44 IIIC1, 0.56 

IIIC2) 

Program Services Assistants 
3.14 FTE (0.0.2 IIIB, 0.025 IIIC1, 0.47 IIIC2, 0.08 IIIE) 

Meal Prep/Delivery, Assisted Transportation, 
Transportation, Senior Centers 

Administrative (APA) FTE’s is 0.43 = $45,454 in Salaries and Benefits + $39,928 in other costs (A-87, rent, etc.) for a total of $100,488, which is covered by 
the CDA Administrative Allocation of $60,785 and the required match amount of $25,087 cash and $14,616 cash and in-kind 

ESAAA ORGANIZATIONAL CHART, FY 2020-21 



 

Page 74 of 81 
 

SECTION 22 - ASSURANCES 
 
Pursuant to the Older Americans Act Reauthorization Act of 2016, (OAA), the Area Agency on 
Aging assures that it will: 

 

A. Assurances 
 

1.  OAA 306(a)(2) 
Provide an adequate proportion, as required under Older Americans Act Reauthorization Act of 

2016 Section 307(a)(2), of the amount allotted for part B to the planning and service area will 
be expended for the delivery of each of the following categories of services— 

(A) services associated with access to services (transportation, health services (including 
mental health services) outreach, information and assistance, (which may include 
information and assistance to consumers on availability of services under part B and how to 
receive benefits under and participate in publicly supported programs for which the 
consumer may be eligible) and case management services); 

(B) in-home services, including supportive services for families of older individuals who are 
victims of Alzheimer’s disease and related disorders with neurological and organic brain 
dysfunction; and 

(C) legal assistance; and assurances that the area agency on aging will report annually to the 
State agency in detail the amount of funds expended for each such category during the fiscal 
year most recently concluded; 

 
2. OAA 306(a)(4)(A)(i)(I-II) 

(I) provide assurances that the area agency on aging will - 
(aa) set specific objectives, consistent with State policy, for providing services to older 

individuals with greatest economic need, older individuals with greatest social need, 
and older individuals at risk for institutional placement; 

(bb) include specific objectives for providing services to low-income minority older 
individuals, older individuals with limited English proficiency, and older individuals 
residing in rural areas; and; 

(II) include proposed methods to achieve the objectives described in (aa) and (bb) of 
subclause (I); 

 
3.  OAA 306(a)(4)(A)(ii) 

Include in each agreement made with a provider of any service under this title, a requirement 
that such provider will— 

(I) specify how the provider intends to satisfy the service needs of low-income minority 
individuals, older individuals with limited English proficiency, and older individuals 
residing in rural areas in the area served by the provider; 

(II) to the maximum extent feasible, provide services to low-income minority individuals, 



 

Page 75 of 81 
 

older individuals with limited English proficiency, and older individuals residing in rural 
areas in accordance with their need for such services; and 

(III) meet specific objectives established by the area agency on aging, for providing 
services to low-income minority individuals, older individuals with limited English 
proficiency, and older individuals residing in rural areas within the planning and 
service area; 

 
4.  OAA 306(a)(4)(A)(iii) 

With respect to the fiscal year preceding the fiscal year for which such plan is 
prepared— 

(I) identify the number of low-income minority older individuals in the planning and service 
area; 

(II) describe the methods used to satisfy the service needs of such minority older 
individuals; and 

(III) provide information on the extent to which the area agency on aging met the 
objectives described in assurance number 2. 

 
5.  OAA 306(a)(4)(B) 

Use outreach efforts that — 

(i) identify individuals eligible for assistance under this Act, with special emphasis on— 
(I) older individuals residing in rural areas; 
(II) older individuals with greatest economic need (with particular attention to low- income 

minority individuals and older individuals residing in rural areas); 
(III) older individuals with greatest social need (with particular attention to low- 

income minority individuals and older individuals residing in rural areas); 
(IV) older individuals with severe disabilities; 
(V) older individuals with limited English proficiency; 

(VI) older individuals with Alzheimer’s disease and related disorders with 
neurological and organic brain dysfunction (and the caretakers of such 
individuals); and 

(VII) older individuals at risk for institutional placement; and 
(ii) inform the older individuals referred to in sub-clauses (I) through (VII) of clause (i), and 

the caretakers of such individuals, of the availability of such assistance; 
 
6.  OAA 306(a)(4)(C) 

Contain an assurance that the Area Agency on Aging will ensure that each activity undertaken by 
the agency, including planning, advocacy, and systems development, will include a focus on 
the needs of low-income minority older individuals and older individuals residing in rural 
areas; 

 
 



 

Page 76 of 81 
 

7.  OAA 306(a)(5) 
Provide assurances that the Area Agency on Aging will coordinate planning, identification, 

assessment of needs, and provision of services for older individuals with disabilities, with 
particular attention to individuals with severe disabilities, and individuals at risk for institutional 
placement with agencies that develop or provide services for individuals with disabilities; 

 
8.  OAA 306(a)(9) 

Provide assurances that the Area Agency on Aging will carry out the State Long-Term Care 
Ombudsman program under 307(a)(9), will expend not less than the total amount of funds 
appropriated under this Act and expended by the agency in fiscal year 2000 in carrying out such a 
program under this title;  

 
9.  OAA 306(a)(11) 

Provide information and assurances concerning services to older individuals who are Native 
Americans (referred to in this paragraph as ‘‘older Native Americans’’), including— 

(A) information concerning whether there is a significant population of older Native 
Americans in the planning and service area and if so, the area agency on aging will 
pursue activities, including outreach, to increase access of those older Native 
Americans to programs and benefits provided under this title; 

(B) An assurance that the Area Agency on Aging will to the maximum extent practicable, 
coordinate the services the agency provides under this title with services provided 
under title VI; and 

(C) An assurance that the Area Agency on Aging will make services under the area plan 
available, to the same extent as such services are available to older individuals within the 
planning and service area, to older Native Americans. 

 
10. OAA 306(a)(13)(A-E) 

(A) maintain the integrity and public purpose of services provided, and service 
providers, under this title in all contractual and commercial relationships; 

(B) disclose to the Assistant Secretary and the State agency— 
(i) the identity of each nongovernmental entity with which such agency has a 

contract or commercial relationship relating to providing any service to older 
individuals; and 

(ii) the nature of such contract or such relationship; 
(C) demonstrate that a loss or diminution in the quantity or quality of the services provided, or 

to be provided, under this title by such agency has not resulted and will not result from such 
contract or such relationship; 

(D) demonstrate that the quantity or quality of the services to be provided under this title by 
such agency will be enhanced as a result of such contract or such relationship; and 

(E) on the request of the Assistant Secretary or the State, for the purpose of monitoring 
compliance with this Act (including conducting an audit), disclose all sources and 
expenditures of funds such agency receives or expends to provide services to older 



 

Page 77 of 81 
 

individuals; 
 

11. 306(a)(14) 
Provide assurances that preference  in receiving services under this Title shall not be given to 
particular older individuals as a result of a contract or commercial relationship that is not carried 
out to implement this title; 
 

12. 306(a)(15) 
Provide assurances that funds received under this title will be used— 

(A) to provide benefits and services to older individuals, giving priority to older 
individuals identified in Older Americans Act Reauthorization Act of 2016, 
Section 306(a)(4)(A)(i); and 

(B) in compliance with the assurances specified in Older Americans Act 
Reauthorization act of 2016, Section 306(a)(13) and the limitations specified in 
Older Americans Act Reauthorization Act of 2016, Section 212; 

13:  OAA 305(c)(5) 
In the case of a State specified in subsection (b)(5), the State agency; and shall provide assurance, 
determined adequate by the State agency, that the area agency on aging will have the ability to 
develop an area plan and to carry out, directly or through contractual or other arrangements, a 
program in accordance with the plan within the planning and service area. 

 
14. OAA 307(a)(7)(B) 

(i) no individual (appointed or otherwise) involved in the designation of the State agency or an area 
agency on aging, or in the designation of the head of any subdivision of the State agency or of an 
area agency on aging, is subject to a conflict of interest prohibited under this Act; 
(ii) no officer, employee, or other representative of the State agency or an area agency on aging 
is subject to a conflict of interest prohibited under this Act; and 
(iii) mechanisms are in place to identify and remove conflicts of interest prohibited under this 
Act. 
 
15.  OAA 307(a)(11)(A) 

(i) enter into contracts with providers of legal assistance, which can demonstrate the 
experience or capacity to deliver legal assistance; 
(ii) include in any such contract provisions to assure that any recipient of funds under division 
(i) will be subject to specific restrictions and regulations promulgated under the Legal Services 
Corporation Act (other than restrictions and regulations governing eligibility for legal 
assistance under such Act and governing membership of local governing boards) as determined 
appropriate by the Assistant Secretary; and 
(iii) attempt to involve the private bar in legal assistance activities authorized under this title, 
including groups within the private bar furnishing services to older individuals on a pro bono 
and reduced fee basis. 

 



 

Page 78 of 81 
 

16. OAA 307(a)(11)(B) 
That no legal assistance will be furnished unless the grantee administers a program designed to 
provide legal assistance to older individuals with social or economic need and has agreed, if the 
grantee is not a Legal Services Corporation project grantee, to coordinate its services with existing 
Legal Services Corporation projects in the planning and service area in order to concentrate the use 
of funds provided under this title on individuals with the greatest such need; and the area agency on 
aging makes a finding, after assessment, pursuant to standards for service promulgated by the 
Assistant Secretary, that any grantee selected is the entity best able to provide the particular services. 

 
17. OAA 307(a)(11)(D) 
To the extent practicable, that legal assistance furnished under the plan will be in addition to any 
legal assistance for older individuals being furnished with funds from sources other than this Act 
and that reasonable efforts will be made to maintain existing levels of legal assistance for older 
individuals; and 

 
18. OAA 307(a)(11)(E) 
Give priority to legal assistance related to income, health care, long-term care, nutrition, 
housing, utilities, protective services, defense of guardianship, abuse, neglect, and age 
discrimination. 

 
19. OAA 307(a)(12)(A) 
In carrying out such services conduct a program consistent with relevant State law and coordinated 
with existing State adult protective service activities for - 

(i) public education to identify and prevent abuse of older individuals; 
(ii) receipt of reports of abuse of older individuals; 
(iii) active participation of older individuals participating in programs under this Act 
through outreach, conferences, and referral of such individuals to other social service 
agencies or sources of assistance where appropriate and consented to by the parties to be 
referred; and 
(iv) referral of complaints to law enforcement or public protective service agencies where 
appropriate. 

 
20. OAA 307(a)(15) 
If a substantial number of the older individuals residing in any planning and service area in the 
State are of limited English-speaking ability, then the State will require the area agency on aging 
for each such planning and service area - 

(A) To utilize in the delivery of outreach services under Section 306(a)(2)(A), the services of 
workers who are fluent in the language spoken by a predominant number of such older 
individuals who are of limited English-speaking ability. 
(B) To designate an individual employed by the area agency on aging, or available to such 
area agency on aging on a full-time basis, whose responsibilities will include: 
(i) taking such action as may be appropriate to assure that counseling assistance is made 
available to such older individuals who are of limited English-speaking ability in order to 



 

Page 79 of 81 
 

assist such older individuals in participating in programs and receiving assistance under this 
Act; and 
(ii) providing guidance to individuals engaged in the delivery of supportive services under 
the area plan involved to enable such individuals to be aware of cultural sensitivities and to 
take into account effective linguistic and cultural differences. 

 
21. OAA 307(a)(18) 
Conduct efforts to facilitate the coordination of community-based, long-term care services, 
pursuant to Section 306(a)(7), for older individuals who - 

(A) reside at home and are at risk of institutionalization because of limitations on their ability 
to function independently; 
(B) are patients in hospitals and are at risk of prolonged institutionalization; or 
(C) are patients in long-term care facilities, but who can return to their homes if 
community-based services are provided to them. 

 
22.  OAA 307(a)(26) 
That funds received under this title will not be used to pay any part of a cost (including an 
administrative cost) incurred by the State agency, or an area agency on aging, to carry out a contract 
or commercial relationship that is not carried out to implement this title. 

 
23. OAA 307(a)(27) 
Provide, to the extent feasible, for the furnishing of services under this Act, consistent with self-
directed care. 

 

B. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Title 45 Requirements: 
 
24. CFR [1321.53(a)(b)] 

(a) The Older Americans Act intends that the area agency on aging shall be the leader relative to 
all aging issues on behalf of all older persons in the planning and service area. This means that the 
area agency shall proactively carry out, under the leadership and direction of the State agency, a 
wide range of functions related to advocacy, planning, coordination, interagency linkages, 
information sharing, brokering, monitoring and evaluation, designed to lead to the development or 
enhancement of comprehensive and coordinated community based systems in, or serving, each 
community in the Planning and Service Area. These systems shall be designed to assist older 
persons in leading independent, meaningful and dignified lives in their own homes and 
communities as long as possible. 
(b) A comprehensive and coordinated community-based system described in paragraph (a) of this 
section shall: 
(1) Have a visible focal point of contact where anyone can go or call for help, information or 
referral on any aging issue; 
(2) Provide a range of options: 
(3) Assure that these options are readily accessible to all older persons: The independent, semi-
dependent and totally dependent, no matter what their income; 



 

Page 80 of 81 
 

(4) Include a commitment of public, private, voluntary and personal resources committed to 
supporting the system; 
(5) Involve collaborative decision-making among public, private, voluntary, religious and 
fraternal organizations and older people in the community; 
(6) Offer special help or targeted resources for the most vulnerable older persons, those in danger 
of losing their independence; 
(7) Provide effective referral from agency to agency to assure that information or assistance is 
received, no matter how or where contact is made in the community; 
(8) Evidence sufficient flexibility to respond with appropriate individualized assistance, 
especially for the vulnerable older person; 
(9) Have a unique character which is tailored to the specific nature of the community; 
(10) Be directed by leaders in the community who have the respect, capacity and authority 
necessary to convene all interested individuals, assess needs, design solutions, track overall 
success, stimulate change and plan community responses for the present and for the future. 

 
25. CFR [1321.53(c)] 
The resources made available to the area agency on aging under the Older Americans Act are to be 
used to finance those activities necessary to achieve elements of a community based system set forth 
in paragraph (b) of this section. 

 
26. CFR [1321.53(c)] 
Work with elected community officials in the planning and service area to designate one or more 
focal points on aging in each community, as appropriate. 

 
27. CFR [1321.53(c)] 
Assure access from designated focal points to services financed under the Older 
Americans Act. 

 
CFR [1321.53(c)] 
Work with, or work to assure that community leadership works with, other applicable agencies and 
institutions in the community to achieve maximum collocation at, coordination with or access to other 
services and opportunities for the elderly from the designated community focal points. 

 
28. CFR [1321.61(b)(4)] 
Consult with and support the State's long-term care ombudsman program. 

 
29. CFR [1321.61(d)] 
No requirement in this section shall be deemed to supersede a prohibition contained in the Federal 
appropriation on the use of Federal funds to lobby the Congress; or the lobbying provision 
applicable to private nonprofit agencies and organizations contained in OMB Circular A-122. 

 



 

Page 81 of 81 
 

30. CFR [1321.69(a)] 
Persons age 60 and older who are frail, homebound by reason of illness or incapacitating 
disability, or otherwise isolated, shall be given priority in the delivery of services under this part. 

 



 

PSA   16

2020-2024 4-YEAR AREA PLAN REQUIRED COMPONENTS CHECKLIST
To ensure all required components are included, “X” mark the far-right column 

boxes.
Enclose a copy of the checklist with your Area Plan; submit this form with the 

Area Plan
due 5-1-20 only

Section Four-Year Area Plan Components 4-Year 
Plan

Transmittal Letter – must have original, ink signatures or official signature 
stamps- no photocopies ☒

1 Mission Statement ☒
2 Description of the Planning and Service Area (PSA) ☒
3 Description of the Area Agency on Aging (AAA) ☒
4 Planning Process / Establishing Priorities ☒
5 Needs Assessment ☒
6 Targeting ☒
7 Public Hearings ☒
8 Identification of Priorities ☒
9 Area Plan Narrative Goals and Objectives: ☒
9 Title IIIB Funded Program Development (PD) Objectives - NA ☒
9 Title IIIB Funded Coordination (C) Objectives - NA ☒
9 System-Building and Administrative Goals & Objectives ☒

10 Service Unit Plan (SUP) Objectives and Long-Term Care 
Ombudsman Outcomes

☒

11 Focal Points ☒
12 Disaster Preparedness ☒
13 Priority Services ☒
14 Notice of Intent to Provide Direct Services ☒
15 Request for Approval to Provide Direct Services ☒
16 Governing Board ☒
17 Advisory Council ☒
18 Legal Assistance ☒
19 Multipurpose Senior Center Acquisition or Construction Compliance 

Review
☐

20 Title III E Family Caregiver Support Program ☒
21 Organization Chart ☒
22 Assurances ☒



TRANSMITTAL LETTER
2020-2024 Four Year Area Plan/ Annual Update
Check one: ☐ FY 20-24  ☐ FY 21-22 ☐ FY 22-23 ☐ FY 23-24

AAA Name: _ Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) PSA   _16_
A program of Inyo County Health and Human Services

This Area Plan is hereby submitted to the California Department of Aging for 

approval. The Governing Board and the Advisory Council have each had the 

opportunity to participate in the planning process and to review and comment on the 

Area Plan. The Governing Board, Advisory Council, and Area Agency Director 

actively support the planning and development of community-based systems of care 

and will ensure compliance with the assurances set forth in this Area Plan. The 

undersigned recognize the responsibility within each community to establish 

systems in order to address the care needs of older individuals and their family 

caregivers in this planning and service area.

1.  Matthew Kingsley
(Type Name)

Signature: Governing Board Chair 1 Date

2.  Roger Rasche
(Type Name)

Signature: Advisory Council Chair Date

3.  Marilyn Mann
(Type Name)

Signature: Area Agency Director Date

 
1 Original signatures or official signature stamps are required.



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 9, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meetings of May 19, 2020, May 26, 
2020 and June 2, 2020.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/3/2020
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 6/3/2020








	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Join meeting via Zoom here)

	 Closed Session
	2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION [Pursuant t
	3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Regar

	 Open Session
	4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	6. PUBLIC COMMENT
	7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two 
	8. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE

	 Consent Agenda
	9. Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 between Coun
	Agenda Request Form
	Corpora Original Contract
	Corpora Amendment 1
	Corpora Amendment 2

	10. Request Board approve Amendment No. 9 to the contr
	Agenda Request Form
	Amendment 9 to CAO Contract

	11. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Bishop Waste-Inyo County Recycling Contract
	Request for Proposals

	12. Request Board authorize a purchase order in an amo
	Agenda Request Form
	Indy gatehouse quotes

	13. Request Board approve and authorize the Chairperso
	Agenda Request Form
	Draft Updated Unification Agreement - Redline
	Draft Updated Unification Agreement - For Signature

	14. Request Board approve and authorize the Chairperso
	Agenda Request Form
	Legal Services Agreement for ESCOG 

	15. Request Board approve Resolution No. 2020-26 title
	Agenda Request Form
	Proposed Resolution No. 2020-26
	Notice of Completion

	16. Request the Board approve the contract between the
	Agenda Request Form
	FY 2020-2021 LAFCo Contract

	17. Request Board: A) declare Interstate Sales of Aubu
	Agenda Request Form
	Bid Tab

	18. Request Board approve Amendment No. 3 to the agree
	Agenda Request Form
	TEAM Amendment 3
	TEAM Engineering Contract
	TEAM Engineering Contract Amendment 1
	TEAM Engineering Contract Amendment 2


	 Departmental
	19. Request Board: A) approve a proclamation titled, "
	Agenda Request Form
	2020 EMS Provider of the Year

	20. Request Board: A) approve a proclamation recognizi
	Carl and Suzi Dennett Proclamation

	21. Request Board:A) approve the 2020-2024 Area Plan
	Agenda Request Form
	Final Draft Plan for BOS
	Transmittal checklist
	Transmittal Letter

	22. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Comment
	23. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Correspondence - Action
	24. Northern Inyo Healthcare District - Pursuant to Re
	Request to Inyo Co. Board of Supervisors to Consolidate Election 


	 Board Members and Staff Reports



